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Form No. CAA 2

(Pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements & Amalgamations) Rules, 2016)

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
NEW DELHI BENCH

COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA)-107/(ND)/2021

In the Matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013)
And

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement between

Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Shri Lakshmi™)

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956
Having its registered office at:
37, Hargobind Encl Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092
>, HATgobInG Enelave, Vikas Marg, Uelil (Amalgamating Company 1 / Applicant
CIN: U85110DL1994PLC224835 Company 1)
And

Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Apollo Tricoat”)

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956
Having its registered office at:

37, Hargobind Encl Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092
e (Amalgamating Company 2 / Applicant
CIN: L74900DL1983PLC014972 Company 2)

And




APL Apollo Tubes Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“APL Apollo”)

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956
Having its registered office at:

37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092
argobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi (Amalgamated Company /

CIN: L74899DL1986PLC023443 :
Applicant Company 3)

And

Their Respective Shareholders and Creditors

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

OF APL APOLLO TUBES LIMITED
To,
The Equity Shareholders of APL Apollo Tubes Limited

Notice is hereby given that the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi (“NCLT”)
vide its Order dated November 30, 2021 (date of pronouncement), inter alia, has directed for
convening of a meeting of Equity Shareholders of APL Apollo Tubes Limited through VC /
OAVM with the facility of Remote E-voting in compliance with the General Circular No.
14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 read with General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 read
with General Circular No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020 read with General Circular No. 33/2020
dated September 28, 2020 read with General Circular No. 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020
read with General Circular No. 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021 and General Circular No. 20/2021
dated December 8, 2021 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”), for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit,
approving, with or without modification, the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation and
Arrangement between Shri Lakshmi, Apollo Tricoat and APL Apollo and their respective

shareholders and creditors. In the said meeting the following business will be transacted:

In pursuance of the said NCLT Order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a

meeting of equity shareholders of the Amalgamated Company will be held on Tuesday, February




08, 2022 at 2:00 P.M IST by way of VC / OAVM (“Meeting”) following the operating
procedures (with requisite modifications as may be required) referred to in MCA Circulars and
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 read with Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars”). At the Meeting, the
following resolution will be considered and if thought fit, be passed under section 230 to 232 and

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 by requisite majority:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements
and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and related circulars and notifications thereto as applicable
under the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment or
amendment thereof), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and subject to the relevant provisions of any other applicable
laws and the clauses of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of APL Apollo Tubes
Limited and subject to the approval by the requisite majority of the creditors of APL Apollo
Tubes Limited, and subsequent approval of the NCLT and subject to such other consents,
approvals, permissions and sanctions being obtained from appropriate authorities to the extent
applicable or necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or
imposed by NCLT or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such consents,
approvals, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”, which term shall be deemed to mean and
include one or more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any person(s)
which the Board may nominate to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this

resolution), approval of the equity shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Scheme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Restructuring Committee as constituted by the Board of the
Amalgamated Company, be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to
give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the arrangements embodied in the
Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any,
which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT and/or any other authority(ies) while
sanctioning the Scheme or by any authority(ies) under law, or as may be required for the purpose
of resolving any doubts or difficulties that may arise including passing of such accounting entries

and/or making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect




to the Scheme, as the Restructuring Committee may deem fit and proper without being required
to seek any further approval of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that the members
shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this

resolution.”

Take Further Notice that in pursuance of the said order, a meeting of the equity shareholders of
APL Apollo Tubes Limited is scheduled to be held through VC / OAVM on Tuesday, February
08, 2022, at 2:00 P.M. IST, when you are requested to attend.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the NCLT Order and the provisions of (a)
Section 230(4) read with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder;
(b) Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and (c) Secretarial Standards — 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the
Amalgamated Company has provided the facility of voting by remote e-voting (“Remote e-
voting”) as well as electronic voting system (“e-voting”) during the Meeting, so as to enable the
equity shareholders to consider and approve the Scheme by way of the aforesaid resolution.
Accordingly, voting by equity shareholders of the Amalgamated Company to the Scheme shall
be carried out through (i) remote e-voting and (ii) e-voting during the Meeting to be held on

Tuesday, February 08, 2022.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) shall
be providing the facility of remote e-voting and e-voting during the Meeting, and participation in

the Meeting through VC/ OAVM.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in terms of the said NCLT Order, in addition to e-voting
during the Meeting through VC/ OAVM, the persons entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting
shall have the facility and option of voting on the resolution for approval of the Scheme by
casting their votes through Remote e-voting during the period commencing on Friday, February
04, 2022 at 10:00 A.M. IST on and ending on Monday, February 07, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. IST
(both days inclusive), arranged by CDSL. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion
to their share in the paid-up share capital of the Amalgamated Company as on February 01, 2022,
being the cut-off date (“Cut-off Date”). The equity shareholders opting to cast their votes by
Remote e-voting or e-voting during the Meeting are requested to read the instructions in the

Notes below carefully.




It is clarified that votes may be cast by the equity shareholders by remote e-voting in terms of this
Notice and casting of votes by remote e-voting does not disentitle them or their authorized
representatives from attending the Meeting. However, the members or their authorized
representatives who have cast their votes by remote e-voting will not be eligible to cast their

votes by e-voting during the Meeting.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that since the physical attendance of members has been dispensed
with in pursuance to NCLT Order, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies.
Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by members under Section 105 of the
Companies Act, 2013 will not be available for the Meeting and hence, the Proxy Form and
Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and 113 of
the Companies Act, 2013 authorized representatives of the members may be appointed for the
purpose of voting through remote e-voting, for participation in the meeting through VC/ OAVM
facility and e-voting during the Meeting provided an authority letter/ power of attorney by the
Board of Directors or a certified copy of the resolution passed by its Board of Directors or other
governing body authorizing such representative to attend and vote at the Meeting through VC/
OAVM on its behalf along with the attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote is emailed to the Scrutinizer at

corpsrassociates@gmail.com with a copy marked to investors@aplapollo.com before the

commencement of the Meeting.

A copy of the Scheme, the Explanatory Statement under Sections 230, 232 and 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with the enclosures as indicated in the Index, are enclosed
herewith. A copy of this Notice and the accompanying documents will be placed on the website

of the Company viz. www.aplapollo.com and will also be available on the website of BSE

Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) at www.bseindia.com and

www.nseindia.com and also on the website of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com.

Copies of this Notice which include Scheme and Explanatory Statement under Section 230, 232
and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 can be obtained free of charge from the Registered Office of
the Amalgamated Company and/or from the office of the Advocate at Agarwal Law Associates,

34, FF, Babar Lane, Bengali Market, New Delhi-110001.

NCLT has appointed Ms. Deepa Krishan to act as the Chairperson of the said Meeting including

any adjournment(s) thereof.




The Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement, if approved at the Meeting, will be subject to

the subsequent approval of the NCLT and any other approvals as may be required.

The voting results of the meeting shall be announced by the Chairperson not later than 48 (forty
eight) hours of the conclusion of the Meeting upon receipt of Scrutinizer’s report and the same

shall be displayed on the website of the Company www.aplapollo.com and on the website of

CDSL www.evotingindia.com, being the agency appointed by the Company to provide the

voting facility to the shareholders, as aforesaid, as well as on the notice board of the
Amalgamated Company at its Registered Office and Corporate Office besides being notified to
NSE and BSE, the stock exchanges, where shares of the Amalgamated Company are listed.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be considered
approved by the equity shareholders only if the Scheme is approved by majority of persons
representing three-fourth in value of the members, of the Amalgamated Company, voting in

person through VC/OAVM or by remote e-voting.
Sd/-
Ms. Deepa Krishan
Former Member (Technical), NCLT
The Chairperson appointed for the Meeting

Dated: 27" day of December, 2021

Place: Delhi




Notes:

1.

In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing norms to be followed and
pursuant to MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, and in compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 read with the NCLT Order, this Meeting is being held by VC/ OAVM
without physical presence of the shareholders at a common venue, as per applicable
procedures mentioned in the MCA Circulars, for the purpose of considering, and if thought
fit, approving, the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement under the provisions of

sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Explanatory Statement under sections 230, 232 and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 to the

Notice, is annexed hereto.

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) is appointed to provide the facility for
convening the meeting through VC and to provide remote e-voting and e-voting facility
during the meeting; to handle and supervise the entire process of holding the meeting through

VC and e-voting during the meeting in a secured manner.

Shareholders are informed that in case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint
holder whose name stands first in the Register of Members of the Applicant Company 3 / list
of Beneficial Owners as received from National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”)
/Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) (collectively referred to as

“Depositories’) in respect of such joint holding will be entitled to vote.

Members will be able to attend the Meeting on Tuesday, February 08, 2022 through VC/
OAVM or view the live webcast by logging on to the e-voting website of CDSL at

www.evotingindia.com by using their e-voting login credentials.

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the names of
equity shareholders as on February 01, 2022. Persons who are not equity shareholders of the
Amalgamated Company as on the cut-off date (“Cut-off Date”) i.e. February 01, 2022,
should treat this notice for information purposes only. Any person who becomes a
shareholder of the Amalgamated Company after dispatch of this Notice and whose names
appear in the records of the Amalgamated Company as on the cut-off date for e-voting may
cast his vote by following the instructions of remote e-voting and e-voting during the

Meeting provided in this Notice.
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7.

10.

11.

12.

In terms of the directions contained in the Order, “the quorum of the meeting shall be 15,000
Equity Shareholders of the Amalgamated Company). In case the required quorum for the
Meeting is not present at the commencement of the Meeting, then the Meeting shall be
adjourned by half an hour (i.e., 30 minutes) and thereafter, the persons present shall be
deemed to constitute the quorum, however, the requirement of Section 230(6) of the Act shall
be complied with regard to the agreement to the scheme by majority of persons representing

75% in value.

In compliance with the NCLT Order, the attendance of the Members participating through
VC/ OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The voting period for remote e-voting shall commence on and from Friday, February 04,
2022 at 10:00 A.M. IST and shall end on Monday, February 07, 2022 at 5:00 P.M. IST
(Inclusive of both the days).

In terms of the MCA Circulars since the physical attendance of Equity Shareholders has been
dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility
of appointment of proxies by Equity Shareholders under Section 105 of the Act will not be
available. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act, representatives
of the institutional/ corporate Equity Shareholders may be appointed for the purpose of
voting through e-voting, for participation in the meeting through VC Facility.

Institutional/ Corporate Equity Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc) of
Amalgamated Company are entitled to appoint an authorized representative for the purpose
of participating and / or voting during the Meeting held through VC. Further, such
Institutional/ Corporate Equity Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are
required to send scanned certified copy (.pdf file) of the relevant resolution/ authority letter /
power of attorney together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized

representatives who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer at corpsrassociates@gmail.com

from their registered email address with a copy marked to investors@aplapollo.com , no later

than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the Meeting.

The authorized representative of the Equity Shareholders (in case such Equity Shareholders is
a corporate member) should additionally e-mail copy of their valid and legible identity proof
(.pdf file) issued by a statutory authority (i.e. PAN Card / Aadhaar Card / Passport / Driving

License / Voter ID Card) to the Scrutinizer at corpsrassociates@gmail.com from their
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

registered email address with a copy marked to investors@aplapollo.com , no later than 48

hours before the scheduled time of the Meeting.

Ms. Shruti Rawat, PCS has been appointed by the NCLT, as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the

votes cast through voting by remote e-voting and e-voting during the Meeting.

The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of e-voting (both remote e-voting and e-voting
during the meeting) will be final. The Scrutinizer appointed for Voting Process will submit
her report to the NCLT appointed Chairperson of the meeting or a person authorized by him
upon completion of scrutiny, in a fair and transparent manner, of voting not later than forty
eight hours from the conclusion of the voting. The Chairperson or a person authorized by her
shall announce the results of e-voting and the results shall be placed on the website of
Company and at the Registered Office of the Company. The Resolution, if approved by the
requisite majority, shall be deemed to have been passed on February 08, 2022.

The Notice convening the meeting, the date of dispatch of the Notice and the Explanatory
Statement, amongst others, will be published through advertisement in Delhi editions of

“Business Standard” both English and Hindi edition.

The relevant documents referred in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement are open for
inspection by the shareholders electronically up to the conclusion of the Meeting and
physically at the Registered Office of the Amalgamated Company on all working days,
except Saturdays and Sundays, between 11:00 A.M. IST and 1:00 P.M. IST upto the date of
the Meeting. Those shareholders who wish to inspect such documents electronically may
write an e-mail to investors@aplapollo.com mentioning their name, mobile number, PAN,

folio number/ DP ID.

Members who would like to express their views at the Meeting may register themselves as a
speaker by sending their request, mentioning their name, demat account number/folio

number, email id, mobile number, at investors@aplapollo.com by February 5, 2022. The

shareholders who do not wish to speak during the Meeting but have queries may send their
queries, mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number, to investors@aplapollo.com. These queries will be replied to by the Company

suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as speakers will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the meeting for a maximum time of 3 (three)

minutes each, once the floor is open for shareholder queries. The Company reserves the right
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19.

20.

21.

22.

to restrict the number of speakers and number of questions depending on the availability of

time for the Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder,
(including any statutory modification(s), clarification(s), exemption(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), the Notice is being sent by electronic mode to those
shareholders whose e-mail address are registered with the Company or the Depositories or
the Amalgamated Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent. However, in case a shareholder
wishes to receive a physical copy of the Notice, he/she is requested to send an e-mail from

their registered email ID to investors@aplapollo.com or comsec@aplapollo.com or a letter

addressed to Mr. Deepak C S, Compliance Officer of the Amalgamated Company, at 37,
Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092 or to Amalgamated Company’s Registrar
and Transfer Agent at Abhipra capital Limited, Abhipra Complex, A387, Dilkhush Industrial
Area, GT Karnal Road, Azadpur, Delhi - 110033 duly quoting his/her DP ID and Client ID or
the Folio number, as the case may be. For shareholders whose e-mail address is registered but
who have requested for physical copy of the Notice or whose e-mail address is not registered,

the physical copy of the Notice is being sent by permitted mode.

In compliance with the NCLT Order, the Notice is being sent to all the Members whose
names appear in the Register of Members/Beneficial Owners as per the details furnished by
the Depositories as on December 24, 2021, i.e. cut-off date for dispatch of Notice. This
Notice of the Meeting is also displayed / posted on the website of the Amalgamated

Company at www.aplapollo.com, Stock Exchanges’ website (www.bseindia.com and

www.nseindia.com) and on the website of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com.

The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to one vote per fully paid equity share
of the Amalgamated Company held by them as on February 01, 2022, being the cut-off date
(“Cut-off Date”).

The Instructions to attend and vote electronically are as under:-

a. The voting period begins on Friday, February 04, 2022 at 10:00 A.M. IST and ends on

Monday, February 07, 2022 at 5:00 P.M. IST. During this period shareholders of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off
date i.e. Tuesday, February 01, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Those members who will be present in the
Meeting through VC/ OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through

13



remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through

e-voting system during the Meeting.

. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to cast

their vote again.

. Members can login at CDSL e-voting platform any number of times till they have voted on
the resolution. Once the vote on resolution is cast by a Member, whether partially or

otherwise, Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,
2020 on e-voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile

number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual

meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given

below:

Type of | Login Method

shareholders

Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
Shareholders through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
Holding available to reach eVoting page without any further authentication. The
securities  in URL for users to login to Easi /  Easiest are
Demat mode https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit
with CDSL www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System

Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there
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3)

4)

is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user

can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/Evotingl.ogin The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user
will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service

Providers.

Individual
Shareholders

Holding
securities  in

demat mode

with NSDL

1)

2)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
eServices website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following

URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a

mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under
‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able
to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for

IDeAS “Portal or click at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote

e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account

Shareholders | through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

(holding

securities in

Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you

demat mode) | can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service

login through

their

Depository

Participants

provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any

technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

holding securities in Demat | CDSL  helpdesk by sending a  request at

mode with CDSL

helpdesk.evoting(@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-
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23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
holding securities in Demat | NSDL  helpdesk by sending a request at
mode with NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990

and 1800 22 44 30

e. Login method for e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than

individual holding in Demat form:

)
ii)

iii)

vi)

The Members should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
Click on “Shareholders” module

Now enter your User ID

1. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

2. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

3. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number

registered with the Company.
Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to
www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your

existing password is to be used.

If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders

holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)

» Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the

sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact

Company/RTA.
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Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy
Bank format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company

Details records in order to login.

OR Date of | > If both the details are not recorded with the depository or
Birth company, please enter the member id / folio number in the

(DOB) Dividend Bank details field.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost

care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-

voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.
Click on the EVSN of the Company for which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same
the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option
YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to

the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else

to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify

your vote.
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n. You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on

the Voting page.

o. Ifademat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the

image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by

the system.

p. Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote

Voting only.

>

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and

Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves

in the “Corporates” module

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity

should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com .

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the

account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be

able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in

the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the

Company at the email address viz; investors@aplapollo.com, if they have voted

from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the

scrutinizer to verify the same.
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE
NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by

email to Company at investors@aplapollo.com and/or RTA email at rta@abhipra.com.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective

Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining

virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you
can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-
23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A
Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower
Parel (East), Mumbai.

Enclosures: as above
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,

NEW DELHI BENCH

COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA)-107/(ND)/2021

In the Matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013)

And

In the Matter of Sections 230 — 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements, Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement between

Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Shri Lakshmi™)

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956
Having its registered office at:
37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092
CIN: U85110DL1994PLC224835

And

Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Apollo Tricoat”)

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956
Having its registered office at:

37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092
CIN: L74900DL1983PLC014972

And

(Amalgamating Company 1 / Applicant
Company 1)

(Amalgamating Company 2 / Applicant
Company 2)
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APL Apollo Tubes Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“APL Apollo”)

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956
Having its registered office at:

37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092
argobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi (Amalgamated Company /

CIN: L74899DL1986PLC023443 :
Applicant Company 3)

And

Their Respective Shareholders and Creditors

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230 to 232 AND SECTION 102 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 TO
THE NOTICE OF THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL CONVENED
MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF APL APOLLO TUBES LIMITED

Pursuant to the NCLT Order dated November 30, 2021 in Company Scheme Application No.
CA(CAA) -107/(ND)/ 2021 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi
Bench (“NCLT”), a meeting of the equity shareholders of APL Apollo Tubes Limited, is being
convened by way of VC/ OAVM on Tuesday, February 08, 2022 at 2:00 P.M. (“Meeting”), for
the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving with or without modification, the
arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement between Shri Lakhsmi,
Apollo Tricoat and APL Apollo and their respective members and creditors (“Scheme”) for
amalgamation of Shri Lakshmi and Apollo Tricoat with APL Apollo. The aforesaid Scheme of

Amalgamation and Arrangement is enclosed as Annexure 1.

The meeting of secured creditors and unsecured creditors of the Amalgamated Company is being
held on Tuesday, February 08, 2022 at 10:30 A.M. IST and 11:30 A.M. respectively for approval
of Scheme as per NCLT Order dated November 30, 2021.

This statement explaining the terms of the Scheme is being furnished, inter alia, as required under
section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the Notice dated December 27, 2021 of
the Meeting.
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1. The draft Scheme was placed before the Audit Committee, Committee of Independent
Directors, and Board of Directors of the Amalgamated Company at their respective meetings
held on February 27, 2021. In accordance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI”’) Circular bearing no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017
(including amendments thereof), the Audit Committee and Committee of Independent
Directors of the Applicant Company 3 vide a resolution passed on February 27, 2021
recommended the Scheme to the Board of Directors of the Amalgamated Company. The
Board of Directors of the Amalgamated Company at its meeting held on February 27, 2021,
approved the Scheme, interalia, based on such recommendation of the Audit Committee and

Committee of Independent Directors.
2. List of the companies/parties involved in the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement:
A. Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited
B. Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited
C. APL Apollo Tubes Limited
3. Details of the companies/parties to the Scheme:
A. Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited

a. Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited (“Shri Lakshmi” or “Amalgamating Company
1) was incorporated on the 25th day of April 1994 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 as a private limited company which was later on converted into
public limited company on 13" day of January 1995. Registered Office of Shri
Lakshmi is currently situated at 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092.
Amalgamating Company 1 is engaged in the business of production of ERW steel

tubes and GP coils.

b. The main objects of the Amalgamating Company 1 are set out in the Memorandum of

Association which are as under:

i. “To carry on the business as manufacturers, exporters, importers, COmmission
Agent, buying and selling agents, representatives of manufacturer, sellers and
dealers in all kinds and varieties of Iron and Steel, Scraps,Steel converters, Steel

tubes, plastic tubes, rollers, ferrous and non ferrous metal founders, fabricators,
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Sheet metal grinders, P S Tanks, Tubular poles, steel structures, stamping and

pressing of sheet metal.”

c. The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Amalgamating

Company 1 as on September 30, 2021 was as set out below:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Authorised Share Capital

70,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 7,00,00,000
Total 7,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

58,95,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,89,50,000
Total 5,89,50,000

There is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of

the Amalgamating Company 1 subsequent to September 30, 2021.

along with their addresses are as follows:

i. Promoter(s) and Promoter Group

The details of the present promoter(s) and directors of the Amalgamating Company 1

S. No. Name Address
1 APL Apollo Tubes Ltd 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi —
110092
ii. Directors
S. Name Address DIN No. Date of
No. Appointment

1 | Sanjay Gupta

G-8, Maharani Bagh, Delhi-110065

00233188 | 28/04/2008

2 | Vinay Gupta

H-5, Maharani Bagh, Delhi-110065

00005149 | 29/09/2009

3 | Neeru Abrol

K-3 Lajpat Nagar —III, New Delhi-

01279485 08/11/2019
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.

S. Name Address DIN No. Date of
No. Appointment

110024

Romi Sehgal | E-103, The Residency, Ardee City, 03320454 | 24/05/2018
Sector 5, Gurgaon, Haryana

The amount due to Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Amalgamating

Company 1 as on June 30, 2021 is INR 2,34,89,129/- and INR 2,53,76,89,657/-

B. Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited

a.

Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (“Apollo Tricoat” or “Amalgamating Company 2”)
was incorporated on the 12" day of January 1983 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 as a public limited company. Registered Office of Shri
Lakshmi is currently situated at 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092.
Amalgamating Company 2 is primarily engaged in business of production of steel

designer roofing, fencing, steel door-frames, designer hand railing etc.
The equity shares of Amalgamating Company 2 are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”).

The main objects of the Amalgamating Company 2 are set out in the Memorandum of

Association which are as under:

i. “To manufacture the TriCoat Tubes in three variants SureCoat, DureCoat and
SuperCoat with the advanced Galvant Technology and to carry on in India and
elsewhere the trade or business of manufacturing, prospecting, raising,
operating, buying, selling, importing, exporting, purchasing, factoring, otherwise
dealing in iron & steel and ferrous and non-ferrous metals of all qualities,
grades, types and kinds, as iron mongers, iron masters, steel makers and steel
converters and/or all products made of Iron and Steel, Iron-ore and other alloys
including zinc or/ and colour quoted steel, coils, sheets, pipes and tubes and
other materials in any variants, using advanced technology, machinery or

equipments required for manufacture of such item.

ii. To carry on the business as manufacturers of Iron, steel or other metal pipes,
seamless pipes, sheets, rods and other products of iron, steel or other metals now

known or that may hereafter be invented as also to carry on the business of
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ironmasters, iron founders, metal workers, steel makers and steel converters and
to purchase or otherwise acquire, set up, erect, maintain, reconstruct and adapt
any offices, workshops, plant, machinery and other things found necessary or

convenient for the purpose of the Company.

iii. To provide the technical and management consultancy services, both in India and
abroad, for design, application, development, production, fabrication, operation,
promotion, marketing and use of products out of stainless steel, aluminum sheets,
ceramic, wood, leather, glass, acrylic, plastic, wax and other metal / alloys sheet
required and/or used in the house hold / official goods, architectural,

>

construction automobiles, railway transport and other allied sectors.’

d. The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Amalgamating

Company 2 as on September 30, 2021 was as set out below:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

Authorised Share Capital

7,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 15,00,00,000

Total 15,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

6,08,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 12,16,00,000

Total 12,16,00,000

There is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of

the Amalgamating Company 2 subsequent to September 30, 2021.

e. The details of the present promoter(s) and directors of the Amalgamating Company 2

along with their addresses are as follows:

i. Promoter(s) and Promoter Group

S. No. Name Address
1 Shri Lakshmi Metal 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi —
Udyog Limited 110092
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2 Rahul Gupta

G-8, Maharani Bagh, Delhi-110065

ii. Directors

S. Name Address DIN No. Date of
No. Appointment
1 | Vinay Gupta H-5, Maharani Bagh, Delhi- 00005149 | 23/10/2020

110065
2 | Bharat Bhushan | B-22, Dayanand Colony, Lajpat 00014334 | 28/02/2014
Sahny Nagar- 4, New Delhi-110024
3 | Neeru Abrol K-3, Lajpat Nagar-3, Delhi- 01279485 20/01/2020
110024
4 | Romi Sehgal E-103, The Residency, Adree 03320454 | 01/02/2020
City, Sector 52 Gurgaon122003
5 | Anilkumar S-34, Greater Kailash-II, Delhi- 06752578 11/06/2018
Bansal 110048
6 | Rahul Gupta G-8, Maharani Bagh, Delhi- 07151792 04/05/2018

110065

f.  The amount due to Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Amalgamating

Company 2 as on June 30, 2021 is INR 59,04,73,624/- and INR 1,45,59,46,728/-

C. APL Apollo Tubes Limited

a.

APL Apollo Tubes Limited (“APL Apollo” or “Amalgamated Company”) was

incorporated on the 24th day of February 1986 under the provisions of the Companies

Act, 1956 as a private limited company which was later on converted into public

limited company on 19" day of October 1993. Registered Office of Shri Lakshmi is
currently situated at 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092.

Amalgamated Company is primarily engaged in the business of production of ERW

steel tubes.

The equity shares of Amalgamated Company are listed on BSE and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”).

The main objects of the Amalgamated Company are set out in the Memorandum of

Association which are as under:
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i. “To manufacture, fabricate, forging, produce export, import, buy sell, let on hire,
exchange, alter, improve, prepare for market and deal in all kinds of steel tubes

and pipes.

ii. To carry on the business of iron masters, steel, makers, steel converters, melters,

iron and steel founders and iron manufacturers.

iii. To carry on the business of manufacture, exporter, importers, buying, selling and

dealers in all raw materials used in the manufacture, of all type of steel tube and
pipes.

iv. To acquire and utilize machinery plant and equipment for the manufacture of

i

iron and steel products.

d. The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Amalgamated

Company as on September 30, 2021 was as set out below:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

Authorised Share Capital

37,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 75,00,00,000

Total 75,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

24,97,92,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 49,95,84,000

Total 49,95,84,000

There is no change in the authorised share capital subsequent to September 30, 2021.
However, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Amalgamated
Company has increased to Rs. 50,02,11,000 pursuant to issue of 3,13,500 equity
shares of Rs, 2 each to eligible employees under ESOP scheme on November 17,

2021.

e. The details of the present promoter(s) and directors of the Amalgamated Company

along with their addresses are as follows:
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1.

Promoter(s) and Promoter Group

S. No. Name Address
1 Sanjay Gupta G-8, Maharani Bagh, Delhi-110065
2 Veera Gupta C-380, Yojna Vihar, Delhi, 110092, Delhi
3 Rahul Gupta G-8, Maharani Bagh, Delhi-110065
4 Rohan Gupta G-8, Maharani Bagh, Delhi-110065
5 APL Infrastructure Private | 36, Kaushambi, Near Anand Vihar Terminal
Limited behind Wave Cinema Ghaziabad UP 201010
ii. Directors
S. Name Address DIN No. Date of
No. Appointment
1 | Sanjay Gupta | G-8, Maharani Bagh, Delhi-110065 00233188 | 02/09/2003
2 | Vinay Gupta | H-5, Maharani Bagh, Delhi-110065 00005149 16/05/2008
3 | Virendra B-12, 'Saket', 2nd Floor Gyan Bharti | 00253196 | 28/01/2017
Singh Jain School Lane, South Delhi-110017
4 | Neeru Abrol | K-3 Lajpat Nagar —III, New Delhi- 24/03/2015
110024 01279485
5 | Abhilash Lal | H. No. C-192, DLF Ph-2, Belvedere | 03203177 12/02/2014
Park Towers, Gurgaon-122002
6 | Romi Sehgal | E-103, The Residency, Ardee City, 03320454 13/08/2016
Sector 5, Gurgaon, Haryana
7 | Anilkumar S-34, Greater Kailash, New Delhi — 06752578 04/08/2014
Bansal 110048
8 | Ashok Kumar | C-380, Yojna Vihar, Delhi, 110092, 01722395 19/10/2011
Gupta Delhi
9 | Ameet Kumar | 78-A/1, Friends Colony (East), New | 00002838 06/08/2021
Gupta Delhi-110065
10 | Rahul Gupta | G-8, Maharani Bagh, Delhi-110065 07151792 06/08/2021

f.  The amount due to Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Amalgamated

Company as on June 30, 2021 is INR 2,50,66,99,767/- and INR 10,80,75,19,857/-
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4. Relationship subsisting between the companies who are parties to the Scheme

The Amalgamating Company 1 is wholly-owned subsidiary of the Amalgamated Company.

The Amalgamating Company 2 is subsidiary of Amalgamating Company 1 and step down

subsidiary of Amalgamated Company.

5. Details of the Board meeting at which the Scheme was approved by the Board of

Directors of the Amalgamating Company 1, Amalgamating Company 2 and

Amalgamated Company respectively, including the names of the Directors who voted in

favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not vote or

participate on such resolution

A.

All directors of the Amalgamating Company 1, namely, Mr. Sanjay Gupta, Mr. Vinay
Gupta, Mrs. Neeru Abrol and Mr. Romi Sehgal had attended the Board meeting held on
February 27, 2021 and had unanimously approved the Scheme.

All directors of the Amalgamating Company 2 except Shri Vinay Gupta had attended the
Board meeting held on February 27, 2021 and had unanimously approved the Scheme.
The directors who attended the meeting are: Mr. Bharat Bhushan Sahny, Ms. Neeru
Abrol, Mr. Romi Sehgal, Mr. Anilkumar Bansal and Mr. Rahul Gupta.

All directors of the Amalgamated Company except Shri Vinay Gupta had attended the
Board meeting held on February 27, 2021 and had unanimously approved the Scheme.
The directors who attended the meeting are: Mr. Sanjay Gupta, Mr. Virendra Singh Jain,
Ms. Neeru Abrol, Mr. Abhilash Lal, Mr. Romi Sehgal, Mr. Anilkumar Bansal and Mr.
Ashok Kumar Gupta.

6. Salient features / details / extract of the Scheme

The salient features / details / extract of the Scheme are, interalia, as under:

1.

The proposed Scheme is among Shri Lakshmi (Amalgamating Company 1), Apollo
Tricoat (Amalgamating Company 2) and APL Apollo (Amalgamated Company) and their
respective members and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of Companies

Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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il

1il.

1v.

The Appointed Date for the purpose of Scheme to be April 01, 2021 or such other date as
may be fixed by the Hon’ble Tribunal of Judicature at Delhi or any other Competent

authority, as may be applicable.

The Effective Date means the later of the dates on which certified copy of the order of the
NCLT sanctioning this Scheme is filed with the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi
and Haryana by the all the companies, as required under the provisions of the Act. Any
references in the Scheme to "upon the Scheme becoming effective" or "effectiveness of

the Scheme" or "Scheme coming into effect" shall mean the "Effective Date"

The Scheme provides that upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect
from Appointed Date, the Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamated Company 2
shall, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and sanction of this
Scheme by NCLT and other applicable provisions of the law for the time being in force
and without any further act, instrument or deed, stand transferred to and vested in or
deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Amalgamated Company on and
from the Appointed Date, on a going concern, in such a way that from the Appointed
Date, the assets and liabilities of the Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating
Company 2 along with all the rights, title, interest or obligations of the Amalgamating
Company and Amalgamating Company 2 therein become that of the Amalgamated

Company.
Consideration:

Since the Amalgamating Company 1 is the wholly owned subsidiary of the Amalgamated
Company, upon the Scheme becoming effective, all the equity shares held by the
Amalgamated Company and its nominees in the Amalgamating Company 1 shall stand
cancelled and extinguished as on Appointed Date. Accordingly, there will be no issue and
allotment of equity shares of the Amalgamated Company to the shareholders of the

Amalgamating Company 1 upon the Scheme being effective.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective Amalgamated Company shall, without any further
application, act or deed, issue and allot equity shares to the Eligible Members of
Amalgamating Company 2 whose names appear in the register of its members on the

Record Date or to such of their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal
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Vi.

representatives or other successors in title as aforesaid in the following manner

(hereinafter referred as Share Exchange Ratio):-

“one fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Two) of the
Amalgamated Company to be issued and allotted to the Eligible Members of the
Amalgamating Company 2 against one fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 2/-
(Indian Rupees Two) each held in the Amalgamating Company 2.”

Upon the Scheme being effective, and in consideration to the Amalgamating Company 1,
being shareholder of the Amalgamating Company 2, in terms of the Scheme, 3,39,40,000
equity shares held by the Amalgamating Company 1 i.e. approximately 55.82% of the
total equity shares of the Amalgamating Company 2, shall stand cancelled and
extinguished and in lieu thereof, no allotment of any shares in the Amalgamated
Company shall be made against those 55.82% of the total equity shares of the
Amalgamating Company 2.

Accounting treatment:
In the books of Amalgamated Company

Upon the Scheme becoming effective the Amalgamated Company shall account for the
amalgamation of the Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company 2 in its
books of accounts in accordance with 'Pooling of Interest Method' of accounting as laid
down in Appendix-C of IND-AS 103 (Business Combinations of entities under common

control) read with ICAI ITFG Clarification.
In the books of Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company 2

As the Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company 2 shall stand dissolved
without being wound up upon the Scheme becoming effective as mentioned in clause 23
of the Scheme and all the assets and liabilities shall be transferred to Amalgamated
Company, hence there is no accounting treatment prescribed under this Scheme in the

books of the Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company 2.
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vii. Purpose and Rationale for the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement

a. Combined business under “APL Apollo” brand with wide product offerings and
geographical footprint leading to a stronger market presence, to be best suitable for

long term growth market;

b. Amalgamation shall result in consolidation of the respective operations served by one

platform thereby leveraging the capability of the Amalgamated Company;

c. Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company 2 operate businesses that
complement each other, the combination to result in stronger consolidated revenue
and profitability, with diversification in product portfolio thereby reducing business

risks for mutual benefit of the shareholders of the companies;

d. Ensuring a streamlined group structure by reducing the number of legal entities in the
group structure, and thereby eliminating inter-company transactions, administrative
duplications and consequently reducing the administrative costs of maintaining

separate companies;

e. Pooling of assets, proprietary information, personnel, financial, managerial and
technical resources of the companies, thereby contributing to the future growth of the

Amalgamated Company; and

f.  Overall reduction in administrative, managerial and other expenditure and achieving
productivity gains and logistical advantages by pooling technologies for optimum

utilization of various resources.

viil. Scheme coming into effect, the Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company

2 shall, without any further act or deed, stand dissolved without winding up.

ix. As an integral part of the Scheme, the face value of 1 (One) equity share of the
Amalgamating Company 1 amounting to INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) shall be
sub-divided into face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Two only) comprising 5 equity
shares of the Amalgamating Company 1; accordingly, authorised share capital of the

Amalgamating Company 1 shall be restructured as under:
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x1.

“The authorised share capital of the Amalgamating Company 1 is INR 7,00,00,000/-
(Indian Rupees Seven crore only) divided into 3,50,00,000 (Thee Crore Fifty Lacs) equity
shares of INR 2 each (Indian Rupees Two only).”

Valuation report

Since the Amalgamating Company 1 is wholly-owned subsidiary of the Amalgamated
Company, no shares are required to be issued as part of the Scheme. Accordingly, there is
no requirement of a Valuation Report with respect to shares of Amalgamating Company

1.

Valuation report for the purpose of valuing equity shares of the Amalgamated Company
and Amalgamating Company 2 has been obtained from SSPA & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Registered Valuer) dated February 27, 2021.

Effect of the Scheme
A. Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their Relatives

The Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) of the Amalgamated
Company, Amalgamating Company 1, Amalgamating Company 2 and their
respective relatives do not have any material interest, concern or any other interest in
the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in the Amalgamated Company,
if any, or to the extent the said Directors and KMP(s) are the partners, directors,
members and/or beneficiaries of the companies, firms, association of persons, bodies
corporate and/or trust, as the case may be, that hold shares in the Amalgamated
Company. There will be no adverse effect of the Scheme on the Directors and KMP
of the Amalgamated Company.

Details of the Directors and KMP(s) of the Amalgamated Company, Amalgamating
Company 1, Amalgamating Company 2 and their respective equity shareholding as
on September 30, 2021 in the Amalgamated Company, Amalgamating Company 1

and Amalgamating Company 2 are as follows:
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a. Amalgamated Company

S. No. Name Shareholding as on September 30, 2021
Amalgamating | Amalgamating Amalgamated

Company 1 Company 2 Company

1 Sanjay Gupta 1* NIL 3,50,000

2 Vinay Gupta 1* NIL NIL

3 Virendra Singh Jain NIL 500 520

4 Neeru Abrol NIL NIL NIL

5 Abhilash Lal NIL NIL NIL

6 Romi Sehgal NIL 7,938 1,15,427

7 Anilkumar Bansal NIL 1,600 10,000

8 Ashok Kumar Gupta NIL NIL NIL

9 Ameet Kumar Gupta NIL NIL NIL

10 | Rahul Gupta NIL NIL 30,02,000

b. Amalgamating Company 1

S.No. Name Shareholding as on September 30, 2021
Amalgamating Amalgamating Amalgamated
Company 1 Company 2 Company
1 Sanjay Gupta 1* NIL 3,50,000
2 Vinay Gupta 1* NIL NIL
3 Neeru Abrol NIL NIL NIL
4 Romi Sehgal NIL 7,938 NIL

¢. Amalgamating Company 2

S. No. Name Shareholding as on September 30, 2021
Amalgamating | Amalgamating | Amalgamated
Company 1 Company 2 Company
1 Vinay Gupta 1* NIL NIL
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S. No. Name Shareholding as on September 30, 2021
Amalgamating | Amalgamating | Amalgamated

Company 1 Company 2 Company

2 Bharat Bhushan Sahny NIL NIL NIL

3 Neeru Abrol NIL NIL NIL

4 Romi Sehgal NIL 7,938 1,15,427

5 Anilkumar Bansal NIL 1,600 10,000

6 Rahul Gupta NIL NIL 30,02,000

* Share held in Amalgamating Company 1 in representative capacity

B.

C.

Promoter and Non-Promoter Members

The shareholding of promoter and promoter group shall be reduced from 36.84% to
33.26% approximately post issuance of shares as mentioned in the Scheme.
Accordingly, public shareholding shall be increased from 63.16% to 66.74%

approximately post issuance of shares. Creditors

The rights and interests of creditors (secured and unsecured) of the Amalgamated
Company are not likely to be prejudicially affected as the Amalgamated Company is
a company with high Net Worth and sound financial background. Further, no
compromise is offered to any of the creditors of the Amalgamated Company nor their
rights are sought to be modified in any manner and the Amalgamated Company

undertakes to meet with all such liabilities in the regular course of business.
Employees

The rights and interest of the Employees of the Amalgamated Company will not be
prejudicially affected by the Scheme. The employees of the Amalgamating Company
1 and Amalgamating Company 2 shall become the employees of the Amalgamated

Company upon the Scheme becoming effective.
Depositors, Debenture Holders, Deposit Trustee or Debenture Trustee

None of the Amalgamating Company 1, Amalgamating Company 2 and the

Amalgamated Company has any depositors, debenture holders, deposit trustee or
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Xil.

Xiil.

X1v.

debenture trustee. Hence, no rights and interests will be affected on effectiveness of

Scheme.

Report of the Directors of the Amalgamating Company 1, Amalgamating Company
2 and Amalgamated Company

Further a report of the Directors of the Amalgamating Company 1, Amalgamating
Company 2 and Amalgamated Company, explaining effect of the Scheme on each class
of shareholders, KMP, promoters and non-promoter shareholders, forms part of this

Notice and is annexed herewith as Annexure VII.

No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending in relation to the
Amalgamating Company 1, Amalgamating Company 2 and Amalgamated Company
under the Companies Act, 2013 or erstwhile Companies Act, 1956.

Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s) from regulatory or any other

governmental authorities required, received or pending:

The Amalgamated Company may be required to seek approvals / sanctions / no-
objections from certain regulatory and governmental authorities for the Scheme such as
the concerned Registrar of Companies, Regional Director and will obtain the same at the

relevant time.

Pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10,
2017, the detailed pre scheme and post scheme (expected) capital structure and
shareholding pattern of Amalgamated Company, Amalgamating Company 1 and

Amalgamating Company 2 are given herein below:
A. Capital Structure

a. Pre-scheme & Post-scheme capital structure of Amalgamated Company as on
September 30, 2021:
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Pre-scheme:

Particulars

Amount (in Rs.)

Authorised Share Capital

37,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 75,00,00,000
Total 75,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

24,97,92,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 49,95,84,000
Total 49,95,84,000

Post-scheme:

Particulars

Amount (in Rs.)

Authorised Share Capital

48,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 97,00,00,000
Total 97,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

27,66,52,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 55,33,04,000
Total 55,33,04,000

. Pre-scheme & Post-scheme shareholding pattern of Amalgamated Company as

on September 30, 2021:
Category of No. of shares held Total shareholding as a
shareholder % of total no. of shares
Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme | Pre- Post-
Scheme Scheme
Promoter and 9,20,23,870 9,20,23,870 36.84% 33.26%

Promoter Group

Total shareholding of | 9,20,23,870 9,20,23,870 36.84% 33.26%
Promoter and
Promoter Group (A)
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Public Shareholding 15,77,68,130 | 18,46,28,130 | 63.16% 66.74%
Total Public 15,77,68,130 | 18,46,28,130 | 63.16% 66.74%
Shareholding (B)

Total (A)+(B) 24,97,92,000 | 27,66,52,000 | 100.00% 100.00%

Pre-scheme & Post-scheme capital structure of Amalgamating Company 1 as on

September 30, 2021:

Pre-scheme:

Particulars

Amount (in Rs.)

Authorised Share Capital

70,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 7,00,00,000
Total 7,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

58,95,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 5,89,50,000
Total 5,89,50,000

as on September 30, 2021:

Pre-Scheme:

. Pre-scheme & Post-scheme shareholding pattern of Amalgamating Company 1

Category | Category of Shareholders Pre Scheme
Code Shareholding Pattern
Total No. of Asa
Shares percentage of
total Capital
(A) Promoter and Promoter Group 5,895,000 100.00%
APL Apollo Tubes Limited 5,895,000 100.00%
(B) Public Shareholders - 0.00%
©) Non-Promoter Non - Public o
Shareholders 0.00%
TOTAL (A) + (B) + (C) 5,895,000 100.00%
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Post-scheme capital structure and shareholding pattern of the Amalgamating

Company 1 is not applicable, as the Amalgamating Company 1 shall be dissolved

upon the Scheme becoming effective.

Pre-scheme & Post-scheme capital structure of Amalgamating Company 2 as on

September 30, 2021:

Particulars

Amount (in Rs.)

Authorised Share Capital

7,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 15,00,00,000
Total 15,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

6,08,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 12,16,00,000
Total 12,16,00,000

Pre-scheme & Post-scheme shareholding pattern of Amalgamating Company 2

as on September 30, 2021:

Pre-scheme:

Category of shareholder No. of shares Total shareholding as a
held % of total no. of shares

Promoter and Promoter Group 3,39,40,000 55.82%

Total shareholding of Promoter 3,39,40,000 55.82%

and Promoter Group (A)

Public Shareholding 2,68,60,000 44.18%

Total Public Shareholding (B) 2,68,60,000 44.18%

Total (A)+(B) 60,800,000 100.00%

40




10.

11.

Post-scheme capital structure and shareholding pattern of the Amalgamating
Company 2 is not applicable, as the Amalgamating Company 2 shall be dissolved

upon the Scheme becoming effective.

The copy of Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement has been filed with the Registrar of

Companies, Delhi.

No winding up proceedings or proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code are
pending against the Amalgamating Company 1, Amalgamating Company 2 and

Amalgamated Company as on date.

The certificate is issued by the Statutory Auditor of the Amalgamating Company 1,
Amalgamating Company 2 and Amalgamated Company to the effect that the accounting
treatment, proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the applicable Accounting
Standards/Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with

relevant rules thereto. The auditor’s certificate stated above is available for inspection.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited vide its observation letter issued to Amalgamated

Company dated August 02, 2021 had provided, infer alia, below comments on the Scheme:-

“The Company shall ensure that following information pertaining to the promoters of APL
Apollo Tubes Limited is brought to the notice of shareholders and Hon’ble NCLT:

i. SEBI had vide orders dated June 23, 2020, restrained APL Infrastructure Private Limited,
Promoter of APL Apollo Tubes Limited, and Sanjay Gupta, Director and Promoter of APL
Apollo Tubes Limited, from accessing the securities market for a period of two years from
the date of order for alleged contravention of provisions relating to SEBI (Prohibition of
Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to Securities Market) Regulations, 2003.”

It may be noted that the operation of the said SEBI orders have since been stayed by the
Hon’ble Securities Appellate Tribunal vide orders dated July 14, 2020 on the respective
appeals filed by the above promoters.

The following documents will be open for inspection by the shareholders electronically up to
the date of the ensuing Meeting and during the Meeting hours and physically at the
Registered Office of Amalgamated Company situated at 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg,
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Delhi — 110092 on all working days except Saturdays and Sundays between 11:00 A.M. IST
and 1:00 P.M. IST up to the date of the ensuing Meeting:

(I) Annexures to this Notice:

a. Annexure-I - Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement between Shri Lakshmi
Metal Udyog Limited, Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited and APL Apollo Tubes Limited

and their respective shareholders and creditors

b. Annexure-II — Copy of order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal in

pursuance of which the meeting is being convened

c. Annexure-III - Valuation Report issued by SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants
dated February 27, 2021

d. Annexure-IV - Fairness Opinion issued by Fortress Capital Management Services

Private Limited dated February 27, 2021

e. Annexure-V - Complaints Report dated July 07, 2021 submitted to BSE Limited by
Amalgamating Company 2 and Amalgamated Company and Complaints Report dated
July 22, 2021 submitted to National Stock Exchange of India Limited by
Amalgamated Company.

f. Annexure-VI — Observation Letters both dated August 02, 2021 obtained from BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited

g. Annexure-VII — Report adopted by the Board of Directors Shri Lakshmi Metal
Udyog Limited, Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited and APL Apollo Tubes Limited as per
the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

h. Annexure-VIII - Copy of audited financial statements of Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog
Limited, Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited and APL Apollo Tubes Limited as at March
31,2021

i. Annexure-IX - Copy of limited reviewed financial statements of Apollo Tricoat
Tubes Limited and APL Apollo Tubes Limited (provisional) as on September 30,
2021 and management certified financial statements (provisional) of Shri Lakshmi

Metal Udyog Limited as on September 30, 2021
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J. Annexure-X - Information in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus pertaining
to the unlisted entity i.e., Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited involved in the
Scheme as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009

(I) Other documents:

a. Copy of the Statutory Auditors’ certificate of Amalgamating Company 1,
Amalgamating Company 2 and Amalgamated Company to the effect that the
accounting treatment in the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement is in
conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013

b. Copies of the Memorandum of Association, Articles of Association and Certificate of
Incorporation of the Amalgamating Company 1, Amalgamating Company 2 and

Amalgamated Company

c. Copy of Audit Committee Report dated February 27, 2021 of Amalgamated Company

recommending Scheme of the Amalgamated Company

d. Copy of Audit Committee Report dated February 27, 2021 of Amalgamating

Company 2 recommending Scheme of the Amalgamating Company

e. Copy of Committee of Independent Directors Report dated February 27, 2021 of

Amalgamated Company recommending Scheme of the Amalgamated Company

f. Copy of Committee of Independent Directors Report dated February 27, 2021 of

Amalgamating Company 2 recommending Scheme of the Amalgamating Company

g. Copies of the resolutions passed by the respective Board of Directors of the
Amalgamating Company 1, Amalgamating Company 2 and Amalgamated Company

on February 27, 2021 approving the Scheme

43



h. A copy of the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement and Explanatory Statement
may also be obtained from the Registered Office of the Amalgamated Company and /
or at the office of the Agarwal Law Associates, 34, FF, Babar Lane, Bengali Market,
New Delhi-110001.

Sd/-

Ms. Deepa Krishan

Former Member (Technical), NCLT
The Chairperson for the Meeting

Date : 27™ day of December, 2021
Place : Delhi

Registered Office:
37, Hargobind Enclave,
Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092

India
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SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION AND ARRANGEMENT

OF

SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
(AMALGAMATING COMPANY 1)

AND

APOLLO TRICOAT TUBES LIMITED
(AMALGAMATING COMPANY 2)

WITH

APL APOLLO TUBES LIMITED
(AMALGAMATED COMPANY)

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER RELEVANT PROVISIONS OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013
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1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

PREAMBLE

DESCRIPTION OF THE AMALGAMATING COMPANIES AND THE
AMALGAMATED COMPANY

Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Shri Lakshmi” or
“Amalgamating Company 1”) was incorporated on the 25" day of April 1994 as a company
limited by shares. The Corporate Identification Number of Amalgamating Company 1 is
U85110DL1994PLC224835.

The Registered Office of Amalgamating Company 1 is situated at 37, Hargobind Enclave,
Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092 and having permanent account number (‘PAN’) as
AAHCS9174M. Email id of its authorized representative is comsec@aplapollo.com.

Amalgamating Company 1 is primarily engaged in the business of production of ERW steel

tubes and GP coils.

Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Apollo Tricoat” or
“Amalgamating Company 2”) was incorporated on the 12" day of January 1983 as a
company limited by shares. The Corporate Identification Number of Amalgamating Company
2 is L74900DL1983PLC014972. The equity shares of Amalgamating Company 2 are listed
on BSE Limited.

The Registered Office of Amalgamating Company 2 is situated at 37, Hargobind Enclave,
Vikas Marg, Delhi — 110092 and having PAN as AAFCP5174L. Email id of its authorized

representative is surbhiarora@apollotricoat.com.

Amalgamating Company 2 is primarily engaged in business of production of steel designer

roofing, fencing, steel door-frames, designer hand railing etc.

APL Apollo Tubes Limited (hereinafter referred to as “APL Apollo” or “Amalgamated
Company”), was incorporated on the 24™ day of February 1986 as a company limited by
shares. The Corporate Identification Number of Amalgamated Company is
L74899DL1986PLC023443. The equity shares of APL Apollo are listed on National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (hereinafter called ‘NSE’) and BSE Limited (hereinafter called
‘BSE’)
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2.1

2.2

The Registered Office of Amalgamated Company is situated at 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas
Marg, Delhi — 110092 and having PAN as AAACB0906D. Email id of its authorized

representative is comsec@aplapollo.com.

Amalgamated Company is primarily engaged in in the business of production of ERW steel

tubes.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHEME
This Scheme (as defined hereunder) provides, inter alia, for:

(i) the amalgamation of Amalgamating Companies (as defined hereunder) into
Amalgamated Company, by way of merger by absorption and dissolution of
Amalgamating Companies without winding up and cancellation of shares in
Amalgamating Companies and consequent issuance of Amalgamated Company Shares
(as defined hereunder) in accordance with the Share Exchange Ratio (as defined
hereunder) to Eligible Members (as defined hereunder), in respect of each share of
the Amalgamating Company 2 held by them in accordance with this Scheme

("Amalgamation"); and

(i1) various other matters incidental, consequential or otherwise integrally connected

therewith, including increase in the share capital of Amalgamating Companies

pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of The Act (as defined
hereunder) in the manner provided for in this Scheme and in compliance with the

provisions of the IT Act (as defined hereunder).

Amalgamation of Amalgamating Companies into Amalgamated Company shall be in full
compliance with the conditions relating to "amalgamation" as provided under Section 2(1B)

and other related provisions of the IT Act such that, inter alia:

(1)  all the properties of Amalgamating Companies, immediately before Amalgamation,

shall become the properties of Amalgamated Company, by virtue of Amalgamation;

(i1) all the liabilities of Amalgamating Companies, immediately before Amalgamation,
shall become the liabilities of Amalgamated Company, by virtue of Amalgamation;

and
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(iii) shareholders holding at least three fourths in value of the shares in Amalgamating
Companies (other than shares already held therein immediately before the
amalgamation by, or by a nominee for, Amalgamated Company or its subsidiary),

will become shareholders of Amalgamated Company by virtue of Amalgamation.

PURPOSE AND RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION AND
ARRANGEMENT

This scheme of amalgamation and arrangement (“Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this
Scheme”) provides for amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating
Company 2 (Collectively referred to as “Amalgamating Companies”) into and with
Amalgamated Company in the manner set out in the Scheme, in accordance with sections 230
to 232 and other applicable provisions of The Act (as defined hereunder) and the rules or

regulations framed thereunder.

Amalgamating Company 1 is a wholly owned subsidiary of Amalgamated Company and
Amalgamating Company 2 is a subsidiary of Amalgamating Company 1. The Scheme seeks
to undertake the amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company 2

with Amalgamated Company.

The proposed amalgamation of Amalgamating Companies with Amalgamated Company is in

the interest of shareholders and creditors on account of following reasons:

(a) Combined business under “APL Apollo” brand resulting in wider product offerings and
geographical footprint thereby leading toa stronger market presence which is best
suitable for long term growth market;

(b) Amalgamation shall result in consolidation of the respective operations served by one
platform thereby leveraging the capability of Amalgamated Company;

(¢) Amalgamating Companies operate businesses that complement each other, the
combination to result in stronger consolidated revenue and profitability, with
diversification in product portfolio thereby reducing business risks for mutual benefit of
the shareholders of the companies;

(d) Ensuring a streamlined group structure by reducing the number of legal entities in the
group structure, and thereby eliminating inter-company transactions, administrative
duplications and consequently reducing the administrative costs of maintaining separate

companies;
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(e) Pooling of assets, proprietary information, personnel, financial, managerial and
technical resources of the companies, thereby contributing to the future growth of
Amalgamated Company; and

(f)  Overall reduction in administrative, managerial and other expenditure and achieving
productivity gains and logistical advantages by pooling technologies for optimum

utilization of various resources.

The Scheme would, thus, have beneficial results for Amalgamating Companies and
Amalgamated Company, their shareholders, and all concerned and will not be prejudicial to

the interests of any concerned shareholders or general public at large.

Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement proposed to be entered into with the creditors,
either secured and/or unsecured of Amalgamating Companies and/or Amalgamated Company.
No compromise is offered under this Scheme to any of the creditors of Amalgamating
Companies and/or Amalgamated Company. The liability of the creditors of Amalgamating
Companies and/or Amalgamated Company, under the Scheme, is neither being reduced nor
being extinguished but shall be assumed and discharged by Amalgamated Company in its

ordinary course of business.

Accordingly, to achieve the above objectives, the Board of Directors of Amalgamating
Companies and Amalgamated Company have considered and proposed to make requisite
application(s) and/or petition(s) before the NCLT (as defined hereunder), New Delhi under
sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of The Act (as defined hereunder) (as may
be in force) for the sanction of this Scheme to amalgamate Amalgamating Companies into

and with Amalgamated Company.

PARTS OF THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION AND ARRANGEMENT

The Scheme is divided into the following parts:

Part I, which deals with the definitions and interpretations of the terms used in the Scheme;
the Effective Date of the Scheme; and the Share Capital of Amalgamating Companies and
Amalgamated Company;

Part II, deals with amalgamation of Amalgamating Companies with APL Apollo in

accordance with Section 2(1B) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and Sections 230 to 232 and other

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as may be applicable;
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Part III, which deals with the consideration, changes in share capital and matters relating to

accounting;

Part IV, which deals with the general terms and conditions that would be applicable to the

Scheme.

The Scheme also provides for various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally

connected herewith.
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5.1
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5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

PART -1

DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following words and

expressions shall have the following meaning:

“Act” or “The Act” means the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable, including the
rules and regulations made thereunder and will include circulars, notifications, guidelines and
any statutory modifications, re-enactments and / or amendments thereof for the time being in

force;

“Amalgamating Companies” means Shri Lakshmi and Apollo Tricoat collectively, which

are proposed to be amalgamated into APL Apollo;

“Amalgamating Company 2 Shares” means fully paid up equity shares of Amalgamating
Company 2, each having a face value of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) and one vote per

equity share;

“Amalgamated Company” means APL Apollo;

“Amalgamated Company Shares” means fully paid up equity shares of Amalgamating
Company, each having a face value of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two only) and one vote per

equity share;

“Applicable Laws” mean any statute, law, regulation, ordinance, rule, judgment, rule of law,
order, decree, ruling, bye-law, approval of any governmental authority, directive, guideline,
policy, clearance, requirement or other governmental restriction or any similar form of
decision of or determination by, or any interpretation or administration having the force of
law of any of the foregoing by any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the matter

in question, whether in effect as of the date of this Scheme or at any time thereafter;

“Appointed Date” means the 1* day of April, 2021 or such other date as may be fixed by the
Hon’ble NCLT of judicature at Delhi, or such other competent authority, as may be
applicable;

“Appropriate Authority” means any applicable central, state or local government,
legislative body, regulatory, administrative or statutory authority, agency or commission or

department or public or judicial body or authority, including, but not limited, to Securities and
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59

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges, Regional Director, Official Liquidator, Registrar

of Companies and National Company Law Tribunal;

“Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Board of Directors of Amalgamating
Companies or Amalgamated Company, as the case may be and includes any committee

thereof or persons authorised by the Board or committee thereof;

“BSE” means BSE Limited;

“Effective Date” means the later of the dates on which certified copy of the order of the
NCLT sanctioning this Scheme is filed with the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and
Haryana by Amalgamated Company and Amalgamating Companies, as required under the
provisions of the Act. Any references in the Scheme to "upon the Scheme becoming
effective" or "effectiveness of the Scheme" or "Scheme coming into effect" shall mean the

"Effective Date";

“Eligible Member” shall mean each person (other than Shri Lakshmi) whose name appears
in the register of members of Amalgamating Company 2 and/or whose name appears as the
beneficial owner of Amalgamating Company 2 Shares in the record of depositories on the

Record Date at the Record Time;

“IT Act” shall mean the Income Tax Act, 1961 or any modifications or re-enactments or

amendments thereof from time to time;

“IND-AS” means the accounting standards prescribed under the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended

“Intellectual Property Rights” means rights of any patent, copyright, trademark or service
mark, trade secret, trade dress and packaging material and styles, 1ogos, colour schemes,
product registrations owned by or licensed to Amalgamating Companies or any other

proprietary rights protection legally available under common law or otherwise.

“NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi or any other
Bench of the NCLT having jurisdiction in relation to both Amalgamating Companies and

Amalgamated Company;

“NSE” means the National Stock Exchange of India Limited;
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5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

“Record date” shall mean the date fixed by the respective Board of Amalgamating Company
2 and Amalgamated Company for the purpose of determining the shareholders of
Amalgamating Company 2 to whom Amalgamated Company Shares shall be allotted under

this Scheme;

"Record Time" means 6:00 pm (Indian Time) on the Record Date;

“Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement” or “Scheme” means this scheme of
amalgamation and arrangement involving the amalgamation of Amalgamating Companies

with Amalgamated Company as approved, with or without any amendments/modifications;

“SEBI” means Securities and Exchange Board of India;

“SEBI Circular” means the circular issued by the SEBI, being Circular Ref. No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/215 dated
November 3, 2020, SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020 and any
amendments thereof or modifications issued pursuant to Regulations 11, 3 7 and 94 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
LODR”);

“Share Exchange Ratio” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 16.2;

“Stock Exchanges” means BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

EXPRESSIONS NOT DEFINED IN THIS SCHEME

The expressions which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this Scheme, shall, unless
repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning hereof, have the same meaning ascribed to
them under the Act and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be,

or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from time to time.

DATE OF COMING INTO EFFECT

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) approved or
imposed or directed by the Tribunal or any other appropriate authority shall come into legal
operation from the Appointed Date, but the same shall become effective on and from the

Effective Date.
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7. DETAILS OF SHARE CAPITAL, DIRECTORS AND PROMOTERS

7.1 Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited (‘Shri Lakshmi’ or ‘Amalgamating Company 1°)

7.1.1  The share capital of Amalgamating Company 1 as on December 31, 2020 is as under:

Particulars (Amount in INR)
Authorised Share Capital

70,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 7,00,00,000
Total 7,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

58,95,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 5,89,50,000
Total 5,89,50,000

Subsequent to December 31, 2020 and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the

Board of Directors of Amalgamating Company 1, there has been no change in the issued,

subscribed or paid up capital of Amalgamating Company 1.

The entire paid up share capital of Amalgamating Company 1 is held by Amalgamated

Company and its nominees.

7.1.2  List of directors as on date

City, Sector 5, Gurgaon,

Haryana-122003

S. Name Address DIN No. Date of
No. Appointment
1 Sanjay Gupta 106, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas 00233188 28/04/2008
Marg, Delhi 110092

2 Vinay Gupta 106, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas 00005149 29/09/2009
Marg, Delhi 110092

3 Neeru Abrol K-3 Lajpat Nagar —III, New 01279485 08/11/2019
Delhi-110024

4 Romi Sehgal E-103, The Residency, Ardee 03320454 24/05/2018
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7.1.3  List of promoters as on date
S. No. Name Address
1 APL Apollo Tubes Ltd 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi —

110092

7.2 Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (‘Apollo Tricoat’ or ‘Amalgamating Company 2°)

7.2.1  The share capital of Amalgamating Company 2 as on December 31, 2020 is as under:

Particulars (Amount in INR)
Authorised Share Capital

3,25,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 2/- each 6,50,00,000
Total 6,50,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

3,04,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 2/- each 6,08,00,000
Total 6,08,00,000

Subsequent to December 31, 2020 and till date of the Scheme being approved by the Board of

Directors of Amalgamating Company 2, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed or

paid up capital of Amalgamating Company 2.

Amalgamating Company 1 holds 55.82% in paid up share capital of Amalgamating Company

2.

7.2.2 List of directors as on date

S. Name Address DIN No. Date of
No. Appointment
1 Rahul Gupta G-8, Maharani Bagh, Phase I, 07151792 04/05/2018

Delhi-110065
2 Vinay Gupta 106, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas 00005149 23/10/2020
Marg, Delhi 110092
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S. Name Address DIN No. Date of
No. Appointment
3 Bharat Bhushan B-22, Dayanand Colony, 00014334 28/02/2014

Sahny Lajpat Nagar- 4, New Delhi-
110024
4 Neeru Abrol K-3, Lajpat Nagar-3, Delhi- 01279485 20/01/2020
110024
5 Romi Sehgal E-103, The Residency, Adree 03320454 01/02/2020
City, Sector 52 Gurgaon,
Haryanal22003
6 Anilkumar Bansal | S-34, Greater Kailash-II, 06752578 11/06/2018
Delhi-110048
7.2.3 List of promoters as on date
S. No. Name Address
1 Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited | 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi —
110092
2 Rahul Gupta G-8, Maharani Bagh, Phase I, Delhi-110065

7.3 APL Apollo Tubes Ltd (‘APL Apollo’ or ‘Amalgamated Company’)

7.3.1 The share capital of Amalgamated Company as on December 31, 2020 is as under

Particulars (Amount in INR)
Authorised Share Capital

22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 2/- each 45,00,00,000
Total 45,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital*

12,47,84,125 Equity Shares of INR 2/- each 24,95,68,250
Total 24,95,68,250

56




Subsequent to December 31, 2020 and till the date of Scheme being approved by the Board of

Directors of Amalgamated Company, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed or

paid up capital of Amalgamated Company.

ertain employee stock options granted to the employees o, [pollo may get exercise
* Certai / k opti d to th / APL Apoll ised

before the effectiveness of the Scheme, as the case may be. The details of the unexercised

employee stock options (net of cancellation) of employees of APL Apollo as on December 31,

2020 are set out below:
Unexercised Employee Stock Options (Amount in INR)
5,49,875 options entitling equivalent Equity Shares of INR 2 10,99,750
each
Total 10,99,750
7.3.2 List of directors as on date
S. Name Address DIN No. Date of
No. Appointment
1 Sanjay Gupta 106, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas 00233188 02/09/2003
Marg, Delhi 110092
2 Vinay Gupta 106, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas 00005149 16/05/2008
Marg, Delhi 110092
3 Virendra Singh B-12, 'Saket', 2nd Floor Gyan 00253196 28/01/2017
Jain Bharti School Lane, South
Delhi-110017
4 Neeru Abrol K-3 Lajpat Nagar —III, New 01279485 24/03/2015
Delhi-110024
5 Abhilash Lal H. No. C-192, DLF Ph-2, 03203177 12/02/2014
Belvedere Park Towers,
Gurgaon-122002
6 Romi Sehgal E-103, The Residency, Ardee 03320454 13/08/2016
City, Sector 5, Gurgaon,
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No.

Name Address

DIN No. Date of

Appointment

Haryana -122003

7 Anilkumar Bansal | S-34, Greater Kailash, New 06752578 04/08/2014
Delhi — 110048
8 Ashok Kumar C-380, Yojna Vihar, Delhi, 01722395 19/10/2011
Gupta 110092

7.3.3 List of promoters as on date

S. No. Name Address

1 Sanjay Gupta 106, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi 110
092

2 Veera Gupta C-380, Yojna Vihar, Delhi, 110092, Delhi

3 Rahul Gupta G-8, Maharani Bagh, Phase I, Delhi-110065

4 Rohan Gupta 106, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi 110
092

5 APL Infrastructure Private Limited | 36, Kaushambi, Near Anand Vihar Terminal
behind Wave Cinema Ghaziabad UP 201010

6 Ashok Kumar Gupta C-380, Yojna Vihar, Delhi, 110092
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8.1

8.2

PART - 11

AMALGAMATION OF SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED AND APOLLO

TRICOAT TUBES LIMITED WITH AND INTO
APL APOLLO TUBES LIMITED

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE AMALGAMATING COMPANIES

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from Appointed Date (after giving
effect to the clause 8 of this Scheme), Amalgamating Companies shall, pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and sanction of this Scheme by Tribunal and
other applicable provisions of the law for the time being in force and without any further act,
mstrument or deed, stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to have been transferred to
and vested in Amalgamated Company on and from the Appointed Date, on a going concern,
in such a way that from the Appointed Date, the assets and liabilities of Amalgamating
Companies along with all the rights, title, interest or obligations of Amalgamating Companies

therein become that of Amalgamated Company.

Without prejudice to sub-clause 8.1 above, upon the coming into effect of the Scheme and

with effect from the Appointed Date, the transfer and vesting shall be effected as follows

(a) All the movable assets including investments, cash in hand, bank balances and deposits
any, of Amalgamating Companies capable of being transferred by delivery, shall be
handed over by physical delivery to Amalgamated Company along with such other
documents as may be necessary towards the end and intent that the property therein
passes to Amalgamated Company on such delivery, without requiring any deed or
instrument of conveyance for the same and shall become the property of Amalgamated

Company accordingly.

(b)  All debts, loans and advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received,
if any, with Government, Customs, Port, local and other authorities and bodies,
customers and other persons, outstanding and receivables of Amalgamating Companies
other than the movable assets specified in sub-clause (a) above, shall on and from
Appointed Date stand transferred to and vested in Amalgamated Company without any
notice or other intimation to the debtors (although Amalgamated Company may, if so
deems appropriate, give notice to the third party that the debts, outstanding and

receivables do stand transferred to and vested in Amalgamated Company), and the
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(c)

(d)

debtors shall be obliged to make payments to Amalgamated Company on and after the

Effective Date.

All immovable properties including land together with the buildings and structures
standing thereon or under construction (whether free hold, leasehold, leave and licensed
or otherwise, including tenancies in relation to warehouses, office space and guest
houses and residential premises occupied by the staff and employees of Amalgamating
Companies), and all documents of title, rights and easements in relation thereto and all
rights, covenants, continuing rights, title and interest in connection with the said
immovable properties of Amalgamating Companies, if any, shall be vested in and
transferred to and/or be deemed to have been and stand transferred to and vested in
Amalgamated Company and shall belong to Amalgamated Company in the same and
like manner as was entitled to Amalgamating Companies. The mutation of the title to
the immovable properties shall be made and duly recorded by the appropriate
authorities pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme and upon the Scheme becoming
effective, in accordance with the terms hereof, in favour of Amalgamated Company.
Any inchoate title or possessory title of Amalgamating Companies shall be deemed to

be the title of Amalgamated Company.

For purposes of taking on record the name of Amalgamated Company in the records of
the Governmental Authorities in respect of transfer of immovable properties to
Amalgamated Company pursuant to this Scheme, the Boards of Directors of
Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company may approve the execution of
such documents or deeds as may be necessary, including deed of assignment of lease or
leave or license (as the case may be) by Amalgamating Companies in favor of

Amalgamated Company.

All the licenses, permits, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives (including
service tax refunds and accumulated, Goods and Services Tax Credit, Integrated Goods
and Services Tax Credit, Central Goods and Services Tax Credit, State Goods and
Services Tax Credit and Cenvat credit), tax deferrals and benefits (including income
tax, sales tax, customs duty, advance tax, withholding tax receivables, other tax
exemptions and/or deferments, amount of tax deposited under protest, bonds with the
custom authorities), concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, special
status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of
by Amalgamating Companies and all rights and benefits that have accrued or which

may accrue to Amalgamating Companies, whether before or after the Appointed Date,
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(e)

()

(2

shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested
in and or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in and be available to
Amalgamated Company so as to become as and from the Appointed Date licenses,
permits, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives (including Goods and Services
Tax, 2017, Integrated Goods and Services Tax, 2017, Central Goods and Services Tax,
2017, State Goods and Services Tax, 2017 and Cenvat credit, service tax refunds and
accumulated Cenvat credit), tax deferrals and benefits (including income tax, sales tax,
customs duty, advance tax, withholding tax receivables, concessions, rights, claims,
leases, tenancy rights, special status and other benefits or privileges) of Amalgamated
Company and shall remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same terms and

conditions.

All assets and properties including memberships, franchises, rights, permissions,
quotas, rights, entitlements, licenses, certificate of registrations, copyrights, patents,
trade names, trademarks, any other intellectual property, whether registered or
otherwise, of Amalgamating Companies as on the Appointed Date, whether or not
included in the books of Amalgamating Companies, shall be deemed to be and shall
become the assets and properties of Amalgamated Company by virtue of and in the
manner provided in this Scheme without any further act, instrument or deed, and stand
transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in

Amalgamated Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this
Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other
instruments of whatsoever nature, to which Amalgamating Companies are a party or to
the benefit of which Amalgamating Companies may be eligible or for the obligations of
which Amalgamating Companies may be liable, and which are subsisting or have effect
immediately before the Appointed Date, shall continue in full force and effect on or
against or in favour, as the case may be, of Amalgamated Company and may be
enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of Amalgamating Companies,

Amalgamated Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto.

All debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties, indemnifications given pursuant to
any agreement entered into by Amalgamating Companies and obligations of every kind,
nature and description of Amalgamating Companies shall also, without any further act,
instrument or deed, be transferred to or be deemed to be transferred to Amalgamated

Company so as to become as and from Appointed Date the debts, liabilities, contingent

61



(h)

G

(k)

liabilities, duties and obligations of Amalgamated Company and it shall not be
necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other person who is a party to any
contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities,
duties, indemnifications and obligations have arisen, in order to give effect to the

provisions of this sub-clause.

The transfer and vesting of Amalgamating Companies as aforesaid, shall be subject to
the existing securities, charges and mortgages, if any, subsisting over or in respect of
the property and assets or any part thereof of Amalgamating Companies. Provided
however that the securities, charges and mortgages (if any subsisting) over and in
respect of the assets or any part thereof of Amalgamated Company shall continue with
respect to such assets or part thereof and this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge such
securities, charges or mortgages to the end and intent that such securities, charges and
mortgages shall not extend or be deemed to extend, to any of the assets of

Amalgamating Companies vested in Amalgamated Company.

Provided further that this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan,
deposit or facility created by Amalgamating Companies which shall vest in
Amalgamated Company by virtue of the amalgamation of Amalgamating Companies
with Amalgamated Company and Amalgamated Company shall not be obliged to create

any further or additional security therefore after the Scheme has become operative.

Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing clauses, Amalgamated
Company shall execute any instrument/s and/or document/s and/or do all the acts and
deeds as may be required, including the filing of necessary particulars and/or
modification(s) of charge, with the jurisdictional registrar of companies to give formal

effect to the above provisions, if required.

It is hereby clarified that, unless expressly provided for, it shall not be necessary to
obtain the consent of any third party or other person who is a party to any contract or
arrangement by virtue of which such debts and liabilities, have arisen, in order to give

effect to the provisions of this clause.
Subject to the necessary consents being obtained, if required, in accordance with the

terms of this Scheme, the provisions of this clause shall operate, notwithstanding

anything to the contrary contained in any instrument, deed or writing or the terms of
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8.3

8.4

8.5

sanction or issue or any security document, all of which instruments, deeds or writings

shall stand modified and/or superseded by the foregoing provisions.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme, Amalgamated Company may, at
any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof,
if so required under any law or otherwise, execute deeds (including deeds of adherence),
confirmations or other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract or
arrangement to which Amalgamating Companies are a party or any writings as may be
necessary to be executed in order to give formal effect to the above provisions. Amalgamated
Company shall, under the provisions of Clause 8 of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorised
to execute any such writings as a successor of Amalgamating Companies and to carry out or
perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of Amalgamating

Companies to be carried out or performed.

For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is
clarified that upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to Applicable Law, all
consents, permissions, licenses, certificates, clearances, authorities, powers of attorney given
by, issued to or executed in favour of Amalgamating Companies shall stand transferred to
Amalgamated Company as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in
favour of Amalgamated Company, and Amalgamated Company shall be bound by the terms
thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same
shall be available to Amalgamated Company. Amalgamated Company shall make

applications to any Governmental Authority as may be necessary in this behalf.

Where any of the liabilities and obligations of Amalgamating Companies as on the Appointed
Date, deemed to have been transferred to Amalgamated Company have been discharged by
Amalgamating Companies after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such
discharge shall be deemed to have been for and on account of Amalgamated Company and all
loans raised and used and all liabilities and obligations incurred by Amalgamating Companies
for the operation of Amalgamating Companies after the Appointed Date and prior to the
Effective Date shall be deemed to have been raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of
Amalgamated Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall
also without any further act or deed, be and shall stand transferred to Amalgamated Company

and shall become its liabilities and obligations from such date.

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY IN TRUST
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10.

10.1

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme and from the Appointed Date and up to and

including the Effective Date:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amalgamating Companies shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on the business
and activities and shall stand possessed of all the assets and properties, in trust for

Amalgamated Company and shall account for the same to Amalgamated Company.

Any income or profit accruing or arising to Amalgamating Companies, as the case may
be, and all costs, charges, expenses and losses or taxes (including deferred tax balances,
if any) incurred by Amalgamating Companies shall for all purposes be treated as the
income, profits, costs, charges, expenses and losses or taxes (including deferred tax

balances, if any), as the case may be, of Amalgamated Company.

Any of the rights, powers, authorities and privileges attached or related or pertaining to
and exercised by or available to Amalgamating Companies shall be deemed to have
been exercised by Amalgamating Companies for and on behalf of and as agent for
Amalgamated Company. Similarly, any of the obligations, duties and commitments
attached, related or pertaining to Amalgamating Companies that have been undertaken
or discharged by Amalgamating Companies shall be deemed to have been undertaken

or discharged for and on behalf of and as agent for Amalgamated Company.

(d) All the acts done by Amalgamating Companies after the Appointed Date shall be done

in trust for and on behalf of Amalgamated Company.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS TILL THE EFFECTIVE DATE

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amalgamating Companies shall carry on their business with reasonable diligence and

in the same manner as it had been doing hitherto.

Amalgamating Companies shall not alter or substantially expand the business except

with the written concurrence of Amalgamated Company.
Amalgamating Companies shall not, without the written concurrence of Amalgamated

Company, transfer, alienate, charge, mortgage or encumber any of its assets or

properties, except in the ordinary course of business or pursuant to any pre-existing
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10.2

11.

obligation undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of the Scheme by the Board of

Directors of Amalgamating Companies.

(d) Amalgamating Companies shall not undertake any additional financial commitments of
any nature whatsoever, borrow any amounts or incur any other liabilities or
expenditure, issue any guarantees, indemnities, letters of comfort or commitment either
for itself or on behalf of its group companies or any third party, save and except, in
each case, in the following circumstances:

1. If the same is in the ordinary course of business as carried on by Amalgamating
Companies as on the date of filing this Scheme with Tribunal; or
ii. If the written consent of Amalgamated Company, as the case may be, has been

obtained.

(e) Amalgamating Companies shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme by
Tribunal, to apply to the Central Government and all other agencies, departments and
authorities concerned as are necessary under any law for such consents, approvals and
sanctions which Amalgamated Company may require to own and carry on the business

of Amalgamating Companies.

On the Effective Date but with effect from the Appointed Date, Amalgamated Company shall

be authorized to carry on the businesses carried on by Amalgamating Companies

COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

This provisions of this Scheme as they relate to the amalgamation of Amalgamating
Companies into and with Amalgamated Company, have been drawn up to comply with the
conditions relating to “Amalgamation” as defined under the income-tax laws, specifically
section 2(1B) of IT Act. If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are found to be or
interpreted to be inconsistent with any of the said provisions at a later date, whether as a result
of any amendment of law or any judicial or executive interpretation or for any other reason
whatsoever, the aforesaid provisions of the income-tax laws shall prevail. The Scheme shall
then stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with the said provisions.
Such modification will however not affect other parts of the Scheme. Notwithstanding the
other provisions of this Scheme, the power to make such amendments as may become
necessary shall vest with the Board of Amalgamated Company, which power shall be
exercised reasonably in the best interests of the companies and their stakeholders, and which

power can be exercised at any time, whether before or after the Effective Date.
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12.

13.

LEGAL AND TAXATION PROCEEDINGS

(1) Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all legal, taxation or other
proceedings, whether civil or criminal (including before any statutory or quasi-
judicial authority or tribunal or courts), by or against Amalgamating Companies,
under any statute, pending on the Appointed Date, shall be continued and
enforced by or against Amalgamated Company as effectually and in the same
manner and to the same extent as if the same had been instituted by or against, as

the case may be, Amalgamated Company.

(i)  Amalgamated Company shall have all legal, taxation or other proceedings initiated
by or against Amalgamating Companies referred to in Clause 12 (i) above
transferred to its name as soon as is reasonably possible after the Appointed Date
and to have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against

Amalgamated Company, as a successor of Amalgamating Companies.

CONTRACTS AND DEEDS

Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements,
insurance policies and other instruments, if any, of whatsoever nature to which Amalgamating
Companies is a party and subsisting or having effect on the Effective Date shall be in full
force and effect against or in favour of Amalgamated Company, as the case may be, and may
be enforced by or against Amalgamated Company as fully and effectually as if, instead of
Amalgamating Companies, Amalgamated Company had been a party thereto. Amalgamated
Company may enter into and/ or issue and/ or execute deeds, writings or confirmations or
enter into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations or novations, to which Amalgamating
Companies will, if necessary, also be party in order to give formal effect to the provisions of
this Scheme, if so required or if so considered necessary. Amalgamated Company shall be
deemed to be authorised to execute any such deeds, writings or confirmations on behalf of
Amalgamating Companies and to implement or carry out all formalities required on the part
of Amalgamating Companies to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme. It is clarified that
any inter-se contracts between Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company, as on

the Effective Date shall stand cancelled and cease to operate in Amalgamated Company.
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14.

14.1

14.2

15.

15.1

STAFF AND EMPLOYEES

On the Scheme coming into effect, all staff and employees of Amalgamating Companies in
service on such date shall be deemed to have become staff and employees of Amalgamated
Company without any break, discontinuance or interruption in their service and on the basis
of continuity of service and the terms and conditions of their employment with Amalgamated
Company shall not be less favourable than those applicable to them with reference to

Amalgamating Companies on the Effective Date.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the existing balances of Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund,
Leave Encashment scheme and/ or other schemes, created by Amalgamating Companies for
its employees shall be transferred to Amalgamated Company. Amalgamating Companies shall
take all steps necessary for the transfer of balances, where applicable, of the Provident Fund,
Gratuity Fund, Leave Encashment scheme and/ or other schemes, to Amalgamated Company.
All obligations of Amalgamating Companies with regard to the said fund or funds as defined
in the relevant rules shall be taken over by Amalgamated Company from the Effective Date to
the end and intent that all rights, duties, powers and obligations of Amalgamating Companies
in relation to such Fund or Funds shall become those of Amalgamated Company and all the
rights, duties and benefits of the employees employed in Amalgamating Companies under
such Funds shall be fully protected, subject to the provisions of law for the time being in
force. It is clarified that the services of the staff, workmen and employees of Amalgamating
Companies will be treated as having been continuous for the purpose of the said Fund or

Funds.

TREATMENT OF TAXES

Any tax liabilities under the Income-tax Act, 1961, Customs Act, 1962, State Sales Tax laws,
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956, Central Excise Act 1944, Service Tax laws, Goods and Services
Tax Act, 2017, Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, State Goods and Services Tax
Act, 2017 and Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 or other applicable laws/
regulations dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies (hereinafter in this Clause referred to as “Tax
Laws”) allocable or related to the business of Amalgamating Companies to the extent not
provided for or covered by tax provision in the accounts made as on the date immediately
preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to Amalgamated Company. Any surplus in
the provision for taxation/ duties/ levies account including advance tax, withholding tax,
service tax and any tax credit entitlements as on the date immediately preceding the

Appointed Date will also be transferred to the account of e Amalgamated Company. Any
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15.2

15.3

15.4

refund under the Tax Laws due to Amalgamating Companies consequent to the assessments
made on Amalgamating Companies and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the
date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall also belong to and be received by

Amalgamated Company.

All taxes (including income tax, sales tax, Goods and Services tax, CENVAT, excise,
customs duty, service tax, VAT, etc) paid or payable by Amalgamating Companies in respect
of the operations and/or the profits of the business before the Appointed Date, shall be on
account of Amalgamated Company and, insofar as it relates to the tax payment (including,
without limitation, sales tax, goods and services tax, custom duty, income tax, service tax,
excise, value added tax, etc.), whether by way of deduction at source, advance tax, duty under
protest or otherwise howsoever, by Amalgamating Companies in respect of the profits or
activities or operation of the business after the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed to
be the corresponding item paid by Amalgamated Company, and, shall, in all proceedings, be

dealt with accordingly.

Amalgamated Company is expressly permitted to file/ revise its income tax, wealth tax,
Goods and Services tax, VAT, sales tax, excise, CENVAT and other statutory returns,
consequent to this Scheme becoming effective, notwithstanding that the period for
filing/revising such returns may have lapsed. However, upon the Scheme becoming effective
subsequently, Amalgamated Company shall have the right to revise and consolidate its
financial statements and returns along with prescribed forms, filings and applications/
annexures under the IT Act, indirect taxes and other Tax Laws. Amalgamated Company is
expressly permitted to amend TDS/ TCS and other statutory certificates and shall have the
right to claim refunds, advance tax credits, foreign tax credits, set offs and adjustments
relating to its respective incomes/ transactions from the Appointed Date. It is specifically
declared that all the taxes/ duties paid by Amalgamating Companies shall be deemed to be the
taxes/ duties paid by Amalgamated Company and Amalgamated Company shall be entitled to
claim credit for such taxes deducted/ paid against its tax/ duty liabilities notwithstanding that
the certificates/ challans or other documents for payment of such taxes/ duties are in the name

of Amalgamating Companies.

All tax assessment proceedings / appeals of whatsoever nature by or against Amalgamating
Companies pending and/or arising at the Appointed Date and relating to Amalgamating
Companies shall be continued and/or enforced until the Effective Date as desired by
Amalgamated Company. As and from the Effective Date, the tax proceedings shall be

continued and enforced by or against Amalgamated Company in the same manner and to the
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same extent as would or might have been continued and enforced by or against

Amalgamating Companies.

Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall neither abate or be discontinued nor be in any
way prejudicially affected by reason of amalgamation of Amalgamating Companies with

Amalgamated Company or anything contained in the Scheme.

Furthermore, on or after the Effective Date, all rights, entitlements and powers to revise
returns and filings of Amalgamating Companies under the tax laws, and to claim refunds and/
or credits for the taxes paid, etc. and for matters incidental thereto, shall be available to and

vest with Amalgamated Company.
Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all tax compliances under any tax laws by

Amalgamating Companies on or after Appointed Date shall be deemed to be made by

Amalgamated Company.
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16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

PART - III

CONSIDERATION

Since Amalgamating Company 1 is the wholly owned subsidiary of Amalgamated Company,
upon the Scheme becoming effective, all the equity shares held by Amalgamated Company
and its nominees in Amalgamating Company 1 shall stand cancelled and extinguished as on
Appointed Date. Accordingly, there will be no issue and allotment of equity shares of
Amalgamated Company to the shareholders of Amalgamating Company 1 upon the Scheme

being effective.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective Amalgamated Company shall, without any further
application, act or deed, issue and allot equity shares to Eligible Members of Amalgamating
Company 2 whose names appear in the register of its members on the Record Date or to such
of their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives or other
successors in title as aforesaid in the following manner (herecinafter referred as Share

Exchange Ratio):-

“one fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Two) of the
Amalgamated Company to be issued and allotted to the Eligible Members of the
Amalgamating Company 2 against one fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 2/-
(Indian Rupees Two) each held in the Amalgamating Company 2.”

Upon the Scheme being effective, and in consideration to Amalgamating Company 1, being
shareholder of Amalgamating Company 2, in terms of the Scheme, 1,69,70,000 equity shares
held by Amalgamating Company 1 i.e. approximately 55.82% of the total equity shares of
Amalgamating Company 2, shall stand cancelled and extinguished and in lieu thereof, no
allotment of any shares in Amalgamated Company shall be made against those 55.82% of the

total equity shares of Amalgamating Company 2.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the share certificates, if any, and/or the shares in
electronic form representing the shares held by Amalgamating Company 1 in Amalgamating
Company 2 shall be deemed to be cancelled without any further act or deed for cancellation

thereof by Amalgamated Company.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any
member of Amalgamating Company 2, the Board of Amalgamated Company shall be
empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate

such a transfer as if such changes in registered holder were operative as on the Record Date,
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16.6

16.7

16.8

16.9

16.10

in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferor of the shares in Amalgamating
Company 2 and in relation to the shares issued by Amalgamated Company, after the
effectiveness of the Scheme. The Board of Amalgamated Company shall be empowered to
remove such difficulties as may arise in the course of implementation of this Scheme and
registration of new shareholders in Amalgamated Company on account of difficulties

faced in the transaction period.

The issue and allotment of Amalgamated Company Shares by Amalgamated Company to
Eligible Members as provided in this Scheme is an integral part thereof and shall be deemed
to have been carried out as if the procedure laid down under Section 62 read with Section 42

of The Act and any other applicable provisions of The Act were duly complied with.

Where Amalgamated Company Shares are to be allotted to heirs, executors or administrators
or, as the case may be, to successors of deceased equity shareholders of Amalgamating
Company 2, the concerned heirs, executors, administrators or successors shall be obliged to

produce evidence of title satisfactory to the Board of Amalgamated Company.

Promptly upon the issuance of Amalgamated Company Shares pursuant to this Clause 16,
Amalgamated Company shall prepare and file applications, along with all supporting
documents, to obtain approval from SEBI and the Stock Exchanges, for listing of such
Amalgamated Company Shares. Immediately upon receipt of such approval, Amalgamated
Company shall take all necessary steps to obtain trading approval for Amalgamated Company
Shares. Amalgamated Company shall ensure that steps for listing of Amalgamated Company
Shares are completed, and trading of Amalgamated Company Shares are completed, and
trading of Amalgamated Company Shares commences within the period prescribed the time
period under the SEBI Circular. Amalgamated Company Shares allotted pursuant to this
Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system till relevant directions in relation to

listing/trading are given by the relevant Stock Exchanges.

Amalgamated Company Shares to be issued and allotted by Amalgamated Company in terms
of this Scheme shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum and articles of
association of Amalgamated Company and shall rank pari passu in all respects and shall

have the same rights attached to the then existing equity shares of Amalgamated Company.
Amalgamated Company Shares shall be issued in dematerialized form to all Eligible

Shareholders holding Amalgamating Company 2 Shares, in accordance with the Applicable

Laws.
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17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

17.1.3

17.1.4

Amalgamated Company Shares to be issued by Amalgamated Company in respect of
Amalgamating Company 2 Shares, the allotment or transfer of which is held in abeyance
under Applicable Law shall, pending allotment or settlement of dispute by order of the
appropriate court or otherwise, also be kept in abeyance in like manner by Amalgamated

Company.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

IN THE BOOKS OF AMALGAMATED COMPANY

Upon the Scheme becoming effective Amalgamated Company shall account for the
amalgamation of Amalgamating Companies in its books of account in accordance with
'Pooling of Interest Method' of accounting as laid down in Appendix-C of IND-AS 103
(Business Combinations of entities under common control) read with Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India Ind AS Technical Facilitation Group (‘ICAI ITFG’) Clarification as

under:

All the assets, and liabilities in the books of Amalgamating Companies shall be recorded by
Amalgamated Company in its books of account at their respective carrying amounts as
appearing in the books of Amalgamating Companies. No adjustment shall be made to reflect

fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.

The identity of reserves shall be preserved and shall appear in the financial statements of
Amalgamated Company, in the same form, in which they appeared in the financial statements

of Amalgamating Companies.

Inter-company transactions and balances including loans, advances, amount receivable or
payable inter-se between the Amalgamating Companies and the Amalgamated Company as

appearing in their books of account, if any, shall stand cancelled.

The carrying amount of investments in the equity shares of Amalgamating Company 1 to the
extent held by Amalgamated Company and carrying amount of investments in the equity
shares of Amalgamating Company 2 to the extent held by Amalgamating Company 1, shall
stand cancelled pursuant to Clause 16 of this Scheme and there shall be no further obligation

in that behalf.
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17.1.5

17.1.6

17.1.7

17.1.8

17.2

17.2.1

18.

18.1.

Amalgamated Company shall credit the aggregate face value of equity shares issued by it to
the Eligible Members of Amalgamating Company 2 pursuant to Clause 16.2 of this Scheme to

the equity share capital account in its books of account.

The difference, if any, between the net assets transferred to Amalgamated Company pursuant
Clause 17.1.1 as reduced by reserves recorded in Amalgamating Companies pursuant to
Clause 17.1.2 and after giving effect to adjustments mentioned in Clause 17.1.3 and Clause
17.1.4 and Clause 17.1.5, shall be adjusted in accordance with Appendix-C of IND-AS 103
(Business Combinations of entities under common control) read with ICAI ITFG

Clarification.

In case of any differences in the accounting policies between Amalgamating Companies
and Amalgamated Company, the impact of the same will be quantified and adjusted in the
capital reserves of Amalgamated Company to ensure that the financial statements of
Amalgamated Company reflect the true financial position on the basis of consistent

accounting policies.

On the Scheme becoming effective, the financial statements of Amalgamated Company
(including comparative period presented in the financial statements of Amalgamated
Company, if required) shall be restated for the accounting impact of Amalgamation, as stated
above, as if amalgamation had occurred from the acquisition date (date when common control

was established) or beginning of the said comparative period; whichever is later.

IN THE BOOKS OF AMALGAMATING COMPANIES

As Amalgamating Companies shall stand dissolved without being wound up upon the
Scheme becoming effective as mentioned in clause 22 of the Scheme and all the assets
and liabilities shall be transferred to Amalgamated Company, hence there is no
accounting treatment prescribed under this Scheme in the books of Amalgamating

Companies.

SUB-DIVISION OF FACE VALUE OF EQUITY SHARES OF AMALGAMATING
COMPANY 1 AND COMBINATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

As an integral part of the Scheme, the face value of 1 (One) equity share of Amalgamating
Company 1 amounting to INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) shall be sub-divided into face
value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Two only) comprising 5 equity shares of Amalgamating
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18.2.

18.3.

18.4.

Company 1; accordingly, authorised share capital of Amalgamating Company 1 shall be
restructured as under:

“The authorised share capital of Amalgamating Company 1 is INR 7,00,00,000/- (Indian
Rupees Seven crore only) divided into 3,50,00,000 (Thee Crove Fifty Lacs) equity shares of
INR 2 each (Indian Rupees Two only).

The members of Amalgamating Company 1, on approval of Scheme, shall be deemed to have
given approval u/s 61 of the Act and all other applicable provisions of the said act for sub-
division of the face value of equity shares and for amendment to the authorised share capital
of Amalgamating Company 1 and no separate resolutions will be required to be passed for
sub-division of the face value of equity shares of Amalgamating Company 1 and for
amendment of authorised share capital of Amalgamating Company 1 under section 61 of the
Act and no separate notice will be required to be given to the Registrar of Companies, for

intimation of sub-division under section 64 of the Act.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorised share capital of Amalgamated Company
in terms of its Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association shall automatically
stand enhanced by the authorised share capital of Amalgamating Companies as on the
Effective Date without any further act, instrument or deed on the part of Amalgamated
Company and the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Amalgamated
Company (relating to the authorised share capital) shall, without any further act, instrument or
deed, be and stand altered, modified and amended, and consent of the shareholders to the
Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting this amendment and no
further resolution(s) under section 13, section 14, section 61 and section 232 of The Act and
any other applicable provisions of the Act, would be required to be separately passed and for
this purpose the stamp duties and fees paid on the authorised share capital of Amalgamating
Companies shall be set-off against any fees payable by Amalgamated Company on its
authorised share capital subsequent to the amalgamation and no fee shall be payable by

Amalgamated Company for increase in the authorised share capital to that extent.

The filing fees and stamp duty already paid by Amalgamating Companies on its authorised
share capital shall be utilized and applied to increased share capital of Amalgamated
Company, and shall be deemed to have been so paid by Amalgamated Company on such
combined authorised share capital. Further, Amalgamated Company shall pay the requisite
fee, if any, that arises due to the difference in maximum statutory fee as per the Act payable

on such combined authorised share capital.
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18.6.

It is hereby clarified that Amalgamated Company through its Board, if required, would be
entitled to make appropriate reclassification/ combination of its authorised share capital and
provide suitable clarifications to the Registrar of Company with regard to the clubbing of the

authorised share capital of Amalgamating Companies with Amalgamated Company.

Pursuant to this Scheme, Amalgamated Company shall file the requisite forms / documents
with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi or any other Applicable Authority for such increase of

the authorised share capital.
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19.

20.

20.1

20.2

20.3

21.

PART - 1V

APPROVAL OF THE SCHEME THROUGH E-VOTING

The approval of sharecholders of Amalgamating Company 2 and Amalgamated Company shall
be obtained through e-Voting (after disclosure of all material facts in the explanatory
statement sent to the shareholders in relation to this Scheme). The Scheme shall be acted upon
only if the votes cast by public shareholders in favour of the resolution are more than the

number of votes cast by public shareholders against it in accordance with the SEBI Circular.

DIVIDENDS

Notwithstanding the above clauses of the Scheme, Amalgamating Companies and
Amalgamated Company shall be entitled to declare and pay dividends, whether interim or
final, to their respective shareholders in respect of the accounting period prior to the Effective

Date.

The holders of the shares of Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company shall,
save as expressly provided otherwise in this Scheme, continue to enjoy their existing rights

under their respective Articles of Association including the right to receive dividends.

It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends are enabling
provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any shareholder to demand or
claim any dividends which, subject to the provisions of the Act, shall be entirely at the
discretion of the respective Boards, and subject to the approval, if required, of the

shareholders of Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company as the case may be.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer of properties and liabilities under Clause 8 and the continuance of proceedings by
or against Amalgamated Company under Clause 12 shall not affect any transaction or
proceedings already concluded by Amalgamating Companies on or before the date when
Amalgamating Companies adopts the Scheme in its Board meeting, and after the date of such
adoption till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that Amalgamated Company accepts and
adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by Amalgamating Companies in respect

thereto as done and executed on behalf of itself.
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23.

23.1

232

24,

DISSOLUTION OF THE AMALGAMATING COMPANIES

On the Scheme coming into effect, Amalgamating Companies shall, without any further act or

deed, stand dissolved without winding up.

APPLICATIONS TO THE TRIBUNAL/ OTHER AUTHORITY

Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company shall, with all reasonable dispatch,
make applications to Tribunal, seeking orders for dispensing with or convening, holding and
conducting of the meetings of the sharecholders and/ or creditors of Amalgamating Companies

and Amalgamated Company as may be directed by the Tribunal.

Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company shall, with all reasonable dispatch,
apply to Tribunal for sanctioning the Scheme under the applicable provisions of the Act, and
for such other order or orders, as the said Tribunal may deem fit for carrying this Scheme into

effect.

CONDITIONALITY OF SCHEME

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

(a) Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company filing the Scheme approved by
their respective Board of Directors with the designated Stock Exchanges fixed by the
Board of Directors of Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company
respectively, in terms of the SEBI Circular and receiving a ‘no objection’ and/or

‘observation’ letter.

(b) the Scheme being agreed to by the requisite majority in number and value of such
classes of persons including the respective shareholders and secured and unsecured
creditors of each of Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company except to

the extent exempted by the Tribunal,

(c) Approval of the shareholders of Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company
through e-voting and/or any other mode as may be required under any Applicable Law
and the SEBI Circular. The Scheme shall be acted upon only if the votes cast by the
public shareholders in favour of the proposal are more than the number of votes cast by
the public shareholders of Amalgamating Company 2 and Amalgamated Company,
against it as required under the SEBI Circular. The term 'public' shall carry the same

meaning as defined under Rule 2 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957;

77



25.

25.1

25.2

(d) The sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT under Sections 230 to 232 of The Act, and
other applicable provisions, if any, of The Act in favour of Amalgamating Companies

and Amalgamated Company;

(e)  such other sanctions and approvals including sanctions of any statutory or regulatory
authority including Stock Exchanges and SEBI, as may be required in respect of the

Scheme, being obtained;

(f) there not being any order from any Appropriate Authority that has the effect of making

Amalgamation illegal or otherwise restraining or preventing its consummation;

(g) there not being any order from any Appropriate Authority that has the effect of making
the transfer of the intellectual property being used in relation to Amalgamating

Companies’ business illegal or otherwise restraining or preventing its transfer; and

(h) filing of the certified copies of the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme under
the applicable provisions of the Act with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and
Haryana.

EFFECT OF NON-APPROVALS

In the event the Scheme is not sanctioned by the Tribunal for any reason whatsoever or for
any other reasons the Scheme cannot be implemented, the Scheme shall become null and void
and shall be of no effect and in that event no rights and/or liabilities shall accrue to or be
incurred inter-se by Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company and each of
Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company shall bear and pay its respective

costs, charges and expenses for and/or in connection with the Scheme.

It is expressly clarified, for the removal of doubt that if any of the components of this Scheme
cannot be implemented or effected for any reason whatsoever, the remaining component(s)
shall not in any way be affected or impaired and Scheme with the remaining component(s)

shall be implemented.
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27.

27.1

27.2

27.3

274

AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION AND OTHER MATTERS PERTAINING TO
SCHEME

The Board of Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company may assent to any
modification(s) or amendment(s) in this Scheme which the Tribunal and/ or any other
authorities may deem fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary
or desirable for settling any question or doubt or difficulty that may arise for implementing
and/ or carrying out the Scheme and the Board of Amalgamating Companies and
Amalgamated Company and after the dissolution of Amalgamating Companies, the Board of
Directors of Amalgamated Company be and are hereby authorised to take such steps and do
all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or proper to give effect to this
Scheme and to resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions whether by reason of any orders
of the Tribunal or of any directive or orders of any other authorities or otherwise howsoever
arising out of, under or by virtue of this Scheme and / or any matters concerning or connected
therewith. The Board of Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company may assent

to withdrawal of the scheme at any stage even after sanctioning of the Scheme.

REVOCATION AND SEVERABILITY

In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals not being obtained and/or complied
with and/or satisfied and/or this Scheme not being sanctioned by the Tribunal or such other
appropriate authority and/or order or orders not being passed as aforesaid within such period
as may be mutually agreed upon by the respective Board of Amalgamating Companies and

Amalgamated Company, this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect.

In the event of any of the conditions that may be imposed by the Tribunal or other authorities
and which Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company may find unacceptable for
any reason, then Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company are at liberty to

withdraw the Scheme.

The Board of Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company shall be entitled to
withdraw, revoke, cancel and declare the Scheme of no effect if they are of view that the
coming into effect of the Scheme could have adverse implications on Amalgamating

Companies and Amalgamated Company.

In the event of revocation under Clause 27.1, Clause 27.2 and Clause 27.3 above, no rights

and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter se to Amalgamating Companies
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and Amalgamated Company and their respective shareholders or creditors or employees or
any other person save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is
contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has arisen or accrued
pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out in accordance
with the applicable law and in such case, each of Amalgamating Companies and
Amalgamated Company shall bear and pay its respective costs, charges and expenses for

and/or in connection with the Scheme.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

All costs, charges, taxes including duties (including the stamp duty and/ or transfer charges, if
any, applicable in relation to this Scheme), levies and all other expenses, if any (save as
expressly otherwise agreed) of Amalgamating Companies and Amalgamated Company
arising out of or incurred in carrying out and implementing this Scheme and matters

incidental thereto shall be borne and paid by Amalgamated Company.
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
COURT NO. IV, NEW DELHI
CA (CAA)-107/(ND)/2021
{Sections 230-232 and Other Applicable Provisions of The
Companies Act, 2013 Read with Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements, And Arrangements) Rules, 2016}

IN THE MATTER OF:

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF
Shree Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited

(Transferor Company No.1/Applicant Company-1)

AND
Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited

(Transferor Company No.2/ Applicant Company-2)

WITH
APL Apollo Tubes Limited

(Transferee Company No.3/ Applicant Company-3)

AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CREDITORS AND SHAREHOLDERS

ORDER PRONOUNCED ON: 30.11,2021

CORAM:
DR. DEEPTI MUKESH
HON'BLE MEMBER (JUDICIAL)

MS. SUMITA PURKAYASTHA
HON’BLE MEMBER (TECHNICAL)

CA (CAA)-107(ND)/2021
Shree Laxmi Metal Udhyog Limited and APL Apollo Tubes Lzmn‘e

81



Page |2

Shri Lakshmi Metal Udhyog Limited
Having its registered office at:
37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg,
Delhi — 110092.
...Transferor Company No.1/Applicant Company-1
AND
Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited
Having registered office at:
37, Hargobind Enclave.Vikas Marg,
Delhi-110092
...Transferor Company No.2/ Applicant Company-2
WITH
APL Apollo Tubes Limited
Having registered office at:
37, Hargobind Enclave,Vikas Marg,
Delhi-110092
...Transferee Company/ Applicant Company-3

For the Applicants :Mr. Mahesh Agarwal, Adv,
Mr. Rajeev Kumar, Adv.

For The OL : Ms. Hemlata Rawat, Adv.

Mr.Aayushmaan Vatsyayana, Adv.

ORDER

CA (CAA)-107(ND)/2021
Shree Laxmi Metal Udhyog Limited and APL Apollo Tubes Limited
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1. This is an application filed by Shri. Lakshmi Steel Metal Udyog (for brevity
“TPransferor Company No.1”), Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (for brevity
“Transferor Company No.2”) and APL Apollo Tubes Limited (for brevity
“Transferee Company”), jointly under section 230-232 of Companies Act, 2013,
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 in
relation to the Scheme of Amalgamation (hereinafter referred to as the

“SCHEME”) proposed between the applicants.

2. An affidavit in support of the above application sworn by Mr. Shivam
Maheshwari, Mr. Surbhi Arora and Mr. Deepak C S,being the authorized
representétive of the Transferor Company No.1, Transferor Company No.2 and
Transferee Companyrespectively, who has been authorized vide board
resolution dated 27.02.2021 passed at their respective board meetings. The
copy of respective board resolutions dated 27.02.2021 have been annexed.It is
also represented that the registered office of all the applicant companies is
under the domain of Registrar of Companies, NCT of Néw Delhi & Haryana and

within the territorial jurisdiction of this Tribunal.

3. The Transferor No.1 Company is a public limited company incorporated on
25.04.1994 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1986, bearing CIN:
U85110DL1994PLC224835and having registered office at 37, Hargobind
Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi- 110092. The company was initially incorporated in
the name and style of “Estima Investment & Financial Services Private
Limited.”Thereafter on 13.01.1995 the company was converted from private
limited company to Public limited company and the name of the company was
changed from “Estima Investment & Financial Services Private Limited” to

“Estima Investment & Financial Services Limited.” Again on 16.09.2003, the

name of the company was again changed from “Esti .g{-\fljhuestment & Financial
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Services Limited” to “Shri Lakshmi Metal Udhyog Limited.”The fresh certificates
of incorporation issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs have been annexed.
The Authorized Share Capital of the Companyis Rs. 7,00,00,000/- {divided into
70,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each) and the Issued, subscribedand
Paid-Up Share Capital is Rs. 5,89,50,000/- (divided into 58,95,000 Equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each).The company is engaged in the business of production
of ERW steel Tubes and GP coils.

.The Transferor No.2 Company is a public limited company incorporated on
12.01.1983 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1986, bearing CIN:
L74900DL1983PLC014972 and having registered office at 37, Hargobind
Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi- 110092. The company was initially incorporated in
the name and style of “Best Steel Logistics Limited.” On 21.08.2018 the name of
the company was changed to “Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited” On 28.07.2014,
the company was listed on BSE limited. The fresh certificates of incorporation
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs have been annexed. The Authorized
Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 6,50,00,000/- (divided into 3,25,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each) and the Issued, subscribed and Paid-Up Share
Capital is Rs. 6,08,00,000/- (divided into 3,04,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 2/-
each). The company is engaged in the business of production of steel designer

roofing, fencing, steel door frames, designer hand railing etc.

.The Transferee Company is a public limited company, incorporated on
24.02.1986under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956, bearing CIN:
L74899DL1986PLC023443 and having registered office - at37, Hargobind
Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi- 110092.The company was initially incorporated in
the name and style of “Bihar Tubes Private Limited”, on 19.10.1993, the
company was converted from Private limited company to Public limited
company and the name of the company was changed from “Bihar Tubes Private
limited” to “Bihar Tubes limited.” Thereafter, agalfr;j?r% 07.07.2010 the name of
the company was changed from “Bihar ’I‘ubes/@ﬁed” to “APL Apollo Tubes
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Limited.” On 05.12.2011 the shares of the company were listed on BSE limited
and on 14.12.2011 the shares of the company were listed on National Stock
Exchange of India limited.The fresh certificates of incorporation issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs have been annexed.The Authorized Share Capital
of the Companyis Rs.45,00,00,000 /- (divided into 22,50,00,000 Equity shares
of Rs.2/- each} and the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital is Rs.
24,97,92,000/- (Divided into 12,48,96,000 Equity Share of Rs. 2/- each). The

company is engaged in the business of production of EW steels tubes.

. All the applicant companies have filed their respective Memoranda and Articles
of Association inter alia delineating their object clauses, as well as their last
Audited Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2021 and the
provisional balance sheet upto 30t June 2021.

. The Board of Directors of all the Applicant companies vide meeting held on27th
February 2021 have unanimously approved the proposed Scheme of
amalgamation as contemplated above. Copies of resolutions passed in the said

board meetings of all the applicant companies have been placed on record.

. That all the applicant companies have annexed the certificates from statutory
auditors in compliance under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles.

.That the Transferor No.1 company is not a listed therefore no objection from
BSE or NSE is not required. As regards the Transferor No.2 company no
objection letter obtained from BSE limited dated 02, August 2021 is annexed
and as regards the Transferee Company no objection letters obtained from BSE

limited and National Stock Exchange of the In@s/l;Llrmted dated 02, August
gL 14

2021 are annexed. P 4 ADEDY ¢
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It is stated that the Transferor No.l Company is having Seven Equity
Shareholders, certificate from Chartered Accountants certifying list of
shareholders is annexed. It is further represented that the Company has one
Secured Creditor and 126 unsecured creditors, certificate from Chartered
Accountants certifying list of secured and unsecured creditors is annexed.
(i) In relation to the shareholders,it seeks directions for holding/convening
of the meetings.
(ii) In relation to the secured creditors of the Company, it secks directions
for holding/convening of the meetings.
(i) In relation to the unsecured creditors of the Company, it seeks directions

for holding/convening of the meetings.

It is stated that the Transferor No.2 Company is having 25,957 Equity
Shareholders, certificate from Chartered Accountants certifying list of
shareholders is annexed. It is further represented that the Company has three
Secured Creditor and 380 unsecured creditors, certificate from Chartered
Accountants certifying list of secured and unsecured creditors is annexed.
(i) In relation to the shareholders, it seeks directions for holding/convening
of the meetings.
(ii) In relation to the secured creditors of the Company, it seeks directions
for holding/convening of the meetings.
(iii)In relation to the unsecured creditors of the Company, it seeks directions

for holding/convening of the meetings.

It is stated that the Transferee Company is having 65,695 Equity Shareholders,
certificate from Chartered Accountants certifying list of shareholders is
annexed. It is further represented that the Company has Five Secured Creditor
and 1076 unsecured creditors, certificate from Chartered Accountants
certifying list of secured and unsecured creditors is annexed.

(i) In relation to the shareholders, it seeks mictmns for holding/convening

/& Qﬂ\?a“J {
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(i) In relation to the secured creditors of the Company, it seeks directions
for holding/convening of the meetings.
(ii) In relation to the unsecured creditors of the Company, it seeks directions

for holding/convening of the meetings.

13. The appointed date as specified in the Scheme is 1st April, 2021 subject to the

directions of this Tribunal.

14. The Transferor No.2 and the Transferee company are public companies limited
companies limited by shares and are governed by the rule and regulations of
SEBI. Further the book value of assets and turnover of the Applicants do not
fall within the definition of “combinations” under the Competition Act, 2002
and therefore, there is no requirement of seeking approval from Competition

Commission of India.

15.There are no pending investigation or proceedings against the applicant
companies under the provisions of companies act.

16. Taking into consideration the submissions and the documents filed therewith,
we propose to issue the following directions with respect to calling, convening
and holding of the meetings of the Shareholders, Secured and Unsecured
Creditorsof all the applicant companies as follows: -

A) In relation to theTransferor No.1 Company:
() With respect to Equity shareholders:Meceting of the equity
shareholders be convened, virtually on 07thFebruary 2022 at 10:00 A.M.
The quorum of the meeting shall be 2 in number
(ii) With respect to Secured Creditors:Meeting of the secured creditors be
convened, virtually on 07t February 2022 at 11:30 A.M. The quorum of
the meeting shall be 1 in number
(iii) With respect to Unsecured Creditors:Meeting of the unsecured
Creditor be convened, virtually on O?Lh February 2022 at 12:30 P.M. The
quorum of the meeting shall be40/ n@uTI;{ber
CA (CAA)-107(ND)/2021 K b é? S
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B) In relation to Transferor No.2 Company:
(i) With respect to Equity shareholders:Meecting of the equity
shareholders be convened, virtually on 07t February 2022 at 4:30
P.M. The quorum of the meeting shall be 5000 in number
(i) With respect to Secured Creditors: Meeting of the secured creditors
be convened, virtually on 07th February 2022 at 2:30 A.M. The quorum
of the meeting shall be 1 in number
(iii) With respect to Unsecured Creditors: Meeting of the unsecured
Creditor be convened, virtually on 07th February 2022 at 3:30 P.M. The

quorum of the meeting shall be 90 in number

C) In relation to the Transferee Company:
() With respect to Equity shareholders: Meeting of the equity
shareholders be convened, virtually on 08t February 2022 at 02:00
P.M. The quorum of the meeting shall be 15000 in number
(i) With respect to Secured Creditors: Meeting of the secured creditors
be convened, virtually on 08t February 2022 at 10:30 A.M. The quorum -
of the meeting shall be 2 in number
(iii) With respect to Unsecured Creditors: Meeting of the unsecured
Creditor be convened, virtually on 08t February 2022 at 11:30 P.M. The

quorum of the meeting shall be 250 in number

17. The meetings of the Equity shareholders, secured and unsecured creditors of
all the applicant companies shall be convened as directed:
(i) The chairperson appointed for the meeting is Ms. Deepa Krishnan,
Former Member (Technical) NCLT having email id
(i) The alternate Chairperson appointed for the meetings is Ms. Swarlipi
Deb Roy, Advocatehaving contact no. 8510094876 and email id:
rkabcl_sdr@yahoo.in

CA (CAA)-107(ND)/2021 ‘
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(iii)The observer/Scrutinizer appointed for the meeting is Ms. Shruti Rawat,
PCS having contact no. 8377836964

(iv)The fees for all the appointees above named in addition to meeting their
incidental expense shall be as follows:

a) For the Chairperson: Rs. 2,00,000/-
b) For the alternate Chairperson: Rs.1,40,000/-
¢) For theobserver:Rs. 1,15,000/-

(v) The chairperson will file report within a week from the date of holding of
the above said meetings.

(vi)The notice of the above said meetings shall be sent by both the Applicant
companies through registered post or through courier or through email,
30 days in advance before the scheduled date of the meeting , indicating
the day, date, the place and the time as aforesaid, together with a
proposed scheme of amalgamation, copy of explanatory statement as
required to be sent under the companies Act, 2013, the prescribed from
of proxy shall also be sent along and in addition to the above and any
other documents as may be prescribed under the Act or rules may also
be duly sent with the notice.

(vii)The Applicant Companies shall publish advertisement in the newspapers
namely, “Business Standard” (English, Delhi edition) and “Business
Standard” (Hindi, Delhi edition) not less than 30 days before the
aforesaid meetings.

(viii) Voting shall be allowed on the proposed Scheme by voting in person, the
chairperson shall be responsible to report the result of the meeting
within a period of 3 days of the conclusion of the hearing with details of

voting on the proposal scheme.

18. Notice of this application shall also be served on the following Statutory
Authorities:
(i) Regional Director, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, B-2 Wing, 2 Floor,
Paryawaran Bhavan, CGO Compl ez, I}Iew Delhi-110003;
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18. Notice of this application shall also be served on the following Statutory
Authorities:

() Regional Director, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, B-2 Wing, 2 Floor,
Paryawaran Bhavan, CGO Complex, New Delhi-110003;

(ii) Registrar of Companies at 4 floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New
Delhi-110019;

(iii)Official liquidator, Lok Nayak Bhavan, 8 Floor, Khan Market, New Delhi-
110001;

(iv)Income Tax Department, Income Tax Office, Additional Commissioner of
Income Tax, Special Range 4, Central Revenue Building, IP Estate, New
Delhi-110002. The notices to Income Tax Authorities shall disclose
sufficient details like PAN, ward numbers and assessing officers

(v) and to such other Sectoral Regulatory Authorities who may govern the

working of the respective companies involved in the Scheme.

The application is allowed on the aforesaid terms and stands disposed of.

SD/- SD/-
SUMITA PURKAYASTHA ' DR. DEEPTI MUKESH
MEMBER (TECHNICAL) S MEMBER (JUDICIAL)

ASSISTANT REGISTRAR
UG FHO R s
NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
C.G.0. COMPLEX, NEW DELHI-1..103
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SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Ist Floor, “ Arjun”, Plot No. 6 A,
V. P. Road, Andheri (W),
Mumbai - 400 058. INDIA.
Tel. : 91 (22) 2670 4376
91 (22) 2670 3682
Fax : 91 (22) 2670 3916
Website : www.sspa.in

STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL

February 27, 2021

The Board of Directors The Board of Directors

APL Apollo Tubes Limited Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited

37, Hargovind Enclave, Vikas Marg, 37, Hargovind Enclave, Vikas Marg,
Delhi—110 092 Delhi—- 110092

The Board of Directors

Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited
37, Hargovind Enclave, Vikas Marg,
Delhi— 110092

Dear Sir(s) / Madam(s),

Sub: Recommendation of fair equity share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation
of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited and Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited into APL Apollo
Tubes Limited

We refer to the engagement letter dated February 05, 2021 whereby we, SSPA & Co.,

Chartered Accountants (hereinafter referred to as ‘SSPA’ or ‘Valuer’ or ‘We’) have been

appointed by the management of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited, Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog

Limited and APL Apollo Tubes Limited (hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘the

Management’) to issue a report containing recommendation of fair equity share exchange

ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (hereinafter referred to

as ‘ATTL’ or ‘Transferor Company 1) and Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited (hereinafter
referred to as ‘SLMUL’ or Transferor Company 2) with APL Apollo Tubes Limited (hereinafter
referred to as ‘APL Apollo’ or Transferee Company’).

ATTL, SLMUL and APL Apollo are hereinafter collectively referred to as the ‘Companies’.

1. SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
1.1  We have been informed by the Management that they are considering a proposal for

amalgamation of ATTL and SLMUL with APL Apollo (hereinafter referred to as the
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‘Proposed Amalgamation’) pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation between the
Companies and their respective shareholders unde - Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, including rules and regulations made
thereunder (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Scheme’). Subject to necessary approvals,
the aforesaid Proposed Amalgamation will be with effect from Appointed Date of April
01, 2021 (‘Appointed Date’).

1.2 In this regards, we have been appointed by the Management to carry out the relative
valuation of equity shares of the Companies and to recommend the fair equity share
exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation. The |report is being furnished by SSPA
in the capacity of Registered Valuer under section 247 of the Companies Act, 2013
which would suffice the requirements of Securities Exchange Board of India and
Companies Act, 2013.

1.3 For the purpose of this valuation, we have carried out relative valuations of the
Companies and the valuation is based on ‘going concern’ premise.

1.4 The report sets out our recommendation of the fair equity share exchange ratio and
discusses the methodologies and approach considered for arriving at relative value of
the equity shares of the APL Apollo and ATTL for the purpose of recommendation of

share exchange ratio.

2. BRIEF BACKGROUND

2.1. APLAPOLLO TUBES LIMITED

APL Apollo is a public limited Company incorporated in India on February 24, 1986 with
its registered office in Delhi, India. The company is the largest producer of Electric
Resistance Welded (ERW) Steel Pipes and Sections in India, with a capacity to produce
2.5 Million Tonnes per annum. The company caters extensively to the region and
exports to over 20 countries globally. The company’s vast distribution network is
spread across India, with warehouses and branch offices in 29 cities. The company has
four manufacturing units, one at Sikanderabad, Uttar Pradesh, one at Hosur,
Tamilnadu, one at Raipur, Chhattisgarh and one at Murbad, Maharashtra.

The equity shares of the company are listed on The BSE Limited (BSE) and the The
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

APL Apollo holds 100% equity stake in SLMUL and in turn SLMUL holds ~55.82% in
ATTL.
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The issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital of the Transferee
Company as on March 31, 2020 is INR 24.87 crores comprising of 2,48,69,015 equity
shares of INR 10 each fully paid up.

2.2. APOLLO TRICOAT TUBES LIMITED
ATTL (formerly known as Best Steel Logistics Limited) incorporated on January 12, 1983
is engaged in the business of production of ERW steel tubes and GP Coils. The company
has two manufacturing unit one at Malur Bangalore, and second at Ghaziabad Uttar
Pradesh. The registered office of the Company is in New Delhi. The shares of the
company are listed on the BSE. ATTL was acquired by APL Apollo through its subsidiary
in FY 2018-19.
The issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital of the Transferor Company
1 as on March 31, 2020 is INR 6.08 crores comprising of 3,04,00,000 equity shares of
INR 2 each fully paid up.

2.3.  SHRILAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
SLMUL is an unlisted public company incorporated on April 25, 1994 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as a private limited company with the name and
style of Estima Investment & Financial Services Private Limited. Then, on January 13,
1995, the constitution of company changed from private limited company to public
limited company and the name changed to ‘Estima Investment & Financial Services
Limited’ and subsequently on September 16, 2003 the name changed to Shri Lakshmi
Metal Udyog Limited. SLMUL is engaged in the business of manufacturing of steel tubes
and pipes.
SLMUL is a wholely owned Subsidiary (‘WoS’) of APL Apollo.
The issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital of the Transferor Company
2 as on March 31, 2020 is INR 5.90 crores comprising of 58,95,000 equity shares of INR
10 each fully paid up.
Since, SLMUL is a WoS of APL Apollo, on amalgamation all equity shares held by APL
Apollo in SLMUL shall stand cancelled and no shares shall be issued to the shareholders

of SLMUL upon its amalgamation with APL Apollo.

REGISTERED VALUER - SSPA & CO., CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants, is a partnership firm, located at 1st Floor, Arjun
Building, Plot No. 6A, V. P. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400 058, India. SSPA is
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engaged in providing various corporate consultancy services.

SSPA is a firm of practicising Chartered Accountants registered with The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). SSPA is also registered with the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Board of India (‘IBBI’), as a Registered Valuer for asset class — ‘Securities or

Financial Assets’ with Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126.

4. SOURCES OF INFORMATION

The valuation exercise is based on the following information which has been received

from the Management and any information available in the public domain:

(a) Annual Report of ATTL and APL Apollo for financial year (‘FY’) 2019-20.

(b) Management certified financial statements of ATTL for 9 months period ended
December 31, 2020 (‘9ME Dec20’).

(c) Management certified consolidated balance sheet and profit and loss account
of APL Apollo (excluding ATTL) for 9ME Dec20.

(d) Financial projections of ATTL from FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25.

(e) Consolidated financial projections of APL Apollo (excluding ATTL) from FY 2020-
21 to FY 2024-25.

(f) Draft Scheme of Amalgamation.

(g) Discussions with the Management on various issues relevant to valuation
including prospects and outlook of the business, expected growth rate and
other relevant information relating to future expected profitability, etc.

(h) Such other information and explanations as we required and which have been

provided by the Management including Management Representations.

5. SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND
DISCLAIMERS

5.1.  This report is subject to the scope and limitations detailed hereinafter. As such the
report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant
documents referred to herein and in the context of the purpose for which it is made.
Further, our report on recommendation of fair equity share exchange ratio for the
proposed amalgamation of ATTL and SLMUL with APL Apollo is in accordance with ICAI

\, VS 2018issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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5.2.  Valuation is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at will be subjective and
dependent on the exercise of individual judgment. There is, therefore, no indisputable
single value. While we have provided an assessment of value by applying certain
formulae which are based on the information available, others may place a different
value.

5.3.  The report assumes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and
regulations applicable in its area of operations and usage unless otherwise stated, and
that the Companies will be managed in a competent and responsible manner. Further,
as specifically stated to the contrary, this report has given no consideration to matters
of a legal nature, including issues of legal title and compliance with local laws, and
litigations and other contingent liabilities that are not recorded/reflected in the
balance sheet provided to us.

5.4.  The draft of the present report was circulated to the Management (excluding the
recommended fair equity share exchange ratio) for confirming the facts stated in the
report and to confirm that the information or facts stated are not erroneous.

5.5.  Valuation analysis and results are specific to the purpose of valuation and the
Valuation Date mentioned in the report and is as per agreed terms of our engagement.

5.6.  For the purpose of this exercise, we were provided with both written and verbal
information including information detailed hereinabove in para 'Sources of
Information'. Further, the responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the
information provided to us by the Companies / auditors / consultants, is that of the
Companies. Also, with respect to explanations and information sought from the
Companies, we have been given to understand by the Management that they have not
omitted any relevant and material information about the Companies. The
Management have indicated to us that they have understood that any omissions,
inaccuracies or  misstatements may materially affect our valuation
analysis/conclusions.

5.7.  Our work does not constitute an audit, due diligence or certification of these

information referred to in this report including information sourced from public

domain. Accordingly, we are unable to and do not express an opinion on the fairness
or accuracy of any financial information referred to in this report and consequential

impact on the present exercise. However, we have evaluated the information provided
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to us by the Companies through broad inquiry, analysis and review. However, nothing
has come to our attention to indicate that the information provided / obtained was
materially misstated / incorrect or would not afford reasonable grounds upon which
to base the report.

5.8.  Our recommendation is based on the estimates of future financial performance as
projected by the Management, which represents their view of reasonable expectation
at the point of time when they were prepared, after giving due considerations to
commercial and financial aspects of the Companies and the industry in which the
Companies operate and taking into account the current economic scenario and
business disruptions caused on account of spread of COVID-19 pandemic. But such
information and estimates are not offered as assurances that the particular level of
income or profit will be achieved, or events will occur as predicted. Actual results
achieved during the period covered by the prospective financial statements may vary
from those contained in the statement and the variation may be material. The fact that
we have considered the projections in this exercise of valuation should not be
construed or taken as our being associated with or a party to such projections.

5.9.  We have relied on data from external sources also to conclude the valuation. These
sources are believed to be reliable and therefore, we assume no liability for the truth
or accuracy of any data, opinions or estimates furnished by others that have been used
in this analysis. Where we have relied on data, opinions or estimates from external
sources, reasonable care has been taken to ensure that such data has been correctly
extracted from those sources and /or reproduced in its proper form and context.

5.10. A valuation of this nature involves consideration of various factors including those

impacted by prevailing market trends in general and industry trends in particular. This

report is issued on the understanding that the Management has drawn our attention
to all the matters, which they are aware of concerning the financial position of the

Companies and any other matter, which may have an impact on our opinion, on the

value of the shares of the Companies including any significant changes that have taken

place or are likely to take place in the financial position of the Companies. Events and
transactions occurring after the date of this report may affect the report and
assumptions used in preparing it and we do not assume any obligation to update,

revise or reaffirm this report.
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5.11. Weareindependent of the Companies and have no current or expected interest in the
Companies or its assets. The fee paid for our services in no way influenced the results
of our analysis.

5.12. Ourreportis not, nor should it be construed as our opining or certifying the compliance
with the provisions of any law including companies, competition, taxation and capital
market related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues arising in India or
abroad from the Proposed Amalgamation.

5.13. Any person/party intending to provide finance/divest/invest in the shares/convertible
instruments/business of the Companies shall do so after seeking their own
professional advice and after carrying out their own due diligence procedures to
ensure that they are making an informed decision.

5.14. The decision to carry out the Proposed Amalgamation (including consideration
thereof) lies entirely with the parties concerned and our work and our finding shall not
constitute a recommendation as to whether or not the parties should carry out the
Proposed Amalgamation.

5.15. Our Report is meant for the purpose mentioned in Para 1 only and should not be used
for any purpose other than the purpose mentioned therein. It is exclusively for the use
of the Companies and may be submitted to regulatory/statutory authority for
obtaining requisite approvals. The Report should not be copied or reproduced without
obtaining our prior written approval for any purpose other than the purpose for which
it is prepared. In no event, regardless of whether consent has been provided, shall
SSPA assume any responsibility to any third party to whom the report is disclosed or
otherwise made available.

5.16. SSPA nor its partners, managers, employees make any representation or warranty,

express or implied, as to the accuracy, reasonableness or completeness of the

information, based on which the valuation is carried out. We owe responsibility to only
to the Companies that has appointed us under the terms of the Engagement Letter.

We will not be liable for any losses, claims, damages or liabilities arising out of the

actions taken, omissions or advice given by any other person. In no event shall we be

liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from fraudulent acts,
misrepresentations or wilful default on part of the client or companies, their directors,

employees or agents.
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6. VALUATION APPROACH AND METHODOLOGIES

6.1.  For the purpose of valuation, generally following approaches can be considered, viz,
(a) the ‘Market’ approach;
(b) the ‘Income’ approach; and
(c) the ‘Asset’ approach

6.2.  Underthe Asset approach, the Net Asset Value (‘NAV’) method is considered, which is
based on the underlying net assets and liabilities of the company, taking into account
operating assets and liabilities on a book value basis and appropriate adjustments for,
interalia, value of surplus / non-operating assets.
In the present case, the business of APL Apollo and ATTL are intended to be continued
on a ‘going concern basis’ and there is no intention to dispose-off the assets, therefore
the Asset approach is not adopted for the present valuation exercise.

6.3. Considering the above, we have thought fit to consider a combination of ‘Market’
approach and ‘Income’ approach for valuation of equity shares of APL Apollo and ATTL.
The report date is the valuation date.

6.4. MARKET APPROACH
In the present case, the equity shares of APL Apollo and ATTL are listed and frequently
traded on recognized stock exchanges. Therefore, we have thought fit to use Market
Price (‘MP’) Method for valuation of equity shares of APL Apollo and ATTL under
Market Approach.

6.4.1. MARKET PRICE METHOD
The market price of an equity share, as quoted on a stock exchange, is normally
considered as the fair value of the equity shares of that company where such
quotations are arising from the shares being regularly and freely traded in, subject to
the element of speculative support that may be inbuilt in the value of the shares.
As mentioned above, the equity shares of APL Apollo and ATTL are listed on recognized
stock exchanges. The value of equity shares of APL Apollo and ATTL under this method
is determined considering the share prices of APL Apollo and ATTL on NSE and BSE
respectively over an appropriate period.

6.5. INCOME APPROACH

. Under the ‘Income’ approach, equity shares of APL Apollo and ATTL are valued using

‘Discounted Cash Flow’ (‘DCF’) Method.
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6.5.2. Under the DCF method the projected free cash flows from business operations after
considering fund requirements for projected capital expenditure and incremental
working capital are discounted at the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC). The
sum of the discounted value of such free cash flows and discounted value of perpetuity
is the value of the business.

6.5.3. The free cash flows represent the cash available for distribution to both the owners
and the creditors of the business. The free cash flows are determined by adding back
to profit before tax, (i) interest on loans, if any, (ii) depreciation and amortizations
(non-cash charge), and (iii) any non-operating item. The cash flow is adjusted for
outflows on account of (i) capital expenditure, (i) incremental working capital
requirements and (iii) tax.

6.5.4. WACC s considered as the most appropriate discount rate in the DCF Method, since it
reflects both the business and the financial risk of the company. In other words, WACC
is the weighted average of the company’s cost of equity and debt.

6.5.5. To the value so arrived, appropriate adjustments have been made for contingent
liabilities, loan funds, value of investments, cash and cash equivalents and cash inflow
on account of exercise of employee stock options (ESOPs) post December 31, 2020,
after considering the tax impact wherever applicable to arrive at the equity value.

6.5.6. The value as arrived above is divided by the diluted number of equity shares to arrive

at the value per equity share of APL Apollo and ATTL.

7. RECOMMENDATION OF FAIR SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO

7.1.  The fair basis of amalgamation of APL Apollo and ATTL would have to be determined
after taking into consideration all the factors and methodologies mentioned
hereinabove. Though different values have been arrived at under different methods,
for the purposes of recommending a ratio of exchange it is necessary to arrive at a
single value for the shares of APL Apollo and ATTL. It is however important to note that
in doing so, we are not attempting to arrive at the absolute values of the shares of each
company. Our exercise is to work out relative value of shares of APL Apollo and ATTL
to facilitate the determination of a ratio of exchange.For this purpose, it is necessary
to give appropriate weightage to the values arrived at under each approach.

As mentioned above, we have considered MP method under ‘Market’ approach and

DCF method under ‘Income’ approach for arriving at the value per share of APL Apollo
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and ATTL. The values under each of the approaches is given in the table below:

APL APOLLO ATTL
Valuation Approach ¥elie por . Yalue per /
Share |[Weights| Share |[Weights
(INR) (INR)
Asset Approach * NA NA NA NA
Income Approach 994.59 50% 1,014.62 50%
Market Approach - MP Method 878.53 | 50% 855.81 | 50%
Fair Value per Equity Share 936.56 | 100% 935.22 | 100%
Equity share exchange ratio (Rounded off) 1:1

NA =Not Applied / Not Applicable

* Since, the business of APL Apollo and ATTL are both intended to be continued on a ‘going
concern basis’ and there is no intention to dispose-off the assets, therefore the Asset Approach
is not adopted for the present valuation exercise.

7.3. The fair equity share exchange ratio has been arrived on the basis of a relative
valuation of shares of APL Apollo and ATTL based on the approaches explained herein
earlier and various qualitative factors relevant to the APL Apollo and ATTL and the
business dynamics and growth potential of the businesses, having regard to
information base, management representation and perceptions, key underlying
assumptions and limitations.

7.4. In the ultimate analysis, valuation will have to involve the exercise of judicious

discretion and judgement taking into account all the relevant factors. There will always

be several factors, e.g. present and prospective competition, yield on comparable
securities and market sentiments, etc. which are not evident from the face of the
balance sheets but which will strongly influence the worth of a share. This concept is
also recognized in judicial decisions. For example, Viscount Simon Bd in Gold Coast

Selection Trust Ltd. vs. Humphrey reported in 30 TC 209 (House of Lords) and quoted

with approval by the Supreme Court of India in the case reported in 176 ITR 417 as

under:

‘If the asset takes the form of fully paid shares, the valuation will take into account not

only the terms of the agreement but a number of other factors, such as prospective

yield, marketability, the general outlook for the type of business of the company which
has allotted the shares, the result of a contemporary prospectus offering similar shares
for subscription, the capital position of the company, so forth. There may also be an
element of value in the fact that the holding of the shares gives control of the company.

If the asset is difficult to value, but is nonetheless of @ money value, the best valuation
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possible must be made. Valuation is an art, not an exact science. Mathematical
certainty is not demanded, nor indeed is it possible.’

7.5.  Inlight of the above and on consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances
as discussed and outlined hereinabove earlier in this report, in our opinion, the fair
equity share exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation of ATTL with APL Apollo
is as under:

1 (One) equity share of APL Apollo of INR 2 each fully paid up for every 1 (One)
equity share of ATTL of INR 2 each fully paid up.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

For SSPA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm registration number: 128851W

IBBI Registered Valuer No.: IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126

Vikram Jain, Partner

ICAl Membership No. 114613
UDIN: 21114613AAAAAIS5783
Place: Mumbai
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STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL

February 27, 2021
To,

The Board of Directors

APL Apollo Tubes Limited

37 Hargovind Enclave, Vikas Marg,
Delhi - 110 092

The Board of Directors

Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited

37 Hargovind Enclave, Vikas Marg,
Delhi - 110 092

The Board of Directors

Shri Laxmi Metal Udyog Limited
37 Hargovind Enclave, Vikas Marg,
Delhi - 110 092

Sub: Fairness Opinion on share exchange ratio in connection with the proposed
amalgamation of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited and Shri Laxmi Metal Udyog
Limited. with APL Apollo Tubes Limited under a Scheme of Amalgamation.

Dear Sir(s),

We refer to our engagement letter dated February 22, 2021 and discussion wherein the
management of APL Apollo Tubes Limited (hereinafter referred to as “APL Apollo” or
“Company”), Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (hereinafter referred to as “ATTL”) and Shri Laxmi
Metal Udyog Limited (hereinafter referred to as “SLMUL”) (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the ‘Management’) has requested Fortress Capital Management Services Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “Fortress”), a SEBI Registered Category | Merchant Banker to give a
fairness opinion on the Share Exchane Ratio recommended by SSPA & Co., Chartered
Accounttants (hereinafter referred to as “Valuer”) in connection with the amalgamation of ATTL
and SLMUL with APL Apollo under a Scheme of Amalgamation. ATTL, SLMUL and APL are

hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Companies”.
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BACKGROUND, SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

We have been informed by the Management that they are considering the proposal of
amalgamation of ATTL and SLMUL with APL Apollo (hereinafter referred to as the
“Amalgamation” or “Proposed Transaction”) pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation
(hereinafter referred to as “Scheme”) between the Companies in accordance with the
provisions of sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules and regulations made thereunder. Subject to necessary approvals, ATTL
and SLMUL would amalgamate with APL Apollo, with effect from appointed date of
April 1, 2021 (hereinafter referred to as the “Appointed Date”). As a consideration for the
Proposed Transaction, shareholders of ATTL would be issued equity shares of APL
Apollo.

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation, since SLMUL is a wholly owned subsidiary of
APL Apollo, no shares of APL Apollo are proposed to be allotted to shareholders of
SLMUL on amalgamation of SLMUL into APL Apollo.

APL Apollo Tubes Limited

APL Apollo is a public limited Company incorporated in India on February 24, 1986
with its registered office in Delhi, India. The company is the largest producer of Electric
Resistance Welded (ERW) Steel Pipes and Sections in India, with a capacity to produce
2.5 Million Tonnes per annum. The company caters extensively to the region and exports
to over 20 countries globally. The company’s vast distribution network is spread across
India, with warehouses and branch offices in 29 cities. The company has four
manufacturing units, one at Sikanderabad, Uttar Pradesh, one at Hosur, Tamilnadu, one at
Raipur, Chhattisgarh and one at Murbad, Maharashtra.

The equity shares of the company are listed on The BSE Limited (BSE) and the The
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

APL Apollo holds 100% equity stake in SLMUL and in turn SLMUL holds ~55.82% in
ATTL.
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The issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital of the APL Apollo as on
March 31, 2020 is INR 24.87 crores comprising of 2,48,69,015 equity shares of INR 10
each fully paid up.

Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited

ATTL (formerly known as Best Steel Logistics Limited) incorporated on January 12,

1983 is engaged in the business of production of ERW steel tubes and GP Coils. The
company has two manufacturing unit one at Malur Bangalore, and second at Ghaziabad
Uttar Pradesh. The registered office of the Company is in New Delhi. The shares of the
company are listed on the BSE. ATTL was acquired by APL Apollo through its
subsidiary in FY 2018-19.

The issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital of the ATTL as on March
31, 2020 is INR 6.08 crores comprising of 3,04,00,000 equity shares of INR 2 each fully
paid up.

Shri Laxmi Metal Udyog Limited
SLMUL is an unlisted public company incorporated on April 25, 1994 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as a private limited company with the name and
style of Estima Investment & Financial Services Private Limited. Then, on January 13,
1995, the constitution of company changed from private limited company to public
limited company and the name changed to ‘Estima Investment & Financial Services
Limited’ and subsequently on September 16, 2003 the name changed to Shri Lakshmi
Metal Udyog Limited. SLMUL is engaged in the business of manufacturing of steel tubes
and pipes.
SLMUL is a wholely owned Subsidiary (“WoS’) of APL Apollo.
The issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital of the SLMUL as on March
31, 2020 is INR 5.90 crores comprising of 58,95,000 equity shares of INR 10 each fully
paid up.
Since, SLMUL is a WoS of APL Apollo, on amalgamation all equity shares held by APL
Apollo in SLMUL shall stand cancelled and no shares shall be issued to the shareholders
of SLMUL upon its amalgamation with APL Apollo.
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1.6 In this regard Valuer was appointed to recommend the share exchange ratio in connection
with the proposed amalgamation of ATTL and SLMUL with APL Apollo under a
Scheme of Amalgamation.

1.7 Accordingly, we have been appointed in the capacity of SEBI Registered Category |
Merchant Banker to give a fairness opinion on the share exchange ratio recommended by
Valuer in connection with the proposed amalgamation of ATTL and SLMUL with APL
Apollo under the Scheme of Amalgamation to comply with SEBI Guidlines.

1.8  The information contained in our report herein is confidential. It is intended only for the

sole use of captioned purpose including for obtaining the requisite statutory approvals.

2. SOURCES OF INFORMATION
For the purposes of this exercise, we have relied upon the following sources of

information:

(@) Draft Scheme of Amalgamation between ATTL, SLMUL and APL Apollo under
section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Annual Reports of ATTL and APL Apollo for Financial year 2019 - 20

(c) Management Certified Financial Statements of ATTL for 9 months period ended
December 31, 2020

(d) Management certified consolidated balance sheet and profit and loss account of
APL Apollo (excluding ATTL) for 9 months period ended December 31, 2020

(e) Financial projections of ATTL from FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25.

(H Consolidated financial projections of APL Apollo (excluding ATTL) from FY
2020-21 to FY 2024-25.

(9) Report dated February 27, 2021 issued by Valuer.
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(h) Such other information and explanations as we required and which have been
provided by the management including Management Representations of APL
Apollo, ATTL, SLMUL and Valuer.

EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS

Our conclusion is based on the information furnished to us being complete and accurate
in all material respects.

We have been represented by the Management of the Companies that the Companies
have clear and valid title of assets. No investigation on Companies claim to title of thier
assets has been made and their claim to such rights has been assumed to be valid.

Our work does not constitute verification of historical financials or including the working
results of the Companies referred toin this report. Accordingly, we are unable to
and do not express an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any financial information
referred to in this report.

Our opinion is not intended to and does not constitute a recommendation to any
shareholders as to how such shareholder should vote or act in connection with the
Scheme or any matter related therein.

The fee for the engagement and this report is not contingent upon the results reported.
Our liability (statutory or otherwise) for any economic loss or damage arising out of the
rendering this Opinion shall be limited to amount of fees received for rendering this
Opinion as per our engagement.

Our opinion is not, nor should it be construed as our opining or certifying the compliance
of the proposed amalgamation with the provisions of any law including companies,
taxation and capital market related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues
arising thereon.

Any person / party intending to provide finance / divest / invest in the shares / convertible
instruments / business of the Companies shall do so after seeking their own professional
advice and after carrying out their own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are

making an informed decision.
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This Fairness Opinion (“Opinion”) is issued on the understanding that the Management
has drawn our attention to all the matters, which they are aware of concerning the
financial position of the Companies and any other matter, which may have an impact on
the Opinion including any significant changes that have taken place or are likely to take
place in the financial position of the Companies. Events and transactions occurring after
the date of this Opinion may affect the opinion and assumptions used in preparing it and
we do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this Fairness Opinion.

We do not express any opinion as to the price at which shares of the Company may trade
at any time, including subsequent to the date of this opinion.

This Fairness Opinion has been issued for the sole purpose to facilitate the Companies to
comply with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discloeure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 it shall not be
valid for any other purpose and should not be copied or reproduced without obtaining our
prior written approval for any purpose other than the purpose for which it is prepared. In
no event, regardless of whether consent has been provided, shall we assume any
responsibility to any third party to whom the report is disclosed or otherwise made
available..

Fortress nor its directors, managers, employees make any representation or warranty,
express or implied, as to the accuracy, reasonableness or completeness of the
information, based on which the fairness opinion is provided. All such parties expressly
disclaim any and all liability for/or based on or relating to any such information contained

in the fairness opinion.

VALUATION METHODOLOGY ADOPTED BY VALUER

For the purposes Valuation and recommending the share exchange ratio, the Valuer has
adopted “Discounted Cashflow Method” under Income Approach and “Market Price
Method” under Market Approach for ATTL and APL Apollo.
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5. CONCLUSION

5.1  We have reviewed methodology as mentioned above used by the Valuer for arriving at
the valuation of the equity shares of the Companies and also reviewed the working and
underlying assumptions adopted to arrive at the values under each of the above

approaches, for the purposes of recommending share

52 On the basis of the foregoing and based on the information and explanation
provided to us, in our opinion, the share exchange ratio for the proposed
amalgamation of ATTL with APL Apollo of 1 (One) Equity Share of APL Apollo of
INR 2 each fully paid up for every 1 (One) Equity share of ATTL of INR 2 each

fully paid up recommended by Valuer is fair and reasonable

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For Fortress Capital Management Services Pvt. Ltd.

S

Authorized Signatory

Place: Mumbai

SEBI Registration No.: INM000011146
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THREE STEPS AHEAD

REF: 128798 07.07.2021

The General Manager,
Depart of Corporate Services,
BSE Limited

P.]. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai - 400 001

BSE Scrip Code: 538566

Dear Sir/Madam,

SUB: SUBMISSION OF REPORT OF COMPLAINTS WITH RESPECT TO APPLICATION UNDER REGULATION 37 OF

SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS] REGULATIONS, 2015 FOR SCHEME OF

AMALGAMATION AND ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN APL APOLLO TUBES LIMITED AND SHRI LAKSHMI

METAL UDYOG LIMITED AND APOLLO TRICOAT TUBES LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

AND CREDITORS

This is with reference to the Application No. 128798 (“Application”) placed on the website of the BSE
Limited on 15 June 2021 with respect to the Scheme of amalgamation and arrangement between APL
Apollo Tubes Limited and Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited and Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited and

their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”).

In this regard, we are enclosing ‘Report of Complaints’ in the prescribed format indicating ‘Nil’
complaints pursuant to SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated
December 22, 2020 for period commencing from 16.06.2021 to 07.07.2021.

We request you to take the same on record and provide us the in-principle approval/ No Objection

Letter for the abovementioned Scheme.

Thanking You,

Yours Truly,

For Apollo Tricpat Tubg

( \})5‘ e
P \
Surblii Arura
(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)

Apollo TriCoat Tubes Limited

CIN: L74900DL1983PLC014972

Corp. Office: 36, Kaushambi, Near Anand Vihar Terminal, Delhi NCR 201010, India Tel: +981-120-4041400 Fax: +91-120-1011444

Regd. Office: 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi - 110092, India Tel: +91-11-22373437 Fax: +91-11-22373537

Unlt-I: Plot No. 53, Par -, 4lh Phase, Industrial Area, Sy, No. 28-33, Kurandahalli Village, Kasaba Hobli, Malur, Taluk, Dislt. Kolar - 563101 Karnataka, India
Unit-Il: Village Bisnoli; Khasra No. 527 To 530 & 569, Dujana Road, Tehsil Dadri, Gautam Budh Nagar, Uttar Pradesh - 203207, India

E-mail: info@apollotricoat.com | Website: www.apollotricoat.com 1 0 9
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Complaints Report:

PartA
Sr. Particular Number
No. s
1. Number of complaints received directly NIL
2. Number of complaints forwarded by‘Stock Exchange / SEBI NIL
3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) NIL
4. Number of complaints resolved NA
5. Number of complaints pending NIL
PartB
Sr. Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
No. (Resolved /Pending)
1. NA

SurbhiArora & \;_/(5’
(Company Secretary & iance Officer

Date: 07.07.2021

Apollo TriCoat Tubes Limited
CIN: L74900DL1983PLC014972

Corp. Office: 36, Kaushambi, Near Anand Vihar Terminal, Delhi - NCR 201010, India Tel: +91-120-4041400 Fax: +91-120-4041444

Regd. Office: 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi - 110092, India Tel: +91-11-22373437 Fax: +91-11-22373537

Unit-I: Plot No. 53, Part-l, 4th Phase, Industrial Area, Sy, No. 28-33, Kurandahalli Village, Kasaba Hobli, Malur, Taluk, Distt. Kolar - 563101 Karnataka, India
Unit-il: Village Bisnoli, Khasra No. 527 To 530 & 569, Dujana Road, Tehsil Dadri, Gautam Budh Nagar, Uttar Pradesh - 203207, India

E-mail: info@apollotricoat.com | Website: www.apollotricoat.com 1 1 0



T

Sudesh Group
REF: 128426 07.07.2021

APL

STEEL PIPES

The General Manager,
Depart of Corporate Services,
BSE Limited

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai — 400 001

BSE Scrip Code: 533758

Dear Sir/Madam,

SUB: SUBMISSION OF REPORT OF COMPLAINTS WITH RESPECT TO APPLICATION UNDER REGULATION

37 oF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 FOR

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION AND ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN APL APOLLO TUBES LIMITED AND

SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED AND APOLLO TRICOAT TUBES LIMITED AND THEIR

RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

This is with reference to the Application No. 128426 (“Application”) placed on the website of the BSE
Limited on 15 June 2021 with respect to the Scheme of amalgamation and arrangement between APL
Apollo Tubes Limited And Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited And Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited and

their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme™).

In this regard, we are enclosing ‘Report of Complaints’ in the prescribed format indicating ‘Nil’ complaints
pursuant to SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020 for
period commencing from 16.06.2021 to 07.07.2021.

We request you to take the same on record and provide us the in-principle approval/ No Objection Letter

for the abovementioned Scheme.

Thanking You,
Yours Truly,

For APL Apollo Tubes Limited

P

Deepak C S

(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)

APL Apollo Tubes Limited (cin-174899 bL 1986pLC023443)

Regd. Office : 37, Hargovind Enclave, Vikas Morg, Delhi - 110092, India Tel: +91-11-2237 3437 | Fox: +91-11-2237 3537

Corp. Office : 36, Kaushambi, Near Anand Vihar Terminal, Delhi (NCR) -201010, India Tel: +91-120-4041 400/401/402 | Fox : +91-120-4041 444

Corp. Office : Tapasya Corp. Heights, 4th Floor, Tower-A, Sector-126, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201303, India Tel: +91-120 4742 700/701

Unit - 1: A-19, Industrial Area, Sikandrabad, Distt. Bulandshahar, U.P-203205, India, Unit-2 : 332-338, Alur Villags, Perandopolli, Hosur, Tamilnadu-635109, India

Unit - 3 : Plot No. M-T, Additional M.1.D.C. Area, Kudavali, Murbad, Mcharashtra, Thane-421401, India, Unit-4 : Village Bendri Near Urla Indl. Area Raipur, Chhattisgarh-493661, Indlo
E-mail : info@aplapollo.com Web : www.aplapollo.com 1 1 1
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Sudesh Group
Complaints Report:
Part A
Sr. - Particulars Number
No.
1. Number of complaints received directly NIL
2, Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange / SEBI NIL
3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) NIL
4, Number of complaints resolved NA
5. Number of complaints pending NIL
PartB
Sr. Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
No. (Resolved/Pending)
1. NA
Deepak C S

(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Date: 07.07.2021

APL Apollo Tubes Limited (cin-174899 bL 1986PLC023443)

Regd. Office : 37, Hargovind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Dethi - 110092, India Tel: +91-11-2237 3437 | Fox: +91-11-2237 3537

Corp. Office : 36, Kaushambi, Near Anand Vihar Terminal, Delhi (NCR) -201010, India Tel: +91-120-4041 400/401/402 | Fax : +91-120-4041 444

Corp. Office : Tapasya Corp, Heights, 4th Floor, Tower-A, Sector-126, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201303, India Tel: +91-120 4742 700/701

Unit - 1: A-19, Industrial Area, Sikandrabad, Distt. Bulandshahar, U.P-203205, India, Unit-2 : 332-338, Alur Village, Perandapolli, Hosur, Tamilnadu-635109, India

Unit - 3 : Plot No. M-1, Additional M.1.D.C. Area, Kudavali, Murbad, Maharashtra, Thane-421401, India, Unit-4 : Village Bendri Near Urla indl. Area Raipur, Chhattisgarh-493661, India
E-mail : info@aplapollo.com Web : www.aplapollo.com 1 1 2
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REF: NSLE/LIST/26639 22.07.2021

The Managcr,

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Listing Department

Exchange Plaza

5" Floor, Plot No. C/1, G Block,

Bandra Kurla Complex

Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051

NSE Serip Code: APLAPOLLO

Dear Sir,

SUB: SUBMISSION OF REPORT OF COMPLAINTS WITH RESPECT TO APPLICATION UNDER REGULATION

37 oF SEBI (LI1STING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 FOR

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION AND ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN APL. APOLLO TUBES LIMITED AND

SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED AND APOLLO TRICOAT TUBES LIMITED AND THEIR

RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

This is with reference to the Application No. NSE/LIST/26639 (“Application”) placed on the website of the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited on 24 June 2021 with respect to Scheme of amalgamation and
arrangement between APL Apollo Tubes Limited And Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited And Apollo

Tricoat Tubes Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”).

In this regard, we are enclosing Report of Complaints in the prescribed format indicating Nil complaints
pursuant to SEBT Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020 for
period commencing from 25.06.2021 to 15.07.2021.

We request you to take the same on record and provide us the in-principle approval/ No Objection Letter

for the abovementioned Scheme.

Thanking You,
Yours Truly,

For APL Apollo Tubes Limited

Deepak C S

(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)

APL Apollo Tubes Limited (cin174899 oL 1986pLC023443)

Regd. Office : 37, Hargovind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi - 110092, India Tel: +91-11-2237 3437 | Fox: +91-11-2237 3537

Curp. Office . 36, Kaushombi, Near Anand Vihar Terminal, Delhi (MCR) 1201010, India Tol: +91-120.4041 400/401/402 | Fax - +91-170-4041 444

Corp. Office : Tapasya Corp. Heights, 4th Floor, Tower-A, Sector-126, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201303, India Tel: +91-120 4742 700/701

Unit - 1: A-19, Industrial Area, Sikandrabad, Distt. Bulandshahar, U.P-203205, Indig, Unit-2 : 332-338, Alur Village, Perandapolli, Hosur, Tamilnadu-635109, India

Unit - 3 : Plot No. M-1, Additional M.I.D.C. Areq, Kudavali, Murbad, Maharashtra, Thune-%2i4§'|, Indig, Unit-4 : Village Bendri Near Urla Ind!. Area Raipur, Chhattisgarh-493667, India
E-mail : info@aplapollo.com Wab : www.aplapollo.com
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Sudesh Group
Complaints Report:
Part A
Sr. Particulars Number
No.
. Number of complaints received directly NIL
2, Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange / SEBI NIL
3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (142) NIL
4. Number of complaints resolved NIL
5. Number of complaints pending NIL
Part B
Sr. Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
No. (Resolved/Pending)
I NIL
2 NIL
3. NIL

(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)

Date: 22.07.2021

APL Apollo Tubes Limited (cin-74899 L 1986PLC023443)
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EXPERIENCE THE NEW

DCS/AMAL/PB/R37/2020/2021-22 “E-Letter” August 02, 2021

The Company Secretary,

Apollo Tricoat Tubes Ltd.

37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg,
New Delhi, Delhi - 110092

Sir,

Sub: Observation letter regarding Draft Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement of Shri
Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited and Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited with APL Apollo Tubes Limited
and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.

We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement of Apollo Tricoat Tubes
Limited as required under SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide
its letter dated July 09, 2021 has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of
Arrangement:

+ Company shall ensure that SEBI had vide orders dated June 23, 2020 restrained APL
Infrastructure Private Limited, Promoter of APL Apollo Tubes Limited, and Sanjay Gupta,
Director and Promoter of APL Apollo Tubes Limited, from accessing the securities
market for a period of 2 years from the date of order for alleged contravention of
provisions relating to SEBI (Prohibition of fraudulent and unfair Trade Practices relating
to Securities Market) Regulations, 2003.”

+ “Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company,
after filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchanges, and from the date of receipt of this
letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock exchanges.”

+ “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.”

+  “Company shall ensure that the financials of the Companies involved in the Scheme are
not more than 6 months old, before filing the same with the Hon'ble NCLT.”

+ “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT."

+  “ltis to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing
and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/stock
exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for representation as
mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments
| observations / representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

* To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to the
Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website.

* Toensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various documents
are disseminated on their (company) website.

* To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars.

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions
of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon’ble NCLT.

S&PS3SE _
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Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
company involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated
March 10, 2017.

Kindly note that as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six months from the
date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement,
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any
other requirements.

Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read
with Rule 8 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company
Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an Order
passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of the proposed scheme of
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 as
the case may be is _required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or
objections if any.

In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served
upon the Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such Notice
along with the relevant documents of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing Centre.

Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking
Exchange’s representations or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the
Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be accepted. You may please refer to circular
dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company.

Yours faithfully,
Sd/-

Sabah Vaze
Manager
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EXPERIENCE THE NEW

DCS/AMAL/PB/R37/2019/2021-22 “E-Letter” August 02, 2021

The Company Secretary,

APL APOLLO TUBES LTD.

37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg,
New Delhi, Delhi — 110092

Sir,
Sub: Observation letter regarding Draft Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement of Shri

Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited and Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited with APL Apollo Tubes Limited
and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.

We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement of APL Apollo Tubes Limited
as required under SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter
dated July 09, 2021 has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of Arrangement:

+ Company shall ensure that SEBI had vide orders dated June 23, 2020 restrained APL
Infrastructure Private Limited, Promoter of APL Apollo Tubes Limited, and Sanjay Gupta,
Director and Promoter of APL Apollo Tubes Limited, from accessing the securities
market for a period of 2 years from the date of order for alleged contravention of
provisions relating to SEBI (Prohibition of fraudulent and unfair Trade Practices relating
to Securities Market) Regulations, 2003.”

+ “Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company,
after filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchanges, and from the date of receipt of this
letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock exchanges.”

+ “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.”

+  “Company shall ensure that the financials of the Companies involved in the Scheme are
not more than 6 months old, before filing the same with the Hon'ble NCLT.”

+ “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT."

+  “ltis to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing
and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/stock
exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for representation as
mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments
| observations / representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

* To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to the
Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website.

* Toensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various documents
are disseminated on their (company) website.

* To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars.

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions
of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon’ble NCLT.

S&P@3SE __g
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Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
company involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated
March 10, 2017.

Kindly note that as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six months from the
date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement,
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any
other requirements.

Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read
with Rule 8 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company
Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an Order
passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of the proposed scheme of
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 as
the case may be is _required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or
objections if any.

In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served
upon the Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such Notice
along with the relevant documents of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing Centre.

Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking
Exchange’s representations or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the
Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be accepted. You may please refer to circular
dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company.

Yours faithfully,
Sd/-

Sabah Vaze
Manager
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National Stock Exchange Of India Limited
Ref: NSE/LIST/26639 I August 02, 2021

The Company Secretary
APL Apollo Tubes Limited
37, Hargobind Enclave,
Vikas Marg, Delhi - 110092

Kind Attn.: Mr. Deepak C S
Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for Draft Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement of Shri
Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited and Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited with APL Apollo Tubes
Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors

We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement of Shri Lakshmi Metal
Udyog Limited (Amalgamating Company 1) and Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (Amalgamating
Company 2) with APL Apollo Tubes Limited (Amalgamated Company) and their respective
shareholders and creditors vide application dated April 03, 2021.

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/26639 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (‘Circular’), kindly find following
comments on the draft scheme:

a. The Company shall ensure that following information pertaining to the promoters of APL
Apollo Tubes Limited is brought to the notice of shareholders and Hon 'ble NCLT:

I. SEBI had vide orders dated June 23, 2020, restrained APL Infrastructure Private Limited,
Promoter of APL Apollo Tubes Limited, and Sanjay Gupta, Director and Promoter of APL
Apollo Tubes Limited, from accessing the securities market for a period of two years from
the date of order for alleged contravention of provisions relating to SEBI (Prohibition of
Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to Securities Market) Regulations, 2003.

b. The Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company, after
filing the scheme with the stock exchange, and from the date of receipt of this letter is
displayed on the websites of the listed company.

c. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.

d. The Company shall ensure that the financials of the companies involved in the scheme are not
more than 6 months old, before filing the same with the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT).

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited | Exchange Plaza, ck G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400051,
India +91 22 26598100 | www.niseindia.com | CIN U&7120MH19G2PLC069T 69



D NSE

e. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated
in the petition to be filed before NCLT and the company is obliged to bring the observations to
the notice of NCLT.

Continuation Sheet

f. Itis to be noted that the petitions are being filed by the company before NCLT after processing
and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange.
Hence, the company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under
Section  230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its
comments/observations/representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence,
the company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section
230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/observations/representations.

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to
the shareholders, while seeking approval of the Scheme, it shall disclose information about
unlisted companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the
circular dated March 10, 2017.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking
given in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No-
objection” in terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the
Company to file the draft scheme with NCLT.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines
/ Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from August 02, 2021 within which
the scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

The Company shall ensure filing of compliance status report stating the compliance with each
point of Observation Letter on draft scheme of arrangement on the following path:

NEAPS > Issue > Scheme of arrangement > Reg 37(1) of SEBI LODR, 2015> Seeking
Observation letter to Compliance Status.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Harshad Dharod
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following
URL https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/raising-capital-further-issues-main-sme-checklist

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited | Exchange Plaza, C-1, m& Bandra Kura Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051,
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Lakshmi
Metal Udyog Ltd,

REPORT ADOPTED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG
LIMITED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 6(3)(VI) OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS
AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 IN ITS MEETING HELD ON SATURDAY, THE 27TH
DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021 AT 36, KAUSHAMBI, NEAR ANAND VIHAR TERMINAL,
GHAZIABAD DELHI- 201010

1. Background

1.1. The proposed scheme of amalgamation (‘Scheme’) under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
of the Companies Act, 2013 provides for the amalgamation of Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog
Limited (‘Amalgamating Company 1°) and Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (‘Amalgamating
Company 2°) with APL Apollo Tubes Limited (‘Amalgamated Company’) on a going concern
basis.

For the sake of convenience, Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company 2 are
hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘Amalgamating Companies’ and the Amalgamated
Company and Amalgamating Companies are hereinafier referred to as ‘Companies’.

1.2. Amalgamating Company 1 is the direct wholly owned subsidiary of Amalgamated Company and
Amalgamating Company 2 is the step-down subsidiary of Amalgamated Company.

1.3. The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 require the Directors to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the Scheme on Shareholders, Directors / Key Managerial
Personnel, Promoter / Non-Promoter Shareholders, laying out in particular the share exchange
ratio and specifying any special valuation difficulties. The said report is required to be circulated
to the shareholders and creditors along with the notice convening the meeting of shareholders /
creditors.

1.4. The Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’) vide resolution
passed in its meeting held on February 27, 2021, and having regard to the aforesaid provision,
the Board took into consideration, inter alia, the rationale of the Scheme, consideration involved,
its impact on the Company’s stakeholders, the financial position of the Companies and other
documents placed before it.

2. Rationale of the Scheme

The proposed amalgamation of Amalgamating Companies with the Amalgamated Company is in
the interest of shareholders and creditors on account of following reasons:

2.1. Combined business under ‘APL Apollo’ brand with wide product offerings and geographical
footprint leading to a stronger market presence, to be best suitable for long term growth market;

2.2. Amalgamation shall result in consolidation of the respective operations served by one platform

Corp. Office : 36, Kaushambi, Near Anand Vihar Terminal, Delhi - NCR 201010, India  Tel:+91-120-4041400 Famg?1-320-4041444

Regd. Office ; 37, Hargovind Enclave, Vikas Marg, Delhi 110092, India  Tel:+91-11-22373437 Fox:+91-11-22373537
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2.3. The Amalgamating Companies operate businesses that complement each other, the combination
to result in stronger consolidated revenue and profitability, with diversification in product
portfolio thereby reducing business risks for mutual benefit of the shareholders of the
Companies;

2.4. Ensuring a streamlined group structure by reducing the number of legal entities in the group
structure, and thereby eliminating inter-company transactions, administrative duplications and
consequently reducing the administrative costs of maintaining separate companies;

2.5. Pooling of assets, proprietary information, personnel, financial, managerial and technical
resources of the companies, thereby contributing to the future growth of the Amalgamated
Company; and

2.6. Overall reduction in administrative, managerial and other expenditure and achieving productivity
gains and logistical advantages by pooling technologies for optimum utilization of various
resources.

Further, there is no adverse effect of this Scheme on the directors, key management personnel,
promoters, non-promoter shareholders, creditors and employees of the Companies and the same
would be in the best interest of all stakeholders.

3. Consideration

Since, the Amalgamating Company 1 is the wholly owned subsidiary of Amalgamated Company,
accordingly, upon the Scheme becoming effective, all the equity shares as held by the Amalgamated
Company either by itself or through its subsidiaries / nominees shall stand cancelled and
extinguished. Therefore, there will be no issue and allotment of shares as consideration by the
Amalgamated Company to the shareholders of the Amalgamating Company 1 upon coming into
effect of the Scheme. The investments in the shares of the Amalgamating Companies, appearing in
the books of account of Amalgamated Company shall, without any further act or deed, stand
cancelled. Consequently, no valuation report is required for Amalgamating Company 1.

4. Effcct of the Scheme on the stakeholders of Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited

S.No | Particulars Effect
1. Directors / Key Managerial Under the Scheme, with effect from the Effective Date,
Personnel the Amalgamating Company 1 would stand dissolved

without winding up. In the circumstances, the key
managerial personnel of the Amalgamating Company 1
will cease to be the key managerial personnel of the
Amalgamating Company 1

Shareholders Not applicable.

3. Promoter Shareholders No effect. Amalgamating Company 1 is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Amalgamated Company. Accordingly,
upon the Scheme becoming effective, the entire share
capital of the Amalgamating Company 1 shall stand
cancelled

2
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S.No | Particulars Effect

4. Employees No effect. The present employees shall continue to act
as the employees of the Amalgamated Company post

i the Scheme becomes effective.

5. Secured Creditors No effect. As per Clause 3 of the Scheme, liability of
secured creditors of Amalgamating Company 1 shall be
assumed and discharged by the Amalgamated Company
in its ordinary course of business.

6. Unsecured Creditors No effect. As per Clause 3 of the Scheme, liability of
unsecured creditors of Amalgamating Company 1 shall
be assumed and discharged by the Amalgamated
Company in its ordinary course of business.

5. Adoption of the report by board of directors of Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited

The board of directors of Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited has adopted this report after noting and
considering the information set forth in this report.

By the order of the Board of Directors
For and on behalf of Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited

)
Sanjay Gupta
Director

Date: 27 February 2021
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M THREE STEPS AHEAD

REPORT ADOPTED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF APOLLO TRICOAT TUBES LIMITED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH
RULE 6(3)(VI) OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 IN ITS MEETING HELD ON SATURDAY, THE 27TH DAY
OF FEBRUARY, 2021 AT 36, KAUSHAMBI, NEAR ANAND VIHAR TERMINAL,
GITAZIABAD DELHI-NCR - 201010

1. Background

1.1. The proposed scheme of amalgamation (‘Scheme’) under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
ot the Companies Act, 2013 provides tor the amalgamation ot Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog
Limited (‘Amalgamating Company 1°) and Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (‘Amalgamating
Company 2%) with APL Apollo Tubes Limited (‘Amalgamated Company’) ol a going concern
hasis

For the sake of convenience, Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company 2 are
hereinafter collectively referred to as “Amalgamating Companies” and the Amalgamated
Company and Amalgamating Companies are hereinafter referred to as “Companies”.

1.2. Amalgamating Company 1 is the direct wholly owned subsidiary of Amalgamated Company and
Amalgamating Company 2 is the step-down subsidiary of Amalgamated Company.

1.3. The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 require the Directors to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the Scheme on Shareholders, Directors / Key Managerial
Personnel, Promoter / Non-Promoter Shareholders, laying out in particular the share exchange
ratio and specifying any special valuation difficulties. The said report is required to be circulated
to the shareholders and creditors along with the notice convening the meeting of shareholders /
creditors.

1.4. The Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) vide resolution
passed in its meeting held on February 27, 2021, and having regard to the aforesaid provision,
the Board took into consideration, inter alia, the rationale of the Scheme, consideration involved,
its impact on the Company’s stakeholders, the financial position of the Companies and other
documents placed before it.

2. Rationale of the Scheme

The proposed amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company 2
(collectively called as “Amalgamating Companies”) with the Amalgamated Company is in the
interest of shareholders and creditors on account of following reasons:

2.1. Combined business under ‘APL Apollo’ brand with wide product offerings and geographical
footprint leading to a stronger market presence, to be best suitable for long term growth market;

thereby leveraging the capability of the Amalgamated Company;

Apollo TriCoat Tubes Limited
CIN: L74900DL1983PLC014972
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2.3. The Amalgamating Companies operate businesses that complement each other, the combination
to result in stronger consolidated revenue and profitability, with diversification in product
portfolio thereby reducing business risks for mutual benefit of the shareholders of the
Companies;

2.4. Ensuring a streamlined group structure by reducing the number of legal entities in the group
structure, and thereby eliminating inter-company transactions, administrative duplications and
consequently reducing the administrative costs of maintaining separate companies;

2.5. Pooling of assets, proprietary information, personnel, financial, managerial and technical
resources of the companies, thereby contributing to the future growth of the Amalgamated
Company; and

2.6. Overall reduction in administrative, managerial and other expenditure and achieving productivity
gains and logistical advantages by pooling technologies for optimum utilization of various
resources.

Further, there is no adverse effect of this Scheme on the directors, key management personnel,
promoters, non-promoter shareholders, creditors and employees of the Companies and the same
would be in the best interest of all stakeholders.

Consideration

3.1. Upon the Scheme being effective, and in consideration to Amalgamating Company 1, being
shareholder of Amalgamating Company 2, in terms of the Scheme, 1,69,70,000 equity
shares held by the Amalgamating Company 1 i.e. approximately 55.82% of the total equity
shares of the Amalgamating Company 2, shall stand cancelled and extinguished and in lieu
thereof, no allotment of any shares in the Amalgamated Company shall be made against
those 55 .82% of the total equity shares of the Amalgamating Company 2.

3.2. In terms of the Scheme and based on Valuation Report issued by issued by Mr. Vikram Jain
(Partner SSPA & Co, Chartered Accountants) dated 27 February 2021 Registered Valuer
with Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126 and Fairness Opinion provided by Fortress
Capital Management Services Pvt Ltd, Category-I SEBI Registered Merchant Banker (Reg
No. INM000011146), following would be the share entitlement ratio for Eligible Members
(as defined in the Scheme) of Amalgamating Company 2:

“1 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Two) of Amalgamated
Company to be issued and allotted to the Eligible Members of Amalgamating Company 2 against
I fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Two) each held in
Amalgamating Company 2.”

3.3. No special valuation difficulties were reported by the valuers.

3.4. In terms of the Scheme:
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i.  Clause 5.3 of the Scheme defines “Amalgamating Company 2 Shares” means fully paid
up equity shares of Amalgamating Company 2, each having a face value of INR 2
(Indian Rupees Two only) and one vote per equity share;

ii.  Clause 5.5 of the Scheme defines “Amalgamated Company Shares” means fully paid up
equity shares of the Amalgamating Company, each having a face value of INR 2 (Indian
Rupees Two only) and one vote per equity share; and

ili.  Clause 5.12 of the Scheme defines ‘Eligible Member’ shall mean each person (other
than Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited) whose name appears in the register of
members of the Amalgamating Company 2 and/or whose name appears as the beneficial
owner of the Amalgamating Company 2 Shares in the record of depositories on the
Record Date at the Record Time

4. Effect of the Scheme on the stakeholders of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited

S.No | Particulars Effect
1. Directors / Key Managerial Under the Scheme, with effect from the Effective Date,
Personnel the Amalgamating Company 2 would stand dissolved

without winding up. In the circumstances, the key
managerial personnel of the Amalgamating Company 2
will cease to be the key managerial personnel of the
Amalgamating Company 2

2 Shareholders The stake held by Amalgamating Company 1 in

Amalgamating Company 2 shall stand cancelled Upon
this Scheme becoming effective Amalgamated
Company shall, without any further application, act or
deed, issue and allot equity shares to the Eligible
Members of Amalgamating Company 2 whose names
appear in the register of its members on the Record Date
or to such of their respective heirs, executors,
administrators or other legal representatives or other
successors in title as aforesaid in the following manner
(hereinafter referred as Share Exchange Ratio):-

“1 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 2/-
(Indian Rupees Two) of Amalgamated Company to be
issued and allotted to the Eligible Members of
Amalgamating Company 2 against 1 fully paid up equity
share of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Two) each
held in Amalgamating Company 2.”

The Amalgamated Company Shares to be issued and
allotted by Amalgamated Company to Eligible Members
of Amalgamating Company 2 in terms of the Scheme
shall rank pari passu in all aspects and shall have the
same rights attached to the then existing equity shares of
the Amalgamated Company.
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S.No

Particulars

Effect

Promoters

Upon the Scheme being effective, Amalgamating
Company 1 being the promoter of Amalgamating
Company 2 is being amalgamated and shall stand
dissolved without winding up. Accordingly, the
promoter stake shall stand cancelled.

| Secured Creditors

! Employees

No effect. As per Clause 14, the present employees shall
continue to act as the employees of the Amalgamated
Company post the Scheme becomes effective.

No effect. As per Clause 3 of the Scheme, liability of
secured creditors of Amalgamating Company 2 shall be
assumed and discharged by the Amalgamated Company
in its ordinary course of business.

Unsecured Creditors

No effect. As per Clause 3 of the Scheme, liability of
unsecured creditors of Amalgamating Company 2 shall
be assumed and discharged by the Amalgamated
Company in its ordinary course of business.

5. Adoption of the report by board of directors of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited

The board of directors of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited has adopted this report after noting and
considering the information set forth in this report.

By the order of the Board of Directors
behalf of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited

For ar

Managing Director
DIN: 07151792

Date: 27 February 2021
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REPORT ADOPTED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF APL APOLLO TUBES LIMITED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH

RULE

6(3)(VI) OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND

AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 IN ITS MEETING HELD ON SATURDAY, THE 27TH DAY
OF FEBRUARY, 2021 AT 36, KAUSHAMBI, NEAR ANAND VIHAR TERMINAL,
GHAZIABAD DELHI-NCR -201010

1. Background

1.1

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

The proposed scheme of amalgamation (‘Scheme’) under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
of the Companies Act, 2013 provides for the amalgamation of Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog
Limited (‘Amalgamating Company 1°) and Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (‘Amalgamating
Company 2°) with APL Apollo Tubes Limited (‘Amalgamated Company’) on a going concern
basis.

For the sake of convenience, Amalgamating Company 1 and Amalgamating Company 2 are
hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘Amalgamating Companies’ and the Amalgamated
Company and Amalgamating Companies are hereinafter referred to as ‘Companies’.

Amalgamating Company 1 is the direct wholly owned subsidiary of Amalgamated Company and
Amalgamating Company 2 is the step-down subsidiary of Amalgamated Company.

The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 require the Directors to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the Scheme on Shareholders, Directors / Key Managerial
Personnel, Promoter / Non-Promoter Shareholders, laying out in particular the share exchange
ratio and specifying any special valuation difficulties. The said report is required to be circulated
to the shareholders and creditors along with the notice convening the meeting of shareholders /
creditors.

The Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’) vide resolution
passed in its meeting held on February 27, 2021, and having regard to the aforesaid provision,
the Board took into consideration, inter alia, the rationale of the Scheme, consideration involved,
its impact on the Company’s stakeholders, the [inancial position of the Companics and other
documents placed before it.

Rationale of the Scheme

The proposed amalgamation of Amalgamating Companies with the Amalgamated Company is in
the interest of shareholders and creditors on account of following reasons:

2.1.

2.2,

Combined business under ‘APL Apollo’ brand with wide product offerings and geographical
footprint leading to a stronger market presence, to be best suitable for long term growth market;

Amalgamation shall result in consolidation of the respective operations served by one platform
thereby leveraging the capability of the Amalgamated Company; 0

APLAPOLLO

STEEL PIPES

APL Apollo Tubes Limited {CIN-L74899 DL 1986PLC023443)
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2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

The Amalgamating Companies operate businesses that complement each other, the combination
to result in stronger consolidated revenue and profitability, with diversification in product
portfolio thereby reducing business risks for mutual benefit of the shareholders of (he
Companies;

Ensuring a streamlined group structure by reducing the number of legal entities in the group
structure, and thereby eliminating inter-company transactions, administrative duplications and
consequently reducing the administrative costs of maintaining separate companies;

Pooling of assets, proprietary information, personnel, financial, managerial and technical
resources of the companies, thereby contributing to the future growth of the Amalgamated
Company; and

Overall reduction in administrative, managerial and other expenditure and achieving productivity
gains and logistical advantages by pooling technologies for optimum utilization of various
resources.

Further, there is no adverse effect of this Scheme on the directors, key management personnel,
promoters, non-promoter shareholders, creditors and employees of the Companies and the same
would be in the best interest of all stakeholders.

Consideration

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

Since, the Amalgamating Company 1 is the wholly owned subsidiary of Amalgamated
Company, accordingly, upon the Scheme becoming effective, all the equity shares as held by the
Amalgamated Company either by itself or through its subsidiaries / nominees shall stand
cancelled and extinguished. Therefore, there will be no issue and allotment of shares as
consideration by the Amalgamated Company to the shareholders of the Amalgamating Company
1 upon coming into effect of the Scheme. The investments in the shares of the Amalgamating
Companies, appearing in the books of account of Amalgamated Company shall, without any
further act or deed, stand cancelled. Consequently, no valuation report is required for the Scheme
in respect of Amalgamating Company 1

Upon the Scheme being effective, and in consideration to Amalgamating Company 1, being
shareholder of Amalgamating Company 2, in (erms of the Scheme, 1,69,70,000 equity
shares held hy the Amalgamating Company 1 i.e. approximately 55.82% of the total equity
shares of the Amalgamating Company 2, shall stand cancelled and extinguished and in lieu
thereof, no allotment of any shares in the Amalgamated Company shall be made against
those 55 .82% of the total equity shares of the Amalgamating Company 2.

In terms of the Scheme and based on Valuation Report issued by issued by Mr. Vikram Jain
(Partner SSPA & Co, Chartered Accountants) dated 27 February 2021 Registered Valuer
with Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126 and Fairness Opinion provided by Fortress
Capital Management Services Pvt Ltd, Category-I SEBI Registered Merchant Banker (Reg
No INM000011146), following would be the share entitlement ratio for Eligible Members
(as defined in the Scheme) of Amalgamating Company 2:
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“1 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Two) of Amalgamated
Company to be issued and allotted to the Eligible Members of Amalgamating Company 2 against
1 fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Two) each held in
Amalgamating Company 2.”

3.4. No special valuation difficulties were reported by the valuers.

3.5. In terms of the Scheme:

iii.

Clause 5.3 of the Scheme defines “Amalgamating Company 2 Shares” means fully paid
up equity shares of Amalgamating Company 2, each having a face value of INR 2
(Indian Rupees Two only) and one vote per equity share;

Clause 5.5 of the Scheme defines “Amalgamated Company Shares” means fully paid up
equity shares of the Amalgamating Company, each having a face value of INR 2 (Indian
Rupees Two only) and one vote per equity share; and

Clause 5.12 of the Scheme defines ‘Eligible Member’ shall mean each person (other
than Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited) whose name appears in the register of
members of the Amalgamating Company 2 and/or whose name appears as the beneficial
owner of the Amalgamating Company 2 Shares in the record of depositories on the
Record Date at the Record Time

Effect of the Scheme on the stakeholders of APL Apollo Tubes Limited

S.No

Particulars

Effect

1.

Directors / Key Managerial
Personnel

On amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 1
No effect. There will be no change in the Directors /

KMP of the Amalgamated Company pursuant to the
Scheme

On amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 2
No effect. There will be no change in the Directors /
KMP of the Amalgamated Company pursuant to the
Scheme
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S.No

Particulars

Effect ]

Shareholders

On amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 1

No effect. Amalgamating Company 1 is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Amalgamated Company. Accordingly,
upon the Scheme becoming effective, the entire share
capital of the Amalgamating Company 1 shall stand
cancelled.

On amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 2

- The stake held by Amalgamating Company 1 in
Amalgamating Company 2 shall stand cancelled
Upon this Scheme becoming effective Amalgamated
Company shall, without any further application, act
or deed, issue and allot equity shares to the Eligible
Members of Amalgamating Company 2 whose names
appear in the register of its members on the Record
Date or to such of their respective heirs, executors,
administrators or other legal representatives or other
successors in title as aforesaid in the following
manner (hereinafter referred as Share Exchange
Ratio):-

“1 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 2/~
(Indian Rupees Two) of Amalgamated Company to be
issued and allotted to the Eligible Members of
Amalgamating Company 2 against 1 fully paid up
equity share of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees
Two) each held in Amalgamating Company 2.”

The Amalgamated Company Shares to be issued and
allotted by Amalgamated Company to Eligible
Members of Amalgamating Company 2 in terms of
the Scheme shall rank pari passu in all aspects and
shall have the same rights attached to the then existing
equity shares of the Amalgamated Company

- Promoters stake is expected to be diluted by 3.6% on
issuance of 1,34,30,000 equity shares to public
shareholders of Amalgamating Company 2 which in
turn will increase the public float by 3.6% resulting in
higher trading stock of the Amalgamated Company

Promoters

Please refer to Point No 1 above for details regarding
the effect to shareholders.

The Promoters of the Amalgamated Company shall
continue to be Promoters, post the effectiveness of the
Scheme.
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S.No | Particulars

Effect

4. Employees

On amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 1

Under the Scheme, no rights of the staff and employees
of Amalgamated Company are being aftected

On amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 2
Under the Scheme, no rights of the staff and employees
of Amalgamated Company are being affected

5. Secured Creditors

On amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 1

No effect, the Scheme will not have any adverse effect
on the secured creditors and after the Scheme becoming
effective, the assets of the Amalgamated Company will
be sufficient to discharge its liabilities

On amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 2

No effect, the Scheme will not have any adverse effect
on the secured creditors and after the Scheme becoming
effective, the assets of the Amalgamated Company will
be sufficient to discharge its liabilities

6. Unsecured Creditors

On amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 1

No effect, the Scheme will not have any adverse effect
on the unsecured creditors and after the Scheme
becoming effective, the assets of the Amalgamated
Company will be sufficient to discharge its liabilities

On amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 2

No effect, the Scheme will not have any adverse effect
on the secured creditors and after the Scheme becoming
effective, the assets of the Amalgamated Company will
be sufficient to discharge its liabilities

5. Adoption of the report by board of directors of APL Apollo Tubes Limited

The board of directors of APL, Apollo Tubes Limited has adopted this report after noting and
considering the information set forth in this report.

By the order of the Board of Directors
For and on behalf of APL. Apolm

n/'- /.

- fa. DFL”I 1

Sanjay Gupta k 5
Chairman _ \ny
DIN: 0233188 X /

N K

———

Date: 27 February 2021

ubes Limited
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SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its

profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence

obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board'’s report

including annexures to the Board’s report is expected to made available to us after the date of
this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under
SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information. .
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concerr
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as

on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy

and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements (Refer Note no. 33 (a) of the financial
statements).
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. (Refer Note no. 33 (b) (2)
of the financial statements).

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. (Refer Note no. 33 (c) of the
financial statements).

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “"Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Reglstratlon No. 117366W/ W-100018)

-

TR
\Z;bg’.\-‘--' -s’.\d’
-_—
(Chartered W
\“°°°”"“‘“‘ SHIM TANDON)
”O\ (Partner)
Place: New Delhi N\ , (Membership No. 95540)
Date: June 02, 2021 —(UDIN 21095540AAAABI6329)
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SHRI LAKSHMI METAL
UDYOG LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance-regarding
/// sk.ns cf\
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prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controis over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on “the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/ W-100018)
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Place: New Delhi “————"(Membership No. 95540)
Date: June 02, 2021 (UDIN: 21095540AAAAB16329)
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

(0

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

()

(vi)

In respect of its fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed asset to cover all items once
in two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, fixed assets were
physically verified by the Management in the previous year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(©) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, immovable properties of land and buildings whose title deeds/
conveyance deeds have been pledged as security for loans, are held in the name

of the Company based on the confirmations received by the Company from
lenders/custodians.

As explained to us, the inventories (other than inventories in transit and inventories lying
with third party) were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on physical
verification. Inventories in transit, were verified by the management based on
subsequent delivery challans. In case of inventories lying with the third party,
confirmation have been received by the Management for the stock held at year end and
no material discrepancies was noted in respect of such confirmation.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or

other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
securities, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit during the year. The Company does not have any unclaimed deposits and
accordingly, the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained We have, however, not made a

detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:
(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and
Services Tax, Custom Duty and Cess with the appropriate authorities and there
are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these dues outstanding as at
March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. The operations of the Company didn‘t give rise to Excise duty Also refer
to the note 33 (a) (2) to the financial statements regarding management
assessment on certain matters relating to the provident fund.

(b) Details of dues of Income-tax, which have not been deposited as on March 31,
2021 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of | Nature | Forum Period to | Amount (net | Amount

Statute of Dues | where which the | of payment ) | paid under
Dispute is | Amount (Rupees in | protest
Pending Relates crore) (Rupees in

- crore)

Income Tax | Income Assessing | 2016-17 1.21 0.30

Act, 1961 Tax Officer

Income Tax | Income Assessing | 2018-19 0.77 -

Act, 1961 Tax Officer

We have been informed that there are no dues of Value added tax, Excise duty, Goods
and Services Tax and Custom Duty which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2021
on account of disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The
Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions and
government or has not issued any debentures during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they

were raised. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments).

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite

approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Chartered

Accountants
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(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under
clause (xiv) of Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,

2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank

of India Act, 1934.

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 02, 2021
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SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

(Rupees in crore)
As at
March 31, 2020

Notes
I. ASSETS
(1) MNon-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2(a)
{b) Capital work-in-progress 2(b)
(c) Investment in subsidiary 3
(d) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 4
{e) Non-current tax assets (net) 5
(f) Other non current assets 6
Total non-current assets
(2) Current assets
{(a) Inventories 7
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9
(iii) Loans 10
(iv) Other financial assets 11
(c) Other current assets 12
Total current assets
Total Assets
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13(a)
(b) Other equity 13(b)
Total equity
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14
(b) Provisions 15
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16
Total non-current liabilities
(3) Current liabiliti
(a) Financial liabilties:
(i) Borrowings 17
(ii) Trade payables 18
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19
{b) Other current liabilities 20
{(c) Provisions 21
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 22
Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-41

In terms of our report attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

—

%‘B\f ne n“.;:-} 1

~-. <
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Partner
Membership No. 95540

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 2, 2021
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42.53 44.50
0.35 0.78
252.38 206.18
0.72 0.72
0.12 0.12
0.31 1.12
296.41 253.42
39.35 35.03
24.97 92.29
1.28 0.23
0.03 0.02
0.49 4.99
3.31 1.09
69.43 133.65
365.84 387.07
5.90 5.90
209.96 163.67
215.86 169.57
100.00 115.00
1.07 1.00
4.48 4.68
105.55 120.68
- 17.28
0.32 0.11
36.02 59.95
2.46 12.04
4.21 3.65
0.02 0.32
1.40 3.47
44.43 96.82
365.84 387.07
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
‘7L--*’"’f
. —F 2
VINAY GUP SANJAY GUPTA
Director Director

DIN : 00005149

Shano
SHIVAM MAHESHWARI

Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. : A38467

Place: Ghaziabad
Date: June 2, 2021
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SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Particulars Notes
I Revenue from operations 23
II Other income 24

III Total income (I +II)

IV Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed 25
(b) Purchase of stock-in-trade

(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in- 26
progress, rejection and scrap

(d) Employee benefits expense 27
(e) Finance costs 28
(f) Depreciation expense 2
(g) Other expenses 29

Total expenses

V  Profit before tax (III - IV)

VI Tax expense:
(a) Current tax

(b) Deferred tax (credit) (net) 16
(c) Income tax expense of earlier year 36
Total tax expense 36

VII Profit for the year (V-VI)

VIII Other comprehensive income

Add : (less) items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
(b) Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation
(c) Income tax relating to (b) above

Other comprehensive income for the year

IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII)

X Earnings per equity share of Rupees 10 each

(a) Basic (in rupees) 32
(b) Diluted (in rupees) 32
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-41

In terms of our report attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018
- Zekins
R T\

RASHIM TANDON
Partner
Membership No. 95540

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 2, 2021
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(Rupees in crore)

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2021

730.36 679.70
0.11 1.36
730.47 681.06
555.23 502.23
57.20 72.87
(6.25) (17.64)
6.91 7.42
12.29 16.15
3.51 3.69
39.41 38.86
668.30 623.58
62.17 57.48
16.40 14.62
(0.28) (2.45)
s 0.09
16.12 12.26
46.05 45.23
= 2.20
0.32 (0.33)
(0.08) 0.08
0.24 1.95
46.29 47.18
78.12 76.72
78.12 76.72

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
HRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED

(.v""(,
-2 )
VINAY GUPTA “"SANJAY GUPTA
Director Director

DIN : 00005149 DIN : 00233188

ShaAine
.—-—"'"-’-'-_
SHIVAM MAHESHWARI

Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. : A38467

Place: Ghaziabad
Date: June 2, 2021




SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

a) Equity share capital

Particulars

Balance as at Aprit 1, 2019

Changes during the year ended March, 2020
Balance as at March 31, 2020

Changes during the year ended March, 2021
Balance as at March 31, 2021

b} Other equity

(Rupees in crore)
Amount
5.90

5.90

5.90

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Items of other
comprehensive income

Securities General Retained earnings Equity instruments Total
premium Reserve through other
P h ive ir
Balance as at April 1, 2019 7.40 2.85 97.41 8.90 116.56
Profit for the year ended March 31, 2020 - - 45.23 - 45.23
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax E: = (0.25) 2.20 1.95
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 44,98 2.20 47.18
Allocations/Appropriations:
Dlvidend distribution tax - - (0.07) - (0.07)
Transferred (to)/from General Reserve - 11.10 - (11.10) -
- 11.10 (0.07) {11.10) (0.07)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 7.40 13.95 142.32 - 163.67
Profit for the year ended March 31, 2021 ~ 46.05 - 46.05
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax - - 0.24 - 0.24
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 46.29 - 46.29
Balance as at March 31, 2021 7.40 13.95 188.61 = 209.96
See accompanylng notes to the financial statements 1-41
In terms of our report attached,
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants e SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
Firm's Registration No. 117366\3\!-{»0-193%9?2‘_:
T . e
T €
@
| ez gt VINAY GU SANJAY GUPTA
Partner N. o 839 Director Director
Membership No. 95540 \'}.;\\ o E DIN : 00005149 DIN : 00233188
\. \‘\fs;- a e
:i‘:--?}_

Place: New Delhl
Date: June 2, 2021

Sparomm

SHIVAM MAHESHWARI

Company Secretary

ICSI Membership No. : A38467

Place: Ghazlabad
Date: June 2, 2021
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SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 62.17 57.48
Adijustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3.51 3.69
Loss /(Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 0.15 (0.04)
Finance costs 12.29 16.15
Share based expenses 0.02 0.07
Interest income on fixed deposits (0.05) -
Provision for slow moving inventory of spares & consumables 0.02 0.02
Operating profit before working capital changes 78.11 77.37
anges in worki ital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories (4.34) 6.23
Trade receivables 67.32 (24.08)
Current financial assets 4.48 (3.78)
Other non current assets ~ (0.21)
Other current assets (2.22) 0.71
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (23.75) (0.71)
Other current liabilities 0.56 (38.14)
Provision (current & non-current) 0.09 0.19
Cash generated from operations 120.25 17.58
Net income tax paid (18.48) (11.46)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 101.77 6.12
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment, including capital advances (0.65) (1.96)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.04 0.14
Purchase of equity shares of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (46.20) (137.77)
Interest received
- Others 0.05 -
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) (46.76) (139.59)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of non-current borrowings (70.00) (75.00)
Proceeds of non-current borrowings 45.00 200.00
Proceeds from current borrowings (net) - 0.95
Repayment of current borrowings (net) (17.28) .
Finance costs paid (11.68) (14.92)
Payment of dividend distribution tax - (0.07)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) (53.96) 110.96
Net (decrease) / increase in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1.05 (22.51)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.23 22.74
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1.28 0.23
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-41

In terms of our report attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants HRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
Firm's Registration No. 1173§6W 18
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SHIVAM MAHESHWARI
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No, :

Place: New Delhi Place: Ghaziabad
Date: June 2, 2021 Date: June 2, 2021
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SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(i)

1(ii)

1(iii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Company background

Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited, the Company was incorporated on 25 April 1994, The registered office the Company is situated at 37, Hargobind Enclave, Vikas Marg,
Delhi-110092, India. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of APL Apollo Tubes Limited (the Holding Company) and is engaged in the business of production of ERW
steel tubes and GP Coils. The Company has one manufacturing unit at Bengaluru, Karnataka.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on June 2, 2021.

The Company holds 55.82% (March 31, 2020 : 50.86%) equity shares of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited ('ATTL'), a Company engaged in the business of manufacturing of
steel pipes. (See note 3)

Impact of the Initial application of new and amended Ind ASs that are effective for the current year

In the current year, the Company has applied the below amendments to Ind ASs that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after April 1, 2020.

Amendments to Ind AS-1 and Ind AS-8 - Definition of 'material’.

The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments make the definition of material in Ind AS 1

easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlylng concept of materiality in Ind ASs. The concept of 'obscuring' material information with immaterial
Information has been included as part of the new definition.

The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from ‘could influence' to ‘could reasonably be expected to influence'. The definition of material in Ind AS 8

has been replaced by a reference to the definition of material in Ind AS 1. In addition, the MCA amended other standards that contain the definition of 'material' or refer to
the term 'material' to ensure consistency.

The adoption of the amendments has not had any material impact on disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.
Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied
consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015, as amended from time to time as notlfied under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 , the relevant provision of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost basis except for certain financial Instruments which are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liabillty in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price Is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that

are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value In use
in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Going Concerp
The directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financlal statements.

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabllities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised and future periods affected.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements.

Significant management judgment Is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits.

The amount of total deferred tax assets could change if estimates of projected future taxable Income or if tax regulations undergo a change.

Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary differences can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax
assets and liabllitles based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of

recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charge
in the ‘Slalemem oiProfit or Loss.
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SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year led March 31, 2021

(d)

(e)
(i)

(ii)

(f)

0}

(i

(i)

(@)

Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment ("PPE"
The Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of PPE at the end of each reporting period. The factors such as changes in the expected level of usage,

technological developments and product life-cycle, could significantly impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the future
depreciation charge could be revised and thereby could have an impact on the profit of the future years.

Defined benefil plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation ('DBO’) are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities Involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

fi ial rum
The fair value of financial instruments, that are not traded in an active market, is determined by using valuation techniques. This involves significant judgements in selection

of a method in making assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the Balance Sheet date and in identifying the most appropriate estimate of fair
value when a wide range of fair value measurements are possible.

Post the outbreak of COVID-19, the Company has made an assessment of the llkely adverse impact on economic environment in general and potential impact on its
operations including the carrying values of its current and non current assets including property, plant and equipment and other financial exposure. The Company has also
evaluated its lability to meet the financial commitments towards its lenders etc. The Company as of the reporting date has used Internal and external sources on the
expected future performance of the Company and accordingly does not expect any long term adverse impact of COVID-19 on Its abillty to recover the carrying value of

assets and meeting its financial obligations. However, given the nature of the COVID-19, the Company continues to monitor developments to identify and manage any
significant uncertainties relating to its future economic outlook.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equlvalents, the Company
has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses

resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. Ali other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Revenue recoghnition

The revenue is recognised once the entity satisfied that performance obligation & control are transferred to the customers.

Sale of goods

The Company derives revenue from Sale of Goods and revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods. To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five step approach: (1) identify the
contract with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied. The Company recognises revenue at point in time.

Any change in scope or price is considered as a contract modification. The Company accounts for modifications to existing contracts by assessing whether the services added
are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price.

The Company accounts for variable considerations like, volume discounts, rebates and pricing incentives to customers as reduction of revenue on a systematic and rational
basis over the perlod of the contract. The Company estimates an amount of such variable consideration using expected value method or the single most likely amount in a
range of possible consideration depending on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which we may be entitled.

Revenues are shown net of allowances/ returns, goods and services tax and applicable discounts and allowances.

In contracts where the Company acts as an agent, the revenue is recorded at the net amount that the Company retains for Its services,

Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.

Commission income
Commission income Is recognised when the servies are rendered.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each year adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically

evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to sltuations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assels are recogmz.ed for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temuqrm ﬂf?{ﬁnciesand losses.

; N

r@x"‘éﬂs"m and 1 l:l!ht@s are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to
e taxation authorlty, Cur nt tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends elther to settle on a net
T téln ealk}; the fsget j ttie the liability simultaneously.

A count-lms L

The ¢ rm.g value of defer tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer pmbal;le{hfat suﬂ‘-c»rznt‘tm(egle profits
will be vui]gbhz to al Lpg; of the asset to be recovered.
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Current an‘d Jaferreé‘ ‘tax |s-retognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in Other Comq‘mh nsn.re nme fi'h case,

the tax is alsn” recngn:sed in Other Comprehensive Income.
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Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid where applicable in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in
the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. MAT is recognised as deferred tax assets in the Balance Sheet when the asset can be measured reliably
and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised

Leases

As a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i} the contract Involves the use of an identified asset (i} the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options
when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability

adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of
use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an Individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

The lease fiability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes Its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease llabllity and ROU asset have been separately presented In the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

As a lessee

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for Its Interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating

lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date ,the Company reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order

to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any).Where the assets does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the highest of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted. An impalrment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Where an impalrment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so

that the Increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no Impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash
generating unit) in prior years.

Cash and cash equivalents and Cash Flow Statement

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings In current liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of

past or future cash recelpts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available
information.

Short term borrowings, repayments and advances having maturity of three months or less, are shown as net in cash flow statement.

Inventories

Raw materials, work In progress, stores, traded and finished goods

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (First in First Out -FIFO basis) and the net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where consldered

necessary. Cost includes cost of purchase, all charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale, including indirect levies, transit insurance and receiving charges. Finished
goods include appropriate proportion of overheads and, where applicable.

Cost of inventories also include all other costs Incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Rejection and scrap
Rejection and scrap are valued at net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Property, p_aru; and equipment and capital work-in-progress
/
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Freehdip {anu ’J$‘cﬂrned‘ﬂ historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment if any Historical cost
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
assoclated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit or Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred

Projects under which property, plant and equipment are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and
attributable interest.

Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and whose use Is expected to be irregular are capitalised and depreciated over the useful
life of the principal item of the relevant assets.

Capital work-in-progress

Projects under which tangible fixed assets are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable
interest,

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013 except in the case of the certain categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account the

nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers
warranties and maintenance support, etc.

The estimated useful life of various property, plant and equipment is as under:-
(a) Buildings- 10 to 60 years

(b) Roads- 10 years

(c) Plant and machinery used in manufacturing of pipe 10-20 years

(d) Other plant and machinery- 2 to 10 years

(e) Vehicles- 8 years

(f) Furniture and fixtures- 10 years

(g) Office equlpment- 2-5 years

(h) Computers & servers- 3-6 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of Property, plant & equipment is reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively if
appropriate.

Earnings per share

Baslc earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to
equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of
the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting perled.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liabllity also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the flnancial statements.

Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity, compensated absences and performance incentives.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised In respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be pald when
the liabllities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:
(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitiement of future compensated absences; and

(b} in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur,

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabllities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made In respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms

approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or
loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities In the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Post-g mplgim_‘eﬁ'.t o‘hljgati'ons
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Dgfined coritribution plans The Company's contribution to provident fund are consldered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expens,ﬁﬁas .on the amount
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Defined benefit plans: For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Past
service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the

benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee Is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probabte that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract Is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes
payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time

that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments - initial recognition,

q t and impairment

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
The classification criteria of the Company for debt and equity instruments Is provided as under:

(a) Debt instruments

Depending upon the business model of the Company, debt instruments can be classified under following categories:
- Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

- Debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

- Debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
(b) Equity instruments

The equity instruments can be classified as:
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL")
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (*FVTOCI’)

Equity Instruments and derivatives are normally measured at FVTPL. However, on initial recognition, an entity may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
Instrument basls) to present In OCI the subsequent changes in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument within the scope of Ind AS -109.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at falr value through profit or loss are expensed in the
statement of profit or loss.

Debt Instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and Is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fa r valu,e ﬁm:uuh other comprehensive income: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash
Jrepresent solely pa\rments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Movements in the carrying amount are taken

ﬁrmuah OClI, except{or rha recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised |n ncL pss, When

fhig, financial asse}; Is f:lurel: gnised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and r/ﬁ'%ql che galns/
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Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and

presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income.

Investment in equity shares

The Company subsequently measures alf equity investments at fair value. Where the management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of falr value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses} on equity Investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes In fair value.

The Company has equity investment in one entity which Is not held for trading. The Company has elected the FVTOCI irrevocable option for this investment (see note 3). Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 36.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The

impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a slgnificant increase in credit risk. Note 37 details how the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Expected credit loss are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to the following:

(a) the 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from default events on financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after reporting
date); or

{b) Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financia! instrument).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and Is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Individual receivables which are known to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount of trade receivable and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss within other expenses.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to other income.
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when:
- the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
- retains the contractual rights to recelve the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more reclpients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In

such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financlal asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised
to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Financial Liabilities

Classification
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

- Financlal liabilitles measured at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilitles measured at amortized cost

Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on thelr classification, as described below:

Fi ial liabilities ed at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading. At initial recognition, such financial liabilities are recognised at fair value.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are, at each reporting date, measured at fair value with all the changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities measured at Amortized Cost :

At initial recognition, all financlal liabllitles other than fair valued through profit and loss are recognised initially at fair value less transactlon costs that are attributable to the
issue of financial liability. Transaction costs of financial liability carried at fair value through profit or loss is expensed In the statement of profit or loss.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the financlal liabilities using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. -~
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Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and In the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end of each period. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

Segment information

The Company determines reportable segment based on information reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segmental performance. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by

business segments. The accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual
segments.

The Company is engaged in the business of production of ERW steel tubes. As the Group's business activity primarily falls within a single business and geographical segment
i.e manufacture of steel tubes, there are no disclosures required to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on 'Segment Reporting'.

Recent Accounting Developments

Balance Sheet:

Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilitles’, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

Certain additional disclosures In the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning
of the current reporting period.

Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.
Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset under development.
If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies,

title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of
benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:
Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Saocial Responsibility {(CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional Information’ in

the notes forming part of financial statements.
The amendments are extenslve and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.
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SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
Notes to the fi ial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2021

2(b)

()

(@)

(a)

(a)
(b)

O]
(b)
(©)
[C)]
(e)

Capital work In progress

{Rupees In crore)

Particulars

Plant & machinery

Total

As at April 1, 2019

0.16 0.16
Add : Additions during the year 1.05 1.05
Less : Transfer to property, plant and equipment (see note 2(a)) (0.43) (0.43)
Closing balance as at March 31, 2020 0.78 0.78
Add : Additions during the year 1.02 1.02
Less : Transfer to property, plant and equipment {see note 2(a)) (1.45) (1.45)
Closing balance as at March 31, 2021 0.35 0.35

Investment (Non-current)

{Rupees In crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Investment In subsidlary - (quoted, fully pald) :

16,970,000 equity shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid up in Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limlted (March 31, 2020 : 15,460,000 252.38 206.18
equity shares) - (see note below)

Total 252.38 206.18
Market value of quoted Investment 2,036.40 420.98

Note :

The Company holds 55.82% {(March 31, 2020 : 50.86%) equity shares of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited ('ATTL'), a Company engaged in the business of manufacturing of
steel pipes.

In previous year, the Board of Directors of Apl Apollo Tubes Limlted (the Holding Company) in their meeting held on October 18, 2018 considered and approved the
acquisltion / investment by Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited ('SLMUL'), by way of entering into a Share Purchase Agreement (‘Agreement’) for the acquisition of
8,030,030 Equity Shares and Options attached to 4,300,000 Warrants of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (‘Target Entity’, unrelated party). Investment by SLMU in Target
Entity was approved by Shareholders via Special resoluation dated October 18, 2018,

Pursuant to the said Agreement, SLMUL made an open offer, which got completed on February 1, 2019 and SLMUL became promoter of Target Entity in compliance with
the provisions of Regulation 3(1) and Regulation 4 of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. During the offer period, SLMUL acquired
1,325,000 Equity Shares from open market and 1,536,209 Equity Shares were tendered under open offer, aggregating to 2,861,209 Equity Shares, representing 10.33
% of the paid up share capital of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited as on March 31, 2019

During the guarter ended June 30, 2019, SLMUL, under the above Share purchase agreement completed the acquisition of 8,030,030 Equity Shares and Options attached
to 4,300,000 Warrants of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited. Further the warrants were converted into equity shares. On completion and transfer of shares on June 17, 2019,

SLMUL, held 15,191,239 equilty shares representing 50.56% of pald up share capital of the target entity. Accordingly, Target Entity became a subsldiary of SLMUL with
effect from June 17, 2019.

Subsequently, SLMUL further acquired 268,761 equity shares and held 15,460,000 equty shares representing 50.86% of paid up share capital of Apollo Tricoat Tubes
Limited as at March 31, 2020.

In current year, SLMUL further acquired 1,510,000 equity shares and as at year end March 31, 2021, SLMUL holds 16,970,000 equty shares representing 55.82% of paid

up share capital of Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited.

Other financial assets (Non-current)
(Unsecured, considered good)

(Rup in crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Security deposit
Total

Non-current tax assets (net)

0.72

0.72

0.72

0.72

(Rupees In crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Advance income tax (net of Provision of tax for Rupees 14.98 crore, March 31, 2020 : Rupees 14.98 crore)
Total

Other non current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 202

Capital advances

0.01 0.82
Payment under protest (see note below)
(i) Income tax 0.30 0.30
Total 0.31 1.12
Note :

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities
where applicable, in Its financial statements, The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materlally effect on its financial statements.

Inventories

{Rupees In crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Raw materials (lnn:lut,irnq stnck WI&WILI\ third party)

5.05 6.86
Work in progr [retransit) 21.28 15.81
Finished good ,(u}t{ﬂ;mg stoc transh] 10.01 10.26
Stores and s ar 1.06 1.18
Rejection & su Chartere 1.95 0.92
Total !‘u..cm tanls 39.35 35.03
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Notes to the fi

SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
ts for the year ended March 31, 2021

0]

(1)

(iit)
(V)
)
(vi)

(a)

1)

(2)

3)

Notes :

Cost of inventory (including stores & spares) recognised as expense during the year amounted to Rupees 611.96 crore (March 31, 2020 : Rupees 564.59 crore).

(Rup in crore)
Details of stock-In-transit As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Raw material 0.23 -
Finished goods S.44 0.20
Work in progress 1.90 -
Raw material stock lying with third party 0.45 5.04

The Company has created a provision for slow moving inventory of stores & spares of Rupees 0.02 crores (March 31, 2020 : Rupees 0.02 crores).

The mode of valuation of Inventories has been stated in note 1(iii)(k) of significant accounting policies.

Inventories have been pledged as security towards Company's borrowings from banks.

Trade recelvables (Current)
(Unsecured)

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Considered good
(i) Related parties
(ii) Other than related parties

Total

18.50 25.89
6.47 66.40
24.97 92.29

The average credit period on sale of goods is 0-60 days. No Interest is charged on the trade receivables for the amount overdue above the credit period. There are no
customers who represent more than 10% of the total balance of trade recelvables except as follows :-

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021
Customer C 18.24
Customer A 3.27
21.51
% of total trade receivables 86.14%
(Rupees in crore)
Partlculars As at
March 31, 2020
Customer A 28.97
Customer B 16.82
Customer C 9.07
54.86
% of total trade receivables 59.44%

Agelng of trade recelvables and credit risk arising there from Is as below :

(Rupees In crore)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

Gross credit risk

Allowance for credit Net credit risk

losses

Amounts not yet due

0-90 days overdue

91-180 days overdue
181-270 days overdue
271-365 days overdue

More than 365 days overdue

24.97

24.97

24.97

24,97

{Rupees In crore)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

Gross credit risk

Allowance for credit Net credlit risk

Amounts not yet due 74.13 74.13
0-90 days overdue 18.15 3 18.15
91-180 days overdue a - _
181-270 days overdue 0.01 - 0.01
271-365 days overdue E - .
More than 365 days overdue - - =
92.29 - 92.29

Agelng wise % of expected credit loss

{Rupees in crore)

Partlculars

As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31,
2020

Amounts not yet due
0-90 days overdue-~
91-180 days ovagfdues,
181-270 days gyerdie”
271-365 days/dvérdle

More than 36%|diyd ovEibigtered

Note :

100 %




SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED

Notes to the financial stat

ts for the year ended March 31, 2021

(a)
(b)

10

(a)

11

(a)

12

(a)
(b)

Cash and cash equivalents

{Rupeses In crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Cash on hand
Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- in cash credit accounts (see note 17 for security details)
Total

Loans (Current)
(Unsecured, consldered good}

0.02 0.02
0.03 0.21
1.23 -

1.28 0.23

(Rupees In crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Loans to employees
Total

Other financlal assets (Current)
(Unsecured, considered good)

0.03

0.02

0.03

0.02

(Rup In crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Other clalm receivable
Total

Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

0.49

4.99

0.49

4.99

(Rupees In crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Advance to suppllers
Prepaid expenses
Total

157

3.28 0.98
0.03 0.11
3.31 1.09
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SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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(a)

Borrowings (Current)

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars i P
u March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Loan repayable on demand
- From banks (secured)

(i} Working capital facilities (see note (i) below) - 17.28

Total = 17.28

Nature of security:

(i) Working Capital facilities are secured by first parl passu charge on entire present and future current assets and second charge on entire present and future
movable and immovable fixed assets of the company sltuated at KIADB Industrial Area, Plot No. 9-11, Balagaranahalli Village, Attibele, Anekal Taluk, Banglore.
Credit facilities are further secured by personel gurantee of the Mr. Sanjay Gupta and Mr. Vinay Gupta and corporate guarantee of APL Apollo Tubes Limited.

Trade payables (Current)

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars Asiat Asjat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.32 0.11
Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 36.02 59.95
Total 36.34 60.06

The amount due to Micro and small enterprises as defined In "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development act, 2006" has been determined to the

extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as
below:

{Rupees in crore)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(i) The principal amount remalning unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year 0.32 0.11
(ii) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year =

(ili) The amount of interest-due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid =
by beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest speclfied under this Act

(iv) The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the end of the year -

(v) The amount of interest remaining due and payable to suppllers disallowable as deductlble expenditure =
under Income Tax Act, 1961

Other financial liabilities (Current)

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars Asiat Aslat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current maturlties of non-current borrowings (see note 14) - 10.00
Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment - 0.19
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 2.46 1.85
Total 2.46 12.04

Other current liabilities

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars peat s at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Statutory remittances 3.64 3.51
Advance from customers 0.57 0.14
Total 4.21 3.65

Provisions (Current)

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars S=lat As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for compensated absences 0.01 0.10
Provision for gratulty (see note 34) 0.01 0.22
Total 0.02 0.32

Current tax liabilties (net)
(Rupees in crore)

Particulars LT LS
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for tax (net of advance tax Rupees 68.72 crores, March 31, 2020 Rupees 50.13 crores) 1.40 3.47
1.40 3.47

Chartered

Accoyptants
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SHRI LAKSHMI METAL UDYOG LIMITED

Notes to the financial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2021
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(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Revenue from operations

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Sale of products (see note (i) below)

718.39 666.49
Other operating revenue (see note (ii) below) 11.97 13.21
Total 730.36 679.70
Notes :
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price :
(Rupees in crore)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Contract price 735.83 684.04
Adjustments for:
Discount & Incentives (17.44) (17.55)
Revenue from operations 718.39 666.49
Other operating revenue comprises
Sale of scrap 11.97 13.21
Total 11.97 13.21
Other income
{Rupees in crore)
q Year ended Year ended
Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Interest income on fixed deposit

0.05 -
Gain on foreign currency transactlons (net) 0.06 -
Interest Income on others (see note 35) - 0.95
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {net) - 0.04
Miscellaneous income = 0.37
Total 0.11 1.36
Cost of material consumed

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Inventories of raw material at the beginning of the year

6.86 30.89
Add: Purchases during the year 553.42 478.20
Less: Inventories of raw material as at the end of the year 5.05 6.86
Total 555.23 502.23
Change in inventorles
(Rup in crore)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Inventories at the end of the year:
Finlshed goods

10.01 10.26
Work in progress 21.28 15.81
Rejection and scrap 1.95 0.92
33.24 26.99
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Flnished goods 10.26 5.21
Work in progress 15.81 3.35
Rejection and scrap 0.92 0.79
26.99 9.35
Total (6.25) (17.64)
Employee benefits expense
(Rupees in crore)
" Year ended Year ended
Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Salarles and wages

Contributlon to provident fund (see note 34)

Gratulty expense (see note 34)

Share-based payments to employees (see note (31(b))
Staff welfare expenses

Total

During the year, the Company recognised an amount of Rupees Nil (Year ended March 31, 2020 Rupees 1.72 crore) as remuneration to key managerlal

personnel. The details of such remuneration Is as below :

(1) Short term employee benefits
(il) Post_employment benefits (Gratuity expense)

Wy

Chartered o
guntants |~ J
Acc i~

S
¥

(it ‘,(Ibtr‘{t';r1I lﬁrg term employee beneflts (Leave encashment expense)
BT F NN
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6.23 7.33
0.32 0.31
0.18 0.17
0.02 0.07
0.16 0.17
6.91 7.42
= 1.42
= 0.20
0.10
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Finance costs

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Interest expense on:
(1) working capital facilities

0.91 4.03
(ii} borrowings from related party 10.96 11.66
(iii) delayed payment of income tax 0.13 0.16
Other borrowing cost 0.29 0.30
Total 12.29 16.15
Other expenses
(Rupees in crore)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Consumptlon of stores and spare parts

Power and fuel

Security charges

Repair and maintenance:

(1) Building

(il) Plant and machinery

(iii) Others

Rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional charges (see note (I) below)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Freight outward

Provision for slow moving Inventory of stores and spares
Advertisement and sales promotion

Corporate Social Responslbility

Insurance

Management Support Services (see note 31(a))
Miscellaneous expenses

Less : Allocatlon of common expenses (see note 31(a))
Total

Note :-

Legal & professional charges include auditor's remuneration {excluding indirect taxes) as follows :

(a) To statutory auditors
For audit
For other services
Total

(b) To cost auditors for cost audit
Total

Corporate social responsibility

5.78 7.12
11.25 12.53
0.11 0.12
0.07 0.01
0.26 0.33
0.01 z
0.07 0.22
0.04 0.12
0.37 0.38
0.15 -
15.63 11.55
0.02 0.02
- 1.90
1.05 -
0.04 0.03
411 5.90
0.45 0.38
39.41 40.61
- (1.75)
39.41 38.86
0.15 0.18
- 0.02
0.15 0.20
0.01 0.01
0.01 0.01

As per Section 135 of the Companles Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the
immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibllity (CSR) activities., A CSR committee has been formed by the Company as per the

Act. The funds were primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which were specified in schedule VII of the Companies
Act,2013:

____ (Rupees in crore)
Year ended
March 31, 2021

Particulars

a) Amount required to be spent as per sectlon 135 of Companles Act, 2013

1.05
Particulars In Cash Yet to be p